
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




Workshop AgendaWorkshop AgendaWorkshop AgendaWorkshop Agenda
Board of Commissioners


March 2, 2011


 3:30 P.M.


Call to Order.


Acceptance of Agenda.


OLD BUSINESS


1. Report from Parks and Recreation Director Anita Godbee on progress of


efforts to form a Kenwood Park and Recreation Association.


2. Consideration of staff’s request for updates and minor modifications to various


Human Resources policies. This item was tabled from the December 9, 2010


meeting pending further clarification.


3. Discussion with Human Resources Staff regarding possible changes in the


County’s self-insured employee health plan in preparation for the annual


renewal date of June 1.


4. Discussion of proposed transportation projects to be submitted to the Atlanta


Regional Roundtable for consideration under the Transportation Investment


Act.


NEW BUSINESS


5. Consideration of Resolution No. 2011-06 regarding Fiscal Responsibility and


Protecting Fayette County’s Quality of Life, as presented by Commissioner


Brown.


6. Discussion of Senate Bill 86 which relates to eliminating some statewide


planning mandates.


7. Ms. Kiana Robinson, owner of Kidology Preschool in College Park, would like


to request the Board’s consideration of amending the Zoning Ordinance


related to set-backs and buffers, which would allow her to establish a similar


facility in north Fayette County.


8. Director of Community Development Pete Frisina will discuss how the Zoning


Ordinance relates the number of animals allowed; and the issue of


beekeeping.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Herb Frady, Chairman


Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn


Allen McCarty


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney


Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Commissioners Conference Room


Suite 100
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
1st Wednesday each month at 3:30 p.m.


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
March 2, 2011
Page Number 2


9. Director of Community Development Pete Frisina will update the Board on the County’s requirements to perform


a Full Plan Update of the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan.


10. Director of Community Development Pete Frisina will ask for direction on how to redesignate remnants of old


road right-of-way resulting from  the reconfiguration of property that was formerly portions of Huiet and Lester


Roads, as related to existing platted properties known as Waterlace and Postal Commons.


 


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT


11. New Hope Baptist Church has contacted the County concerning a site across S.R. 74 South, formerly


known as Starr’s Mill Baptist Church, but used in recent years as a part of the New Hope South Campus.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS


ADJOURNMENT








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Administration County Administrator Jack Krakeel


New Hope Baptist Church has contacted the County concerning a site across S.R. 74 South, formerly known as Starr's Mill Baptist 


Church, but used in recent years as a part of the New Hope South Campus.


Historically, New Hope Baptist Church  has utilized approximately eight acres of land located just east of Highway 74 at the intersection 


of Highway 85.  This land is adjacent to the County's property located at Starr's Mill. 


 


Due to the reconstruction of Highway 74, the church decided to move all of its ministries to the west side of Highway 74, where their main 


sanctuary is located, with no apparent plans for further ministry to occur on the eight acres of land east of Highway 74. 


 


The church is interested in learning if the County has any interest in adding its eight acres to its current 17 acres at Starr's Mill.   


 


A representative from the church, Mr. Gene Barber,  will come to the Board to discuss this opportunity


None at this time.  Staff seeks direction on how to proceed in this matter.


Not applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Administrator's ReportWednesday, March 2, 2011













		Administration- New Hope Baptist Church Agenda Request File.pdf

		Administration- New Hope Baptist Church Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Commissioners Commissioner Steve Brown


Consideration of Resolution 2011-06 regarding Fiscal Responsibility and Protecting Fayette County's Quality of Life, as presented by 


Commissioner Brown.


Commissioner Brown drafted Resolution 2011-06  on "Fiscal Responsibility and Protecting Fayette County's Quality of Life" . It requests 


that the Board of Commissioners do the following: 


 


1)  Remove any and all planned public mass transit projects with Fayette County's boundaries from all plans, tables, and maps with the 


Federal Government, the State of Georgia, and the Atlanta Regional Commission. 


 


2) Remove Fayette County from any obligation to any type of regional transit authority,  


 


3)  Relieve Fayette County from any financial burden for funding regional mass transit beyond the "Transportation Investment Act of 


2010" (HB 277) formulas. 


 


A copy of the proposed Resolution has been sent to the Mayors of all five of the County's municipalities to determine if there is support 


from those entities. Mayors Haddix of Peachtree City and Mayor Rehwaldt of Tyrone have expressed support.


No action is requested at this time.  If this resolution meets with the Board's favor, it will be placed on the March 24, 2011 agenda for 


formal consideration.


Not applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessWednesday, March 2, 2011







Thinking Right with Jim Wooten (http://blogs.ajc.com/thinking-right) 


Three cheers for a selfless coach
9:07 pm February 10, 2011, by jwooten


Thinking Right’s weekend free-for-all. Pick a topic:


● Tuesday’s wrong-way-driver crash on I-285 caused an eight-hour shutdown of a section of the interstate that 


handles 200,000 vehicles per day. The wreck at Dunwoody demonstrates how vulnerable metro Atlanta is to 


gridlock — and how the terms employed in our transportation policy debate can lead to the wrong remedies. 


Commuters took to off-interstate roadways, the arterials. Those are, in fact, the “alternatives” that can serve a 


majority of the region’s drivers. Yet when the term “alternatives” is bandied about in transportation planning, it 


invariably is code for a costly mass transit network that’s an “alternative” for the few who happen to be near 


fixed stations. Spend where we get the most congestion relief for the dollar.


  


 


 


 


  


 


 


  


 


  


 


 


 


  


 


 


2/15/2011/blogs.ajc.com/thinking-right/2011/02/10/three-cheers-for-a-selfless-coach/



fjones

Highlight



fjones

Highlight







 
THIS LETTER WAS TRANSMITTED VIA EMAIL FROM MAYOR REHWALDT 
 
         
February 16, 2011 
 
 
140 Stonewall Avenue West 
Suite 100 
Fayetteville, Georgia 30290 
 
Dear County Commissioners: 
     
As I am sure you are aware, the citizens of Fayette have, with great uniformity expressed their 
feeling that mass transit is detrimental to the preferred growth pattern and well being of Fayette 
County. 
 
I am also aware that repeated promises that mass transit in any form is not something that is 
being contemplated by the county government; in fact, loudly dismissed as something that will 
not happen. 
 
However, it seems that many of the projects outlined in Concept 3 and Plan 2040 include these 
transportation alternatives. 
 
Commissioner Brown is accurate in his facts concerning limited users of mass transit and that the 
cost of maintaining any mass transit alternatives are inefficient and well beyond our ability to 
maintain such systems.  The demise of Clayton County’s bus system and the necessary raising of 
fares and reduction in service in Cobb Counties are but two examples. 
 
Providing for parking and maintenance facilities and their continued upkeep of any such system 
has not been mentioned in H.B. 277 nor been funded. 
 
I support Commissioner Brown’s insightful evaluation of bringing mass transit to Fayette County 
and agree. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Don Rehwaldt 
Mayor 
 
 
 
   







1


 


From: Don Haddix 


 


Fellow Mayors,
 
I endorse the resolution.
 
The PTC Council has already removed all references of any form of Mass Transit from the PTC Transportation Plan.
 
As well in the endorsement statement for the County Transportation Plan we clearly stated our objections regarding references to 
Concept 3, etc.
 
Mass Transit is contrary to the will of the citizens of PTC and Fayette County as a whole. 
 
Thanks.
 
Don Haddix
Peachtree City Mayor


________________________________


From: Carol Chandler 


 


Hi Mayors:
 
Commissioner Brown has drafted the attached Resolution which he plans to bring before the Board of Commissioners at their 
Workshop on March 2 at 3:30 p.m. If there is a consensus among Board members toward adopting the Resolution, they will place it on 
the agenda for an upcoming meeting where they will be able to take action on it, most likely the March 10 meeting.
 
Commissioner Brown has asked that you be sent a copy of it. If you would like to support the Resolution, a letter or email of support 
from you can be passed along to the Board of Commissioners prior to the Workshop on March 2. If you decide to make a statement of 
support, you can pass it along to me via email if you like and I will be sure the Commissioners receive it. Mayor Rehwaldt has already 
done so.
 
Thanks to all!







Chairman Jack Smith & mass transit plans 
 


Two members of our Fayette County Board of Commissioners are up for re-election this November: Jack Smith and 
Eric Maxwell. 


We all know about their “build the West Fayetteville Bypass at any cost” stance. We know about their intentions to 
close the interchange at Ga. Highway 74 and I-85 in favor of a new interchange at Ga. Highway 92 and I-85, a way to 
justify building the sham of a bypass, leaving Tyrone, Peachtree City and Brooks commuters in a lurch. 


Likewise, we voted down their pork-barrel spending antics in the recent SPLOST referendum. 


Now let me tell you what else you need to look out for related to mass transit in Fayette County. Commission 
Chairman Jack Smith has been actively participating in the planning and implementation processes of bringing mass 
transit to Fayette County. 


In fact, the plans from the Transit Planning Board (TPB) actually designate Fayetteville and Peachtree City as “transit 
centers,” (Source: Transit Planning Board Final Technical Report, Concept 3, p. 16, figure 2.2, System Framework). 


At their “Aug. 28, 2008 meeting, the TPB Board voted to adopt Concept 3 as the regional transit vision” (TBP Staff 
Director’s Report September, 2008). Chairman Smith made no objections to the mass transit plan, Concept 3, as it 
was drafted and approved. 


Indeed, the plan calls for buses from Clayton County, Henry County and Coweta County to come rolling into Fayette. 
In fact, we are the heart of their new “cross-regional corridor” for mass transit. 


The plan which Chairman Smith favored and posed no objections to, according to TPB meeting minutes, calls for a 
“Southwest [transit rail] line from Senoia to Downtown Atlanta through Peachtree City and Union City” (TPB press 
release,http://beltline.org/Portals/26/Concept%203%20Fact%20Sheet.pdf). 
Just how will the mass transit assembly line of buses, constantly bustling back and forth from Newnan to McDonough 
with us caught in the middle, along hwys. 34/54 improve the quality of life for the citizens of Fayette County? 


Sadly, the irony is it will bring more congestion to that busy highway. Think about it; there are no HOV lanes in 
Fayette, so the buses will add to our traffic. And how many in our local population do you think will be riding that 
hectic bus route? 


At this point, some well-intentioned readers are thinking mass transit in Fayette County is just the right thing to do. 
The part of this mass transit revelation Chairman Smith will surely never tell you about is the cost. Oh, yeah, we have 
to pay to shuttle the masses through our county. 
 
The regional system will cost billions upon billions of dollars to assemble. Then there are the massive annual 
maintenance costs. In fact, “[t]o operate the full regional system, both existing and new expansion is estimated to be 
$1.2 billion annually” (TPB press release,http://beltline.org/Portals/26/Concept%203%20Fact%20Sheet.pdf). 
You have heard that trains, buses and trolleys will save us time and money. Fulton County and DeKalb County have 
around 2 million residents and tons of business and industry, but they cannot keep their transit system afloat. 


Similarly, Gwinnett County has nearly 800,000 residents along with huge amounts of industrial and retail taxes, but 
they are cutting six morning and eight evening express bus trips every day. 


In fact, Gwinnett eliminated a significant portion of their Saturday bus service altogether, reducing frequency on the 
few routes that remained. 


It is the same story with ultra-dense Clayton County as their bus system collapses. 


Jack Smith currently serves on the regional Transit Implementation Board (TIB), “established in January 2009 to 
guide the implementation of Concept 3, the long-range transit vision for the Atlanta region developed by the board’s 
predecessor, the Transit Planning Board (TPB)” (www.transitboard.org/), assuring his regional government 
colleagues that Fayette County is on board when it comes to mass transit. 
 
Considering that our county only has a projected population of 160,860 by 2030, you have to wonder how high our 
tax burden will become with our commission chairman not objecting to a plan causing an extensive financial burden 
on us. 







Now our Chairman Smith contends (at least I have heard around Fayette he does) that he will never allow mass 
transit in Fayette County. 


OK, so why did he approve the Concept 3 plan that includes Fayette County rail and buses? 


Again, let it be said, I cannot find a single notation in the TBP or TIB meeting minutes where Smith is objecting to a 
plan calling for mass transit in our county. 


Chairman Smith had yet a third time to object to the plans for mass transit in Fayette County when the Atlanta 
Regional Commission (Smith serves as a Fayette representative on ARC) approved the Concept 3 transit plan, but 
he did the opposite. 


The Concept 3 transit plan clearly says, the “bus rapid transit regional transfer stations” are “Newnan, Peachtree City 
and Fayetteville,” and other projects include “GA 74 Expressway Bus, Peachtree City Commuter Rail and GA 85 
Arterial Rapid Bus” reporting “service hours and frequency: All day, minimum 15-minute peak frequency, 30-minute 
off-peak” (Project Information Sheets for Elements of Concept 3, Project Analysis Information Sheet, p. 47, Transit 
Planning Board, December 18, 2008). 


The GA 85 Arterial Rapid Bus service will connect Fayetteville to Riverdale and the large Southern Crescent Regional 
Transit Station, (Project Information Sheets for Elements of Concept 3, Project Analysis Information Sheet, p. 49, 
Transit Planning Board, December 18, 2008). 


How in the world would we sustain mass transit with only a fraction of the population of the other counties? Even 
worse, as Chairman Smith will tell you, the implementation plan calls for everyone, including Fayette County, to opt 
into the regional mass transit system with a proposed regional sale tax funding mechanism. 


Believe it or not, that means we in Fayette will be paying to cover the deficits of the larger counties. 


I cannot find a single notation in the regional meetings where Smith objects to this funding methodology. 


Up to this point, Fayette County has been the only county within the 10-county Atlanta Regional Commission not to 
opt into the failing regional mass transit system. Unfortunately, I fear our county commissioners could be silently 
pulling us into the mire. 


I do not want to see Fayette County get blown away with Peachtree City and Fayetteville marked as mass transit 
centers. I am certain we could never endure the costs. 


Van pooling works just fine in Fayette County, providing the ride with no cost to the county taxpayers. 


Smith and Maxwell both favored the TDK Extension and are currently working away on the bogus West Fayetteville 
Bypass. Are these really people we can trust when they say they oppose mass transit in our county? Their actions 
speak louder than their words. 


We need elected officials who will fight to save what we love about Fayette County, not give it away. 


[Steve Brown is the former mayor of Peachtree City. He can be reached at stevebrownptc@ureach.com.] 


 







Ralston: Regional transit agency still 
possible 


By Ariel Hart  


The Atlanta Journal-Constitution 


4:35 a.m. Thursday, February 17, 2011 
Will metro Atlanta get a regional transit system this year after all? 


For months, the topic has bedeviled legislators, infuriated urban advocates and threatened failure for 
the transportation tax referendum scheduled for 2012. But high-ranking legislative leaders said they 
simply weren’t ready to take it on this year. 


But when asked recently about the possibility, House Speaker David Ralston told The Atlanta 
Journal-Constitution that it’s not out of the question. 


“That’s certainly an option,” Ralston said. “I’m not saying it’s at the top or the bottom or in the middle 
right now.” 


In December, Rep. Donna Sheldon, R-Dacula, chairwoman of a commission that is working on the 
regional transit issue, said she expected no such legislation this year because the issue needs time 
and care. 


Ralston stressed that his new comments are not a turnabout from Sheldon’s. “I don’t want to suggest 
that it is a live probability,” he said. “It’s not a shift, it is that we are just looking at all of the 
reasonable options that we have this session. That is an option.” 


The criticism over the past 10 months stems from a referendum that is scheduled to take place in 
summer 2012, when metro Atlanta voters will decide whether to levy a 1 percent sales tax to fund a 
list of transportation projects in the 10-county region. 


The project list is to be finalized this fall by local elected officials. If mass transit is to have a serious 
shot at a piece of that pie, advocates argue, transit investments must be named on the list under a 
new regional transit agency -- not under MARTA or other parochial transit agencies, which may turn 
off some voters. They also hope it could address problems that Fulton and DeKalb advocates have 
with the referendum law, such as who pays for MARTA. 


Cobb and Gwinnett counties have their own transit systems and have been participating in the 
regional transit discussions. 


Elected officials of the Gwinnett Municipal Association have endorsed creating a new governing 
body. 


“We need a regional transit coordinating agency to provide for greater efficiency, help prioritize our 
transit needs and coordinate how we can best meet those needs on a regional basis,” Norcross 
Mayor Bucky Johnson, past president of the group, said in a statement released Wednesday. He 
also is the nonvoting chairman of the executive committee that will draft the region's project list. 







Atlanta City Councilman C.T. Martin said creating the regional agency this year would alleviate some 
of his concerns about the referendum law -- but the devil was in the details. 


“I still would have to know how it’s been designed,” Martin said. 


Indeed, creating a new transit agency could do little more than create a new layer of bureaucracy, 
leaving the current players unchanged beneath it. Or it could eliminate MARTA and other agencies 
and put all their operations, expansion and planning within one new entity. 


Ralston said that it was too early to say where Atlanta would fall in that spectrum. While having a 
regional agency operate transit was a possibility, he said, "What’s important to me is that we have an 
agency, whether it’s a new agency or an existing agency that’s modified, that has a strong planning 
component." 


Atlanta Mayor Kasim Reed heads a regional group that has suggested regional transit legislation to 
Sheldon’s commission, which will meet March 9. That legislation suggests a model like Chicago's, 
where the parochial agencies may stay intact with a regional agency above them. The former head 
of Chicago's agency, Steve Schlickman, recently left it partly because of urban-suburban tensions 
over resources, and he said having a single unified system is preferable. 


Reed has not lost hope the Legislature will come around. 


Told of Ralston’s latest comments, Reed smiled slightly. “It’s going to be a gardening process,” he 
said, “where you’re just going to have to stay at nurturing relationships, making sure you’ve got a 
solid piece of legislation, and then watching the rhythm.” 


 







County of Fayette; 


State of Georgia  


 


RESOLUTION  2011 - 06 


 


A RESOLUTION ON “FISCAL RESPONSIBILITY AND 


PROTECTING FAYETTE COUNTY’S QUALITY OF LIFE” 


REQUESTING THE ELIMINATION OF ALL PLANNED 


PUBLIC MASS TRANSIT PROJECTS WITHIN FAYETTE 


COUNTY’S BOUNDARIES, INCLUDING CONCEPT 3, PLAN 


2040 AND ALL OTHER PLANS THAT INCLUDE MASS 


TRANSIT.  
 


WHEREAS, an overwhelming number of Fayette County citizens, as well as an 


overwhelming number of citizens across Metropolitan Atlanta,  choose not to take mass 


transit despite all its supposed advantages; and 


 


WHEREAS, no bus or light rail system in the United States is self sustaining as with 


systems within Metropolitan Atlanta, requiring enormous subsidies, while eliminating routes 


and personnel in the face of declining revenues; and 


 


WHEREAS, the citizens of Fayette County will still have to continually pay for 


capital road projects as well as road paving and maintenance regardless of the existence of 


mass transit; and 


 


WHEREAS, mass transit is not as dependable, convenient or comfortable as private 


transportation and provides no apparent time savings, especially in Fayette County; and 


 


WHEREAS, it is fiscally impractical to attempt to justify mass transit for the 199 


square mile land mass of Fayette County with a population of only 105,000, projected to 


reach only 179,000 by 2030, making the cost per rider extremely cost prohibitive with 


sustainability through the county’s budget being impossible; and 


 


WHEREAS, the normal transit bus in Georgia fills only 22 percent of its total daily 


seating capacity, and counting standing room they operate an average of about one-sixth full 


and the Atlanta rail system fills an average of 39 percent of its total daily seating capacity, but 


counting its ample standing-room capacity it operates only about one-eighth full, mass transit 


provides no more energy efficiency or environmental protection than the average Sport Utility 


Vehicle (SUV); and 


 


WHEREAS, it is the duty of all jurisdictions in Fayette County to focus on protecting 


those assets, residential density remaining low, our excellent school system, our less 


congested roads, our green spaces and our exceptional commitment to public safety, which 


keeps our community strong and able to attract high paying jobs to Fayette County, avoiding 


attempts to mimic more rampant growth patterns in other areas; 


 


BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED THAT the Fayette County Board of 


Commissioners does hereby formally request (1) the removal of any and all planned public 


mass transit projects within the boundaries of Fayette County from all plans, tables and maps 


with the Federal Government, State of Georgia and Atlanta Regional Commission, (2) Fayette 







County not be subject to any type of regional transit authority and (3) Fayette County be 


relieved of any financial burden for funding regional mass transit beyond the "Transportation 


Investment Act of 2010" (HB 277) formulas which our representatives to the Atlanta 


Regional Commission have already approved through the Regional Transportation 


Roundtable voting. 


.                                         


 So resolved this ___day of _______________, 2011, by the 


 


     


       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


 FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


Attest:       _____________________________ 


       Herbert E. Frady, Chairman 


_____________________________ 


Clerk/Deputy Clerk 


 


 





		Commissioners- Fiscal Responsibility Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Fiscal Responsibility Backup

		Commissioners- Fiscal Responsibility Backup-1.pdf

		Commissioners- Fiscal Responsibility Backup

		Commissioners- Fiscal Responsibility Backup.pdf

		Backup 1.pdf

		Backup 2

		Resolution 2011-06- Backup 3



		Microsoft Word - 10-02-24-10 Smith Maxwell Hearn Mass Transit Buses Election

		Microsoft Word - Ralston on Regional Transit Authority














COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Commissioners County Administrator Jack Krakeel


Discussion of proposed transportation projects to be submitted to the Atlanta Regional Roundtable for consideration under the 


Transportation Investment Act.


The staff of the County and the municipalities have worked to compile a list of transportation projects for submission to the Atlanta 


Regional Commission Roundtable in compliance with House Bill 277, known as the Transportation Investment Act which provides for a 


regional special purpose local option sales tax referendum in 2012. The Board received the draft list earlier and now needs to review the 


list together to give staff direction on any possible changes. 


 


The final list of projects is due to ARC by March 30. The Board of Commissioners will meet with city officials to reach consensus on the 


final list to be submitted. 


 


No action is required.  Staff requests the Board to give direction on how to proceed with this issue. The Board will vote on the final list at 


their March 24 meeting.


Not applicable.


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Old BusinessWednesday, March 2, 2011








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Commissioners County Administrator Jack Krakeel


Discussion of Senate Bill 86 which relates to eliminating some statewide planning mandates.


In Georgia, comprehensive plans are developed every 10 years by counties and cities in an effort to comply with state law, and they are 


intended to guide policy and development decisions in local communities.  Communities must update their plans every five years and be 


designated a Qualified Local Government in order to be able to receive state grants, loans, permits, and other financial assistance .  


However, state requirements are often too cumbersome for local governments, come with significant taxpayers' expense, and the 


resulting plans are rarely considered again.   


 


Senate Bill 86 and House Bill 260 are intended to simplify government, promote innovation, and allow cities and counties to develop a 


planning process that encourages their business and citizens to work with them to set their own vision and develop a plan to meet it.  


 


These bills would diminish the burden on local governments by changing mandated requirements. The Association County 


Commissioners of Georgia (ACCG) and the Georgia Municipal Association (GMA) have supported the introduction of Senate Bill 86 for 


consideration.  The Atlanta Regional Commission and the Georgia Department of Community Affairs (DCA) are opposing Senate Bill 86. 


 


No action is required.  Staff does request the Board to provide direction on how to proceed with this issue.


Not applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


New BusinessWednesday, March 2, 2011





















		Commissioners- Senate Bill 86 Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Senate Bill 86 Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Human Resources Connie Boehnke


Discussion with Human Resources staff regarding possible changes in the County's self-insured employee health plan in preparation for 


the annual renewal date of June 1.


The County's health insurance program is renewable on June 1st each year.  In 2010 the County changed from a "fully insured" plan with 


Blue Cross/Blue Shield to a "self insured" health benefit plan.  Through Scott Burrell of Pacific General, the County engaged the services 


of Meritain Health as Third Party Administrator for health, dental, vision and flexible spending accounts.   


 


Items of discussion for consideration will include: 


     -Plan amendments to improve how the medical plan handles the pre-certification process as it relates to sleep studies and oncology 


      services. 


     -Review of the renewal data and recommendation of plan options. 


     -Recommendations on final plan and employee contributions. 


     -Consideration of replacing CIGNA as the Stop Loss carrier as they are exiting the Stop Loss market. 


 


    


 


          


Approval to place item on March 10, 2011 Board of Commissioners consent agenda for approval of staff's recommendations.


Health insurance and other benefits are budgeted annually.  Costs are shared by the employee and the County.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessWednesday, March 2, 2011

























		Human Resources- Health Insurance Agenda Request File.pdf

		Human Resources- Health Insurance Backup

		SKMBT_C25211022311540.pdf

		Human Resources- Health Insurance Backup

		Summary of Benefits 2.21.2011.pdf

		Contribution Summary 2.21.2011

		2011 Three Tier Proposal 2.21.2011










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Human Resources Lewis Patterson


Consideration of staff's request for updates and minor modifications to various Human Resources policies.  This item was tabled from the 


December 9, 2010 meeting pending further clarification.


The current Policies and Procedures Manual was approved by the Board of Commissioners at their January 22, 2009 meeting.  Since 


that time, typographical and page setup errors have been discovered that need to be corrected.  Several policies require minor additions 


and/or deletions to resolve discrepancies.  A summary of the actual changes are provided in the backup documentation. 


 


Most of these changes are not substantiative and are of a "housekeeping" nature.


Approval to place item on March 10, 2011 Board of Commissioners consent agenda for approval of staff's recommended cleanup and 


updates to Human Resources Policies in the County Policies and Procedures Manual.


Not applicable.


Wednesday, December 1, 2010


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessWednesday, March 2, 2011







HR – COMPENSATION 
Demotions 


408.09 
 
PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for handling personnel issues with respect to 
demotions. 
 
POLICY 
 
There shall be a consistent and uniform process for the demotion of a County employee. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 
Compensation 
 
When an employee is demoted as a result of a disciplinary action, they shall receive a salary 
decrease of 10% or be placed at the minimum of the pay grade, whichever is less.  In the event an 
employee requests a voluntary demotion, their salary reduction will be equal to the percentage of 
any promotional increase they received.  In the event an employee is above the pay range of the 
pay grade to which they are requested to be demoted to, the employee shall be placed at the end 
of the pay scale of that pay grade.  Demotion salary decreases shall be effective on the first day of 
the next pay period. 
 
Probationary Period 
 
A twelve-month probationary period shall be in effect for all demotions. 
 
Evaluation 
 
Whenever an employee is demoted to a new position classification his/her evaluation date shall 
be adjusted to the effective date of the demotion and shall thereafter become the date used for 
evaluation purposes.  a demotion evaluation will be due one year after the new effective date.  
Thereafter, beginning with the next calendar year, the employee will receive an annual evaluation 
conducted in the time frame designated by the County.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                        Approved:  01/22/2009 
  







HR – COMPENSATION 
Performance Pay 


408.13 
PURPOSE 
 
Recognize individual performance. 
  
POLICY 
 
The Board of Commissioners may establish an amount of Performance Pay, by department, 
during the budget process.  The Board of Commissioners will make an annual determination as to 
whether or not funds will be made available for performance pay and if so, the amount of funds 
that will be made available for that purpose. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 
1. Department Heads will forward the completed annual performance evaluations to Human 


Resources by December 15th each year.  Employees will receive an annual evaluation 
conducted in the time frame designated by the County.  Supervisors will enter a 
completed performance appraisal into Munis by the established deadline each calendar 
year. 


 
2. Human Resources will compile a summary of the evaluation data and forward it to the 


County Administrator. for review with the Board of Commissioners who shall determine 
if and what amount of performance pay may be made available for eligible employees. 


 
3. Department Heads will communicate the decision of the Board of Commissioners to their 


employees.  
 
Eligibility Period 
 
1. Twelve months - January 1 through December 31. 
 
Employee Eligibility 
 
1. Employee must have received an evaluation by December 31st of the during the 


preceding year and evaluation period which is documented as received in Human 
Resources (if applicable) as being entered into Munis; and 


 
2. Employee must be classified as regular full-time and hired for an indefinite period of time 


without a stated limitation as to length of service and who is employed to work forty (40) 
hours per week or its equivalency; 


 
3. Employee who have not attained has not reached the end of their pay scale and; 
 
4. Employee performance pay and promotional salary increases do not exceed 10% in a 6 


month period; and 
 
5. Employee must be employed on the date of the Performance Pay is distributed. 
 
 







 
Effective and Process Date 
 
1. Approved performance pay shall be processed and become effective in accordance with 


the time frame designated by the County. during the first quarter of the year following the 
submitted December 31st annual evaluation. 


 
                                 Approved:  01/22/2009 
 







HR – COMPENSATION 
Promotion 


408.15 
 
PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for handling personnel issues with respect to 
promotions. 
 
POLICY 
 
There shall be a consistent and uniform process for the promotion of a County employee. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 
Standards of Employment 
 
Applicants must meet the specifications of the position as defined in the classification plan.  
Other reasonable minimum standards for the position may be established including, but not 
limited to, promotional examinations as established by the County Administrator with the advice 
of the Director of Human Resources and the Department Head.  
 
Compensation 
 
When an employee is promoted, he/she shall receive a minimum salary increase of 10%.  
Whenever an employee receives performance pay within a six month period prior to receiving a 
promotion, said employee shall be limited to a maximum salary increase of 10% for both changes 
(performance pay and promotion), or shall be classified at the minimum of the pay grade, 
whichever is greater.  
 
Probationary Period 
 
A twelve-month probationary period shall be in effect for all promotions. 
 
Evaluation 
 
Whenever an employee is promoted to a new position classification his/her evaluation date shall 
be adjusted to the effective date of the promotion and shall thereafter become the date used for 
evaluation purposes. a promotion evaluation will be due one year after the new effective date.  
Thereafter, beginning with the next calendar year, the employee will receive an annual evaluation 
conducted in the time frame designated by the County. 
  
 
Selection 
 
A promotion will be granted upon recommendation of the Department Head, Division Director 
and approval of Human Resources.  
 
 


               
Approved:  01/22/2009 







FAYETTE COUNTY               
HR – PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL 


Performance Appraisal 
412.01 


 
PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of an annual employee evaluation is to have constructive, open, two-way communication 
that will document and accomplish the following: 
 


♦ Recognize and highlight strengths and achievements; Provide positive feed back; and motivate. 
 
♦ Identify areas that could use improvement, and provide specific ways (plans/training) to improve 


performance. 
 
♦ Help to facilitate the achievement of organizational goals. 
 
♦  Clarify responsibilities and performance expectations.  Determine if job responsibilities are current 


and relevant.  Modify job description if necessary. 
 
♦ Discuss and provide guidance for career growth. 
 
♦ Enhance rapport and working relationship between Management and employee. 
 
♦ If applicable, support disciplinary or other legal issues. 
 
♦ Review County and department policies and procedures. 


 
 
POLICY 
 
It is the policy of Fayette County that conducting a regular dialogue between supervisors and their 
subordinates serves to improve the efficiency of county government by clarifying performance 
expectations and focusing the efforts of the staff on those outcomes and services which advance the 
mission of the organization.  Consequently, annual evaluations will be conducted for all regular full time 
employees. 
 
Although employee evaluation should be an ongoing process, the annual review meeting should be one of 
the most important communications that a manager has with an employee all year.  Therefore, it is 
extremely important to be prepared by keeping notes during the year, be thorough, be honest, and be fair.  
Consider the employee's entire performance and not just the most recent or a single event that stands out.  
Communication is to transpire with the employee to ensure they are informed about the specific job 
responsibilities and goals upon which they will be evaluated on during the evaluation year, January to 
December.  
 
 
 
 
 
 







PROCEDURE 
 
Timetable for Performance Appraisals 
 
1. Employees shall have a performance appraisal conducted prior to the end of the initial 12 month 


probationary period of employment.  It is recommended that a newly hired employee’s 
performance be evaluated after six (6) months in the position and close to the end of their 
probationary period. 


 
2. Performance will be reviewed annually in accordance with the time frame designated by the 


County and entered into Munis. during October and November for the current calendar year.  A 
completed performance appraisal will be submitted by December 10th of each calendar year and 
be documented as being received by Human Resources. 


 
3. The review date is changed to the effective date of the promotion, demotion, reclassification, or in 


case of a transfer, when the job title or pay grade changes.  When an employee is promoted, 
demoted, reclassified, or in the case of a transfer, when their job title or pay grade changes, the  
appropriate evaluation will be conducted one year from the effective date of the respective 
personnel action.  Thereafter, beginning with the next calendar year, the employee’s annual 
evaluation will be conducted in the time frame designated by the County. 


 
4. If an employee accepts a lateral transfer, to the same job title or pay grade, the annual review date 


will remain the same.   
 
5. If a supervisor vacates a position, the supervisor is required to submit performance appraisals on 


all employees under his/her supervision who have not been evaluated within the previous six (6) 
month period. 


 
Review Process 
 
1. Supervisors should prepare employees for periodic performance appraisal sessions by 
 scheduling them 10 to 14 days in advance and by asking the subordinate to complete a 
 separate self-assessment prior to the session.  The supervisor will complete an employee 
 evaluation for each employee.  The supervisor will consolidate and reconcile the results  of the 
 supervisor’s and subordinate’s assessments.  The employee’s self-assessment will be 
 returned to the employee.  All employees should be evaluated using this form.  For each 
 category of appraisal, check the appropriate line or box.  Checks are converted to  numeric scores 
 at the end. 
 
2. The same form will be used for all employees, except that employees who do not have 
 supervisory responsibilities will not use page 6; employees who have supervisory 
 responsibilities  will use page 6.  In using this instrument, the supervisor should consider  the 
 extent to which the employee meets the expected standards for the major job duties and factors 
 listed.  Performance ratings should not be made for job behaviors that were not observed  during 
 the appraisal period, or which were not identified as a performance appraisal factor prior to 
 the review period. Reviewers should indicate the employee’s level of performance by 
 checking the appropriate box.  Although some judgment is required in assessing overall 
 performance, summary findings for each section should  reflect the ratings assigned in sub-
 categories. All employees should complete a self-assessment prior to the face-to-face 
 interview. Employees’ self-assessments will not be retained after the appraisal interview, or 
 become a part of their files. 







 
3. The appraisal process will be conducted in electronic format.  The supervisor will complete the 


appraisal electronically and review it with the employee.  The supervisor will provide the 
employee with an opportunity to add any comments and to electronically sign the performance 
appraisal.  The electronic signature will acknowledge that the employee has read and discussed 
the annual review with their supervisor and that they may or may not agree with all of it contents.  
Employees will be instructed on how they can access their performance appraisal electronically 
from home and print their own copy if they so desire.  The county will provide computer access 
to those individuals who do not have internet access at home.    


 
Ratings 
 
1. The ratings shall be based upon the following three (3) levels of performance: 


 
 Development Needed – means performance is frequently below expected standards and  needs 
 improvement.  Characteristic performance in this category is of the type that clearly fails to meet 
 expected standards. 
 
 Meets Expectations – means performance which meets expected standards.  Overall, work is 
 acceptable and rarely needs improvement. 
 
 Exceeds Expectations – means performance of an exceptional nature.  Performance exceeds 
 expectations when it consistently or frequently surpasses expected standards. 


 
2. EVALUATION INDICATING “DEVELOPMENT NEEDED” - A performance score of   


63 59 or below for non-supervisory employees or 87 83 and below for supervisory 
employees shall be deemed “development needed” and shall result in the employee being 
placed on performance probation for 3 months.  The Department Head shall provide the 
employee with a plan outlining specific steps on how to improve their overall 
performance.  The employee shall then be reviewed in 30 day increments.  At the end of 
the 3 months a determination will be made as to the improvement of work and whether to 
retain or dismiss the employee. 


 
Scoring 


 
Evaluators should make an overall determination of performance level for each of the ten (or eight for 
non-supervisory personnel) categories.  An overall determination for each of the ten categories will be 
valued as follows: a determination of “Development Needed” will receive a score of one (1), “Meets 
Expectations” will receive a score of two (2), and “Exceeds Expectations” will receive a score of three 
(3). 
 
Compensation Distribution and Eligibility 
 
1. The Board of Commissioners will make an annual determination as to whether or not funds will 
 be made available for performance pay and if so, the amount of funds that will be made available 
 for that purpose. 
 
2. Performance Pay will be distributed to employees no later than the month of March following the 


year for which the appraisal was conducted.  shall be processed and become effective in 
accordance with the time frame designated by the County. 







 
3. The employee must have been employed prior to January 1st of the evaluation year. 
 
4. The employee must have been evaluated as of November 30th of the evaluation period and the 


evaluation must be documented as being received in Human Resources by the deadline.   received 
an evaluation during the evaluation period which is documented as being entered into Munis. 


 
5. The employee must be employed on the date that Performance Pay is distributed and the 
 employee must not have attained the end of their pay scale. 
 
6. Promotion and Performance Pay will continue to be limited to a maximum of 10% in a six (6) 
 month period. 
 
 
Confidentiality of Performance Appraisal 
 
Performance appraisal documents, ratings and final scores are personal matters of business between the 
employee and management.  Supervisory/management personnel shall endeavor to maintain the 
confidentiality of all performance appraisals to the best of their abilities.  It is recognized that disclosure 
under certain circumstances, such as binding legal requests or administrative and/or employment related 
requests, would be required. 


 
Changes in Performance Appraisal 
 
In the event of extenuating circumstances, should a Department Director request a change of a 
performance appraisal after it has been forwarded to Human Resources, that request shall be submitted in 
writing and shall explain in detail the reason(s) for the change.  The Human Resources Director shall 
make requested changes only after it has been demonstrated that such changes have been communicated 
by the Department Director/Elected Official to the respective employee and that the employee has 
received a copy of the changed performance appraisal document.  It will be the department's 
responsibility to forward a copy of the revised/changed performance appraisal document to the respective 
employee. 
 
 







HR – EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 
Training 


416.01 
 
PURPOSE 
 
Establish training to meet position requirements, existence of maintaining a quality workforce, 
and assisting in the progress in skill development and employee advancement. 
 
POLICY 
 
It shall be the responsibility of the Department of Human Resources to pursue and promote, up-
to-date, applicable training programs in accordance with the County Administrator, 
division/department directors, supervisors, and employees. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 
Each employee will be required to participate in the annually established hours of training.  
Required hours of training for new employees will be prorated on the basis of their employment 
date.  This requirement is inclusive to all employee evaluations. 
 
Registration: 
 
Employees enrolling in a course must have their supervisor’s approval.  Enrollment may be 
completed by submitting a request to the designated employee within your department, or 
submitted on the designated registration form for County training accessing Munis Self Service 
and then clicking on Training Opportunities within the specified time frame for each course.  
Munis Self Service will generate an email to the employee confirming their enrollment selection. 
 
Each employee will receive a confirmation of enrollment at least 5 days prior to the class.  This 
will be the final notification communicated. 
 
Required Courses: 
 
Required training by position--A roster of all required courses will be included in the New 
Employee Orientation packet. 
  
Required Equivalency Courses: 
 
Required training for which the employee may select an equivalent course--A roster of all 
equivalency required courses will be included in the New Employee Orientation packet.  
 
Elective Courses: 
 
Suggested elective courses by position--A roster of all elective courses will be included in the 
New Employee Orientation packet. 
 
Number of Participants: 
 
Classes will require a minimum and a maximum number of participants depending upon course 
material.  All technical (computer training) classes carry a minimum registration requirement of 







five, with a maximum of nine participants. 
 
Cancellation Procedures: 
 
Cancellations will be accepted only in the event of an unavoidable situation.  Cancellations must 
be received "in writing" prior to the date of the scheduled course.  Every effort should be 
attempted to send an alternate.  Alternate’s name shall be sent to the Department of Human 
Resources.  Although most courses require no enrollment fee, a cancellation fee may be imposed 
if the cancellation procedure is not adhered to.   
 
Computer training cancellations must be received "in writing" no later than 15 working days prior 
to the date of the scheduled training.  Failure to do so WILL result in a $100 (or applicable fee) 
charge-back to the employee’s department to defray the cost of training. 
 


COURSE EXEMPTIONS & OFF-SITE TRAINING CREDIT REQUESTS 
 
Course Exemptions: 
 
An exemption from a required course may be granted only after the Division/Department 
Director or employee submits the attached “Fayette County Training Credit” form accompanied 
by the required documentation of criteria to the Department of Human Resources. 
 
Off-Site Training: 
 
Request for Off-site training: 
ALL off-site training must be approved by the appropriate Division/Department Head prior to 
registration and attendance.  
 
Training Synopsis: 
 
A brief overview (narrative) of off-site training must be submitted on the Training Synopsis form 
by the employee.  The original shall be retained by the Division/Department Director and a copy 
shall be forwarded to the Department of Human Resources within ten working days of the off-site 
training.  Excluded are off-site training requests submitted for actual certification tests. 
 
Presenter Synopsis: 
 
Employees who are asked to facilitate or conduct training sessions for companies, conferences, 
cities or counties outside Fayette County's training responsibility, shall complete a brief overview 
(narrative) of the training facilitated.  The original shall be submitted to the Division/Department 
Director and a copy shall be forwarded to the Department of Human Resources within ten 
working days of the training conducted. 
 
 
Credit Requests: 
 
Training credit for off-site trainer/training credit (not conducted by Fayette County) must be 
applied for by completing a "Fayette County Training Credit" form, with all required 
documentation of criteria attached. 
 
Application of Training Credit: 







 
It is the responsibility of the Division/Department Director and/or employee to forward 
documentation of participation in off-site training to the Department of Human Resources on the 
appropriate Training Credit Request form, so that accurate training credit and records can be 
maintained.  Following review of credit requests the Department of Human Resources shall 
forward a Training Credit form to the employee indicating credit awarded or denial of training 
credit based on job specific applicability.  Training credit notification will include course title, 
date and hours of credit awarded to employee's training history (hour for hour may not be 
applied).  All training credits should be requested within 60 days of training.  Requests after 60 
days will not be considered. 
 
Training Records 
 
Training records will be maintained in the Department of Human Resources for all employees.  
Division/Department Directors and employees may request, in writing, a copy of an employee’s 
training record.  A copy of the employee's training record will be returned within 5 working days 
of request.  can view and print their training records at any time by accessing Munis Self Service 
and clicking on Training Opportunities and then View My Training.  
 
Location of Training 
 
Every effort will be made to provide required and requested on-site training.  In the event travel is 
required, requests should be submitted to the employee's Division/Department Director for 
approval. 
 
 
 
 
 


                          Approved:  01/22/2009 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                   







HR – LEAVE MANAGEMENT 
Annual Leave  


420.03 
 
PURPOSE 
 
Annual leave is a type of paid leave accrued by an employee based on length of service and 
utilized under certain conditions.  Annual leave is considered a benefit for eligible employees.   
Employees are eligible to take accrued annual leave from the date of employment.  No employee 
may take annual leave in excess of the number of hours he/she has accrued. Employees separating 
from County employment, who have been employed a minimum of three (3) months, shall be 
paid for unused annual leave, up to the allowed maximum, upon retirement, resignation, 
termination or death.  
 
Provide guidelines for the request and assignment of annual leave. 
 
POLICY 
 
There shall be a consistent process for the accrual and use of annual leave of regular full-time and 
part-time County employees. 
 
PROCEDURE 
    
Eligibility for Annual Leave 
 
All regular full-time and regular part-time employees of Fayette County shall be eligible to accrue 
annual leave. Annual leave shall be charged to the nearest quarter hour. 
 
Accrual Rate of Annual Leave 
 
Annual leave for regular full-time employees shall be calculated on a per hour basis in 
accordance with the following schedule: 
 
       40 Hr. Workweek  43 Hr. Workweek     53 Hr. 
Workweek 
Years of Service Per Hr. Days/year  Per Hr. Days/year  Per Hr. Shifts/year


Up to 1 .0231 6  .0615 16  .0696 8 
         


1 up to 4 .0462 12  .0846 22  .0957 11 
         


5 up to 9 .0577 15  .0961 25  .1088 12.5 
         


10 up to 20 .0692 18  .1076 28  .1219 14 
         


20+ years .0808 21  .1192 31  .1349 15.5 
 
Annual leave accruals for employees on a 43-hour workweek or a 24-hour duty schedule include 
holiday accrual. 
 







Regular part-time employees who work thirty (30) hours or more but less than forty (40) hours 
during a work period shall accrue annual leave at the rate of one-half (() (1/2) the schedule of 
regular full-time employees. 
 
Request for Annual Leave 
 
The earliest possible notice of intent to take annual leave shall be given by employees who are 
eligible to take annual leave.  A request for annual leave shall be submitted to the employee's 
immediate supervisor a minimum of two weeks in advance.  Department heads may grant annual 
leave with a shorter notice if the work load of the department permits.  A Department may 
designate an annual sign up period. 
 
Department heads shall be responsible for the scheduling of annual leave of employees without 
decreasing the operating efficiency of the department.  The annual leave schedule shall be 
arranged in each department so that insofar as practicable, the department can function without 
hiring temporary help. 
 
Annual Leave Carryover 
 
Employees cannot accrue annual leave beyond the following year.  For example, employees who 
accrue annual leave from January through and including December 2007 cannot carry over that 
accrued leave beyond December 2008. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


                   
Approved: 01/22/2009 







HR – LEAVE MANAGEMENT 
Bereavement 


420.05 
 
PURPOSE 
 
Bereavement leave shall be defined as leave with pay granted to regular full-time and regular 
part-time employees only upon the death of a member of the immediate family.  
 
POLICY 
 
There shall be a consistent process for granting bereavement leave to regular full-time and part-
time employees. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 
Bereavement leave shall be granted by the department head if requested by the employee for a 
period not to exceed two (2) consecutive working days following the death of a member of an 
employee's immediate family. Bereavement leave may be extended by the County Administrator 
in unusual circumstances.  Bereavement leave shall commence upon notification and approval by 
the department head.  In the event of multiple deaths in the employee's immediate family, each 
death shall be treated separately and the Bereavement leave shall be granted accordingly. 
 
If more than the allotted number of days leave is required, or if leave is desired for a death other 
than the immediate family, annual leave, leave without pay or accrued compensatory time may be 
used.  Advance emergency leave may be requested. 
 
Public Safety Department employees on a 24-hour duty schedule shall be granted bereavement 
leave not to exceed 24-hours. 
    
 
Immediate Family Member 
 
Immediate family is defined as: spouse, parent, guardian, brother, sister, son, daughter, son-in-
law, daughter-in-law, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, grandparent, 
grandchild, step-parents and step-children.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


                
Approved:1/22/2009 


 







HR – ATTENDANCE   
Time and Attendance Policy 


432.01 
 
PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this policy is to set standards for time and attendance issues in regards to non-
exempt employees and to also outline disciplinary actions that will be used to enforce these 
standards.  
 
POLICY 
 
There shall be a consistent process for non-exempt employees to clock in and clock out for their 
scheduled work period. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 
Accurately reporting time is the responsibility of every employee.  Fayette County must keep an 
accurate record of time worked in order to calculate employee pay and benefits.  All employees 
will be required to clock in at the beginning and clock out at the end of their scheduled work 
period.  Each employee must clock himself/herself in or out.  Fayette County requires that all 
hourly or non-exempt employees, except poll workers and bailiffs, clock in and out at a time 
reporting device.  Exempt employees will be required to electronically record their arrivals and 
departures for security purposes as a part of the County’s Continuity of Operations Plan.  Their 
actual compensation will be determined by salary, not hours worked. 
 
The normal working hours for employees shall be as scheduled by the various 
Agency/Department Directors, with such schedules to be established so that the needs of the 
department to deliver services to the citizens are met.  Such schedules shall be approved by the 
County Administrator.  Employees are expected to be at their work location and ready to begin 
work at the beginning of their work schedule.  The meal periods should be scheduled to allow for 
continuous staffing of offices with at least one person, except where more personnel are required 
to be on duty. 
  
Recording Time  
 
All payroll administrators are to adhere to the payroll policies and procedures to maintain 
accurate records for reporting and auditing of time.  Payroll administrators are responsible for 
editing and reviewing missed punches, employee sick leave, vacation and other paid absences on 
a daily basis.  Employees without access to the time and attendance system can review their time 
upon request with their payroll administrator.  To ensure accurate reporting, all employees must 
sign their timesheet prior to payroll processing of those hours.  All payroll documentation must be 
approved and forwarded to human resources for processing.   
 
1. Not Clocking In - Employees that do not clock in or out must sign in at the designated 


area for their department at their required start and end time.  Failure to properly record 
time may result in lost wages and disciplinary action up to and including discharge.   


 
2. Miss Rule - Employees are expected to personally clock in and out each workday at their 


designated time and place using proper procedures.  If an employee fails to clock in 







and/or out more than three (3) times within thirty (30) consecutive work days, the 
employee will be subject to disciplinary action. 


 
3. Wrongful Clocking In/Out - Fayette County will consider the action of one employee 


clocking in or out for another employee as an act of fraud.  Improper actions include but 
are not limited to: clocking in or out for another employee, impersonation of one’s 
identity for any purpose and/or any action that is defined by law as illegal.  


 
Payroll Calculations  
 
The automated time and attendance system is programmed to calculate the hours on timecards in 
accordance with the Fayette County Policies and Procedures and the Fair Labor Standards Act 
(FLSA), Section 406, Examples of Non-compensable Time. 
 
1. Clock-ins - The time system rounds the employee’s punch in time to the start time of the 


scheduled work period if the employee punches in within seven minutes prior to their 
scheduled start time.  Example:  If an employee clocks in between 7:53-8:00 8:07, they 
will be paid as arriving at 8:00. 


 
2. Clock-outs - The time system rounds the employee’s punch out time to the end time of 


the scheduled work period if the employee punches out within seven minutes after the 
end of their scheduled shift.  Example:  If an employee clocks out between 4:53-5:07, 
they will be paid as leaving at 5:00. 


 
Time waiting to clock in or out is considered non-compensable time. 


 
3. Late Arrivals – Time recorded after the scheduled start time will be considered late and 


the employee will be subject to disciplinary action.   
 
Request for Leave Time  
 
The earliest possible notice of intent to take leave shall be given by the employee.  All requests 
for leave shall be submitted to the employee’s immediate supervisor at least two weeks in 
advance.  Department heads may grant leave with a shorter notice if the work load of the 
department permits.  A copy of the leave request form must be attached to the department’s 
payroll for the appropriate time period.  Failure to submit forms for approved leave within the 
appropriate pay period will result in loss of wages. 
 
Tardiness and Absences  
 
Vacation and compensatory time can not be used to compensate the employee for wages lost due 
to late arrivals, early departures and unauthorized absences. 
 
Type      Description 
 
Late Arrival  
  


• Reporting to work station after the start time of the scheduled 
work period; 


• Returning to work station late from lunch.   
Early Departure • Leaving work station and/or clocking out before normal 


scheduled work period or assigned lunch period  







No call/no show • Not reporting to work at beginning of normal scheduled work 
period; 


• Failure to notify supervisor of absence no later than 1 hour prior 
to reporting time; 


• Failure to report to work for three (3) consecutive work days. 
Authorized Absence
  


• Personal illness – a doctor’s statement may be required;  
• Death in family – if covered by Funeral Leave;  
• Jury Duty and other court appearances required by law;  
• Military leave; 
• Event covered under the Family And Medical Leave Act;  
• County paid vacations and holidays; 
• Compensatory time;  
• Other absences approved by supervisor. 


Unauthorized 
Absence 


• Absence from the job during a scheduled work period without 
approval of the employee’s supervisor or department head. 


 
Unauthorized Time Off Corrective Process  
 
Unauthorized time away from work, either tardy or absent, shall be subject to the following 
corrective actions: 
 
Occurrence Type    Accumulation Period   Corrective  
 
Late Arrivals, Early 
Departures, 
Unauthorized 
Absences 


3 occurrences within 3 consecutive months  
4 occurrences within 12 consecutive months 
5 occurrences within 12 consecutive months 
6 occurrences within 12 consecutive months


- verbal reprimand   
- written reprimand   
- suspension   
- termination 


No call/no show 1st occurrence within 12 consecutive 
months  
2nd occurrence within 12 consecutive 
months  
3rd occurrence within 12 consecutive 
months 


- written reprimand   
- suspension   
- termination 


 
* In order to be excluded from corrective action, employees with qualifying events must fulfill 
their reporting and status update requirements as outlined in the County’s FMLA Policy. 
 
Overtime/Compensatory Time 
 
All overtime/compensatory time must have supervisor’s approval prior to commencing the work.  
Overtime/compensatory time must have the approval of the County Administrator.  No 
overtime/compensatory time shall be paid to employees and other parties exempt from, or not 
covered by, FLSA. 
 
Overtime is paid to all non-exempt employees in accordance with federal and state wage and hour 
restrictions.  Overtime pay is based on actual hours worked.  Time off for sick leave, 
compensatory time or leave without pay will not be considered hours worked for purposes of 
performing overtime calculations. 
  
Attendance at Training Classes or Meetings  







 
Employees scheduled to attend a training class or meeting at the start or end of their normal 
scheduled work period, at an onsite location other than their normal work area, should clock in at 
the designated time clock for that area.  If the training or meeting is offsite, time will be manually 
entered for that day by the payroll administrator.  These exceptions should be approved in 
advance by the employee’s supervisor.  
 
Lunch Period  
 
The County designates a specific lunch period for each employee.  Employees who take extended 
lunch periods will be subject to disciplinary action and will not be compensated for time not 
worked unless prior approval has been granted. 
 
Holiday Pay  
 
In order to receive Holiday Pay, employees must work their scheduled hours before and after the 
holiday, or be on paid leave on the days before and after the holiday.  
 
Violations  
 
Clocking in or out for another employee will result in termination for all employees involved.  All 
County employees are expected to abide by this policy and record their work hours.  Failure to do 
so will result in disciplinary action up to and including discharge. 
 
Editing timecards in order to falsify an employee’s time will result in termination for all 
employees involved. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Approved:  01/22/200 







FAYETTE COUNTY  
HR – SAFETY  


Workers’ Compensation Policy  
440.15  


PURPOSE 
  
Workers’ Compensation is a benefit program paid for by the County which provides the 
employee with certain medical and lost income benefits if they become injured by an accident in 
the performance of their job duties.  It also provides benefits to you the employee’s dependent(s) 
if you they die as a result of the a job-related accident/ or injury. 
  
An employee may elect to receive compensation for from accrued leave in lieu of workers’ 
compensation benefits. 
  
Time spent on worker’s compensation leave shall not be considered “hours worked” for purposes 
of leave accrual. 
  
POLICY  
 
There shall be a uniform and consistent process for a County employee to follow regarding a 
workers’ compensation claim for an on the job accident, injury or illness.  
 
PROCEDURE  
 
Worker’s Compensation/Accident Reporting Procedure  
 
Injury Occurrence:  
 
1.  At the time of injury the employee should refer to the panel of physicians listed within 


each department to seek medical attention appropriate to the extent of injury.  
 
2.  The employee shall report any injury to their supervisor at the time of occurrence, no 


later than 24 hours after the injury.  
 
3.  The employee and/or supervisor shall report the injury to Human Resources as soon after 


the injury as possible.  
 
Reporting Forms  
 
1.  After the injury has occurred the employee or their supervisor will complete a first report 


of injury (WC1).  The circumstances surrounding the injury shall be detailed in the 
narrative.  This form shall be completed within 24 hours of the injury.  


 
2.  A supervisor’s investigation report will be completed within 72 hours after notification of 


the accident.  
 
Medical Treatment  
 
1.  Fayette County has retained the services of a panel of local physicians.  Primary care will 


be provided by this panel.  The panel of physicians is listed in each department.  
 







2.  In the event of an injury/illness requiring treatment, the employee will select the 
physician from the panel of doctors.  NOTE: County Insurance and Prescription Drug 
cards will not be used in the cases of Worker’s Comp injuries or illnesses.  


 
3.  Employee obtains treatment and submits Medical Authorization form to Human 


Resources.  
 
4.  Follow-up examinations and referral to other physicians must be approved by the 


Personnel Department Human Resources to insure that the physician/facility is approved 
by the County.  


 
5.  Employee is to complete Election to use sick leave/vacation in lieu of compensation form 


obtained in Human Resources.   Employee is to complete an election form in Human 
Resources if they wish to use accrued sick leave and/or vacation time in lieu of receiving 
workers’ compensation benefits. 


 
6.  Employee will submit an FMLA application to department for an on the job accident, 


injury or illness which requires an absence from work in excess of 3 days and department 
to forward to Human Resources, if applicable.   If the work related accident, injury or 
illness requires the employee to be absent from work in excess of 3 consecutive full 
calendar days, and the employee elects to receive workers’ compensation benefits in lieu 
of accrued sick leave and/or vacation time, they will be required to submit an application 
to Human Resources for FMLA leave. 


 
7.  Employee will report their progress to Human Resources after each follow up treatment 


by means of a medical authorization treatment form that should be obtained at the time of 
each doctor’s appointment.  


 
8.  An employee will not be permitted to return to work before reporting to Human 


Resources and submitting a full duty release.  
 
In the case that a full duty release is not obtained but the employee may return to work under a 
modified job duty, please refer to Fayette County’s Alternative Work Duty Program.  
 
Volunteer firefighters are covered under a separate County insurance policy administered by 
Volunteer Firemen’s Insurance Services.  Contact Human Resources to report injuries within 24 
hours.  
 
Failure to follow the guidelines set forth by the department and the County could result in the 
claim not being paid. 





		Human Resources- Policy Upkeeping Agenda Request File.pdf

		Human Resources- Policy Upkeeping Backup

		408.09 Demotions.pdf

		408.13 Performance Pay

		408.15 Promotion

		412.01 Performance Appraisal

		416.01 Training

		420.03 Annual Leave

		420.05 Bereavement

		432.01 Time and Attendance Policy

		440.15 Workers' Compensation Policy








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Parks and Recreation Anita Godbee, C.P.R.P.


Report from Parks and Recreation Director Anita Godbee on progress of efforts to form a Kenwood Park and Recreation Association.


In the summer of 2010, a group of citizens began discussions with the Recreation Commission regarding the possibility of forming a 


Kenwood Park and Recreation Association (KPRA).  A steering committee was formed and met several times to begin the process of 


forming the Association.  The purpose of the KPRA is to assist and coordinate efforts regarding Kenwood Park with the Parks and 


Recreation Department.  The KPRA will promote community use of Kenwood Park and raise awareness of the benefits of the park 


through their volunteer efforts and public relations programs.  The KPRA will raise and disburse funds for improvements and 


maintenance of the park, facilitate use of the park for special events, offer membership to all interested patrons, and make meaningful 


contributions to benefit the park.  The KPRA will follow all guidelines of the Parks and Recreation Department's Policy and Procedures 


Manual just as the current Youth Sport Associations do. 


 


At the February 2011 Recreation Commission meeting, the KPRA steering committee presented the Recreation Commission a finalized 


copy of the KPRA Bylaws.  The Recreation Commission reviewed the bylaws and agreed the bylaws are in compliance.  The KPRA and 


the Recreation Commission would like to advise the Board of Commissioners that the Kenwood Park and Recreation Association is now 


ready to move forward in obtaining it's non profit status.  After the KPRA obtains this status, the Association would like to move forward in 


it's efforts to becoming an official association under the governing body of the Fayette County Parks and Recreation Department.


No action is required.  This is intended for informational purposes only.


Not applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessWednesday, March 2, 2011









































		Parks and Recreation- Kenwood Park Agenda Request File.pdf

		Parks and Recreation- Kenwood Park Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina will discuss how the Zoning Ordinance relates to the number of animals allowed; and 


the issue of beekeeping.


On December 9, 2010, the Board of Commissioners adopted the revised Zoning Ordinance, in its entirety.  The Board of Commissioners 


instructed staff to bring the aforementioned issues back before them for further direction. 


 


For the discussion on beekeeping, Mr. Mike Maxwell will be present to take part in the discussion. He is a citizen involved in beekeeping 


who has been in contact with our Planning and Zoning staff over the past several months. He wishes to provide some input to the 


Commissioners. Policy allows him to do so. 


 


Staff needs consensus on whether or not to move forward with amending the Zoning Ordinance relative to these issues. If there are to be 


changes, proposed amendments will be advertised for public hearings before the Planning Commission and then the Board of 


Commissioners. 


 


Direction from the Board of Commissioners on how they would like staff to proceed.   


Funds are not needed at this time, but will be part of an overall cost to update the Fayette County Code.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Old BusinessWednesday, March 2, 2011

















		Planning and Zoning- Animals ...eping Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Animals and Beekeeping Backup

		Planning and Zoning- Animals and Beekeeping Backup-1.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Animals and Beekeping Backup








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina will update the Board on the County's requirements to perform a Full Plan Update of the 


Fayette County Comprehensive Plan.


Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning, as administered by the Georgia Department of Community Affairs, require 


periodic updates of the Comprehensive Plan.  Fayette County is scheduled to complete and adopt a Full Plan Update by June 30, 2012, 


(see attached backup material for details.)


The purpose of this agenda item is to inform the Board of Commissioners that staff is starting this process.  The portions of the Full Plan 


Update that the Board of Commissioners needs to review and determine if there is consensus on at this time, is the Community 


Participation Program and within the Community Assessment: Issues and Opportunities (page 1), Areas Requiring Special Attention 


(page 11), Character Areas (page 13), and Assessment of Consistency With Quality Community Objectives (page 17).


Not applicable


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessWednesday, March 2, 2011







Fayette County Comprehensive Plan  
Full Plan Update 


 
Purpose: Standards and Procedures for Local Government Planning (Chapter 110-12-1) were 
issued by the Georgia Department of Community Affairs on May 1, 2005.  These standards 
require a Full Plan Update of a comprehensive plan every ten years.   Fayette County is required 
to complete and adopt a Full Plan Update of the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan by June 30, 
2012. 
 
Overview: The Full Plan Update of the comprehensive plan is required to include three 
components: (1) Community Assessment; (2) Community Participation Program; and (3) 
Community Agenda.   
 


1. Community Assessment:  Assessment of data and information that includes: 
a. A list of potential Issues and Opportunities that the community may want to 


address in the Community Agenda element; 
b. An analysis of existing development patterns, including a map of recommended 


Character Areas for consideration in developing an overall vision for the 
community; 


c. An evaluation of current policies, activities and development patterns for 
consistency with the Quality Community Objectives; and  


d. An analysis of data and information to check the validity of the above evaluations 
and the potential issues and opportunities. 
 


2. Community Participation Program: This section will define the proposed strategy for 
ensuring adequate public participation and stakeholder involvement in the preparation of the 
Community Agenda portion of the plan. 


 
3. Community Agenda: This element is intended to define the community’s vision for the 
future and its strategy for achieving that vision. It will be prepared with input from 
stakeholders and the general public. The Community Agenda must include three major 
elements: 


a. A community vision for the future development of the community, 
identified as unique Character Areas, each with its own strategy for 
guiding future development patterns; 


b. A list of Issues and Opportunities identified by the community for further 
action; and  


c. An implementation program for achieving the vision and addressing the 
issues and opportunities. 


 
The aforementioned standards and procedures require that the Community Assessment and 
Community Participation Program be completed and transmitted by resolution to the Atlanta 
Regional Commission (ARC) for review and approval before starting the Community Agenda.  
Public hearings are required before the Planning Commission and Board of Commissioners on 
the Community Assessment and Community Participation Program and adoption of a resolution 
transmitting them to ARC.   
 
Upon completion, the Community Agenda will be transmitted by resolution to the ARC and 
Georgia Department of Community Affairs (DCA) for review and approval. Public hearings are 
required before the Planning Commission and Board of Commissioners on the Community 
Agenda and adoption of a resolution transmitting them to ARC and DCA.  The final step is the 







County adoption of the Full Plan Update prior to June 30, 2012.  This step must be voted on by 
the Board of Commissioners but does not require a public hearing.   
 







COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION PROGRAM 
 
Introduction  
The Community Participation Program is important in obtaining citizen participation and 
involvement in the Community Agenda portion of the Full Plan Update. The purpose of 
the Community Participation Program is to insure that citizens and other stakeholders are 
aware of the planning process and are provided opportunities to provide input.  


List of Suggested Stakeholders  
The County will identify local stakeholders that have an interest in the development of 
the Community Agenda. The stakeholders are comprised of representatives of the various 
local groups and organizations.  Input from the stakeholders will be sought throughout 
the planning process. As the planning process moves forward, additional stakeholders are 
likely to be identified and contacted for input.  


Table 1   
Potential Fayette County Stakeholder Listing 


 


Citizens 
County Staff (Various County Departments) 
Law Enforcement (Sheriff’s Office) 
Fayette County School System 
Municipalities 
Fayette County Development Authority 
Fayette County Chamber of Commerce 
Fayette County Board of Realtors 
Hospital 
Residential Developers, Builders, Contractors  
Commercial Developers, Builders, Contractors  
Local Civil Engineering Firms, Specializing in Land Development   
Local Land Trusts and/or Environmental Organizations 
Senior Services  
Local Representatives of Agricultural and Forestry (Farm Bureau) 
Home Owner Associations 


   
  


1







   
  


2


List of Participation Techniques  
The Fayette County Planning and Zoning Department will guide the citizen participation 
efforts associated with the Community Agenda. The Community Participation Program 
tasks are derived from the need to inform the public of the Community Agenda. The 
following tasks will aid in the planning, assessment, evaluation, and implementation of 
the process: 


Kick-Off Public Meeting  
Fayette County will host a kick-off meeting to officially announce the Community 
Agenda planning process to the citizens and stakeholders.  
 
Steering Committee  
A Steering Committee shall be composed of citizens and representatives from the 
Potential Stakeholders List to assist in the Community Agenda process.  The Steering 
Committee will provide guidance and feedback throughout the planning process. 
Meetings will be scheduled at appropriate benchmarks.   
 
Stakeholder Interviews  
The purpose of stakeholder interviews is to identify major community issues and 
develop a complete understanding of the public opinions, comments, and concerns. 
The results will be incorporated into the development of the Community Agenda and 
used to illustrate the impact that the feedback has had on the plan. 
  
Open House  
An open house presentation of the Community Agenda will be scheduled near the end 
of the planning process. 
  
Public Information Outreach Plan  
The Fayette County Planning and Zoning Department will coordinate the 
development of an effective plan to publicize information on the planning process to 
its citizens and other stakeholders. The following tactics will be used to inform the 
citizens and media about the plan progress.  


• Project Website – The Fayette County website will provide information on the 
Community Agenda process and will be a conduit for public input.  


• Public Information Materials – Outreach materials will be created and used to 
provide information on the Community Agenda process. These materials will 
be distributed at public meetings and other County locations such as the 
Fayette County Library. 


• Cable Television – Notices for input will be posted on Fayette County’s 
public access station, cable channel 23. 


 
Required Public Hearings  
Fayette County will advertise all required public hearings in compliance with state 
regulations for transmittal of the Community Agenda to the Atlanta Regional 
Commission and Georgia Department of Community Affairs.  


 







 


1 


FAYETTE COUNTY COMMUNITY ASSESSMENT 


INTRODUCTION 


Purpose and 


The nt is to address the components as required by the 
Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning which were 
esta
Opp
Lan
Are
Ana


 


1.0 ISSU


Population Change 


000 to 2010 Fayette County grew from 
91,263 to ___ %. Most of this growth occurred from 2000 to 
200 ulation growth reached _____.  The annual growth 
rate decreased from ____per year (2000 – 2005) and fell to ____ per year from 
200
grow


 
Eco


• (Op
the 
Estimates 2005-2009, US Census Bureau). 


 
• (Issue) Fayette County needs to attract businesses that employ a highly educated 


 Airport.  Currently the 
airline industry is going through an unstable period. 


 economic condition is affecting business attraction and 


   
 


Scope 


 purpose of this assessme


blished on May 1, 2005.   These components include Potential Issues and 
ortunities;  Analysis of Existing Development Patterns including Existing 
d Use Map, Areas Requiring Special Attention, and Recommended Character 
as; Analysis of Consistency with Quality Community Objects; and Supporting 
lysis of Data and Information.  


ES AND OPPORTUNITIES   


(Issue) Based on the U. S. Census, from 2
_, an increase of __


5 when the estimated pop


6 – 2010. ARC forecasts of population and housing growth reflect a slow 
th rate through 2020 followed by a renewed increase to the2040.  


nomic Development 


portunity) Fayette County has a highly educated workforce, 40.9 percent of 
population have a bachelor’s degree or higher (American Survey 5-Year 


workforce.  
  
• (Issue) Traditionally, Fayette County’s economy has been highly dependant on 


the airline industry given its proximity to the Hartsfield


 
• (Issue) The current


tention. re
 


• (Issue) The lack of an interstate within Fayette County could be a competitive 
disadvantage in terms of attracting some types of businesses.    


 







 


2 


• (Issue) The lack of a county-wide centralized sewer system could be a 


• pportunity) High intensity business development requiring a high level of 


•  (Op yette County can provide a mix of housing types between the 
unincor county, and the incorporated municipalities where a public water 


 (Issue) Annexation of unincorporated areas into a municipality can cause conflicts 
in la


 


 (Issue) The lack of an interstate within Fayette County could be a competitive 


 
• e directed to areas 


 (Issue) Environmental concerns such as water supply watersheds, groundwater 


 
• d a high water table dictate 


 (Issue) Some transportation corridors are congested during peak traffic hours. 


  
• (Iss ding counties is impacting roads in Fayette County as a 


commuting route.  


competitive disadvantage in terms of attracting some types of businesses.   
  


(O
public services (water & sewer) should be directed to areas served by a public 
water system and a centralized sewerage system (Fayetteville, Peachtree City and 
portions of Tyrone). 


 
Housing 


portunity) Fa
porated 


system and a centralized sewerage system is available to serve higher densities.   
 


Land Use 


•
nd use.  


• (Issue) The programmed widening of state highways will impact existing and 
future development along these roadways. 


 
•


disadvantage in terms of attracting some types of businesses.    


pportunity) High intensity/density development should b(O
served by a public water system and a  centralized sewerage system (Fayetteville, 
Peachtree City and portions of Tyrone). 


 
•


recharge areas, poor soils, flood plain, and wetlands will affect development 
intensity. 


ssue) The relatively low topography, poor soils an(I
low-density development in the south end of the county. 


 
Transportation 


•
 
• (Issue) Approximately 73 percent of the workforce commutes to jobs outside of 


ayette County (2008 ARC/On the Map US Census Bureau).   F


ue) Growth is surroun


 







 


3 


• (Issue) Fayette County lacks a county-wide multi-use path network.  


 (Issue) Existing roads are to some degree not conducive to pedestrian and bike 


y’s main access to I-85 (SR 74) becomes congested during 


Natural & Cultural Resources 


• (Iss unty is within a water supply 
wat


 
•


 
• ssue) Fayette is included in the Atlanta region’s non-attainment area for ozone. 


ly Watersheds, Protection of 


 


 (Issue) The cost of providing public services and facilities for new development 
will continu


 
• (Opportunity) Fayette County in conjunction with the Towns of Brooks, Tyrone 


 


 


 


 
•


accessibility.  
 


 (Issue) Fayette Count•
peak travel times. 
 


ue) Approximately 75 percent of the co
ershed. 


 
• (Issue) Approximately 26 percent of the county is within a groundwater recharge 


area. 
 
• (Issue) Farmland and timberland is being lost to development changing the visual 


character of the county. 


 (Opportunity) Conservation Subdivision regulations will help to preserve a non-
urban character and provide green space. 


(I
 
• (Opportunity) Fayette County has adopted the applicable Rules for Environmental 


Planning Criteria (GA DNR) ordinances (Water Supp
Groundwater recharge Area, and Wetlands Protection). 


 


Facilities and Services 


• (Issue) Continued growth will require an increase in public services. 
 
•


e to increase. 


and, Woolsey assesses impact fees for the provision of Fire Services. 


• (Issue) In terms of infrastructure, portions of the County are not served by public 
water and centralized sewerage is only available in Fayetteville, Peachtree City 
nd portions of Tyrone. a


 







 


4 


Intergovernmental Coordination 


• (Issue) Annexation of unincorporated areas into a municipality can cause conflicts 


• tte County and the City of Fayetteville are working jointly on a 


 911 
stem.  The County provides some services to some of the municipalities 


reement is being updated with the 
omprehensive Plan. 


2.0


Th uide for county officials (both elected and 
sted parties 


his Element 
provides the opportunity to inventory existing land use patterns and trends; to illustrate 
fut
po
nat
go
 
3.1


Fa
acr
municipalities.  The remaining 94,264 acres lie within unincorporated Fayette County.   
Th owi ventory and assessment of existing land use in 
un ora
 
Th
da
ma
lan
 
Th ed by the Department of Community Affairs, 
were
 
 


in land use. 
 


pportunity) Faye(O
Master Plan for development in the Hospital Study Area. 


 
• (Opportunity) Fayette County and its Municipalities have a consolidated


sy
(Fire/EMS, Water, Jail, etc.) 


 
• (Opportunity) Fayette County and its Municipalities have a Service of Delivery 


trategy Agreement in place.  This AgS
C


 
 ANALYSIS OF EXISTING DEVELOPMENT PATTERNS 


and Use Element functions as a ge L
appointed), the general public, the development community, and other intere
as to the ultimate pattern of development in the unincorporated county.  T


ure patterns of growth, based on community needs and desires; and to develop goals, 
licies, and strategies for future land use that support and reflect the economic, housing, 
ural and historic resources, community facilities and services, and transportation and 
als and policies of the Comprehensive Growth Management Plan.       


 Existing Land Use 


yette County’s total land area is 127, 670 acres.  Of this total, approximately 33,406 
es (or 26 percent) lies within the incorporated limits of Fayette County’s five 


e foll ng section provides an in
incorp ted Fayette County.   


e county’s Geographical Information System was used to develop existing land use 
ta.  This section identifies the products resulting from a typical land use survey: (1) a 
p showing existing land use (Map L-1); and (2) statistics describing the amount of 
d in each land use category (Table L-1).   


 following land use categories, as define
 used to survey existing land use in unincorporated Fayette County: 


Residential: In unincorporated Fayette County, the predominant use of land 
within the residential category is for single-family dwelling units.  This category 







 


5 


is further divided into the following categories: One Acre Minimum Lot, Two 
Acr


  
 nd use comprises 46.61 percent of the unincorporated county. The 


mun
a m
cou
end
acre
the 
area.
park


 
Com
incl mmercial 
uses may be located as a single use in one building or grouped together in a 
shop
 
Com
tota
neig se centers are characterized by a 
gas station/convenience store.  Two areas, SR 85 North and SR 54 West adjacent 
to P
esta
54 W
offi


 
Ind
proc
trad
 
Indu mprises 0.62 percent of the total acreage.  The majority of 
indu
Lan
and
the c


 
 Pub


gov
and
coll
but 
be i ould be 
included in the Park/Recreation/Conservation category; landfills should fall under 


e Minimum Lot, Five Acre Minimum Lot, and Mobile Home Park  


Residential la
more concentrated areas have been developed in conjunction with the availability 
of public water.  These areas are concentrated in the vicinity of the various 


icipalities and in the northern end of the county east of SR 92.    Lots that are 
inimum of two acres in size are further removed from the urban areas, where 
nty water may or may not be available.  Residential land uses in the southern 
 of the county are characterized by single-family dwellings on lots of five 
s or larger.  This is due not only to the lack of available infrastructure, but to 
support and maintenance of the rural environment that is characteristic of this 
  There are seven mobile home parks in the unincorporated county.  These 
s contain approximately 1,460 mobile home pads. 


mercial: This category is for land dedicated to non-industrial business uses, 
uding retail sales, office, service and entertainment facilities.  Co


ping center or office building.   


mercial and Office land uses comprise approximately 0.55 percent of the 
l unincorporated land area.  Commercial activity is generally limited to small, 
hborhood, convenience-retail centers.   The


eachtree City, contain a mix of small shopping centers, offices and service 
blishments.  Office uses are generally concentrated along SR 85 North and SR 


est where an overlay zone allows the conversion of existing residences to 
ce uses. 


ustrial: This category is for land dedicated to manufacturing facilities, 
essing plants, factories, assembly operations, warehousing and wholesale 
e facilities, mining or mineral extraction activities, or other similar uses. 


strial land use co
strial activity is centered north of Fayetteville along SR 85 North (BFI 
dfill property, numerous auto salvage facilities, and Kenwood Business Park) 
 SR 314 (Lee Center).  Major industrial land uses and parks are found within 
ities of Fayetteville, Peachtree City and Tyrone. 


lic/Institutional: This category includes certain state, federal or local 
ernment uses, and institutional land uses.  Government uses include city halls 
 government installations, etc.  Examples of institutional land uses include 
eges, churches, cemeteries, hospitals, etc.  Facilities that are publicly owned, 
would be classified more accurately in another land use category, should not 
ncluded in this category.  For example, publicly owned parks sh







 


6 


the Industrial category; and general office buildings containing government 
offi


 
Public/Institutional land uses, comprising nearly 2.17 percent of the total 
dev
faci
as w
scho
loca
wat


 
 Tra


pow  transit stations, 


 
Tran
land
substations are located on SR 54 West, Bernhard Road, Ebenezer Church Road, 
Frie


 
 Par


pass
and wildlife 
management areas, national forests, golf courses, recreation centers and similar 


  
Park
and 
Mill
Lak n Reservoir and County wetland mitigation sites. 


 
Agr
past
com
 
Agr  
throughout the unincorporated county but mainly in the southern end of the 
cou
com
hors
Con tely 24,701 acres are 
und


 
Und
that
This


ces should be placed in the Commercial category.  


eloped acreage, consist mainly of churches, schools, and county-owned 
lities and property.  There are over 100 churches in the unincorporated county 
ell as four existing or planned high schools, four existing or planned middle 
ols, and four elementary schools.  Existing or future water tank sites are 
ted on Ellis Road, SR 92, North Porter Road, and Summerfield Place. A large 
er treatment plant is located on Antioch Road. 


nsportation/Communication/Utilities: This category includes such uses as 
er generation plants, railroad facilities, radio towers, public


telephone switching stations, airports, port facilities or other similar uses.  


sportation/Communication/Utilities land uses comprise 0.1 percent of the 
 area.  Five utility substations are located in the unincorporated area.  These 


ndship Church Road, and New Hope Road.  


k/Recreation/Conservation: This category is for land dedicated to active or 
ive recreational uses. These areas may be either publicly or privately owned 
may include playgrounds, public parks, nature preserves, 


uses. 


/Recreation/Conservation land uses comprise 1.55 percent of the land area 
are represented by McCurry Park, Kiwanis Park, Lake Horton Park, Starr’s 
 Pak, and future parkland on Kenwood Road.  This area also includes the 
e Horto


iculture/Forestry: This category is for land dedicated to farming (fields, lots, 
ures, farmsteads, specialty farms, livestock production, etc.), agriculture, or 
mercial timber or pulpwood harvesting. 


icultural/Forestry lands comprise 26.2 percent of the land area.  Located


nty, these lands are generally characterized by small farms, plant nurseries, 
mercial timber, pulpwood harvesting or large residential lots with associated 
e or cattle raising/grazing.  All of these properties are participating in the 
ervation Use Covenant with the county.  Approximas


er the Conservation Use Covenant.    


eveloped: This category is for land not developed for a specific use or land 
 was developed for a particular use but that has been abandoned for that use.  
 category includes woodlands or pasture land (not in agricultural crop, 







 


7 


livestock or commercial timber production), undeveloped portions of residential 
subd
of s
dete
 
Und rcent of the land area.  Some of these large 
undeveloped trac
in th


 
Figure 3.1 p is currently 
being used. Table 3.1 lists the total estimated acreage of each of the land use categories 
illu
are
cla
 


TABL
EXIS TION 
UNIN ORPORATED FAYETTE COUNTY 


ivisions and industrial parks, water bodies (lakes, rivers, etc.), and locations 
tructures that have been vacant for some time and allowed to become 
riorated or dilapidated. 


veloped land comprises 23.2 pee
ts contain agricultural and forest lands but are not participating 


e Conservation Use Covenant with the county. 


rovides a generalized picture of how land in Fayette County 


strated on Figure 3.1. As Table L-1 indicates, unincorporated Fayette County’s land 
a totals approximately 94,264 acres, of which 21,870 acres (23.2 percent) are 
ssified as undeveloped. 


E 3.1 
TING LAND USE DISTRIBU
C


LAND USE ACRES PERCENT OF AREA 


Re 42,990 45.61% sidential 


Co 516 0.55% mmercial & Office 


Industrial 581 0.62% 


Pu al 2,048 2.17% blic/Institution


Tr n/Utilities 92 0.10% ansportation/Communicatio


Pa /Conservation 1,466 1.55% rk/Recreation


Ag 24,701 0% riculture & Forestry 26.2


Un 21,870 0% developed 23.2


To 94,264 00% tal Acreage 100.
Source: Fayette County Planning Department 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
.   
 







 


8 


Figure 3.1 EXISTING LAND USE 


 
Source: Fayette County GIS 







 


9 


3.2 Existing Land Use Assessment 
 
Th existing land use pattern in Fayette County is the result of many individual and 
po
op
ex
use
 
 
3.2.1 Factors Leading to the Existing Pattern of Development 
Th istory, Fayette County has had an agricultural-based economy.  
Fa a 
gen
of 
cou
19
co
Mu
an


e 
licy decisions over many years.  These decisions are based on physical constraints and 
portunities, and outside market forces.  This section discusses the factors leading to the 
isting pattern of development and the market forces in effect that seek to influence land 
 decisions. 


roughout most of its h
rms producing both crops and livestock, dominated the landscape.   In less than 
eration, Fayette County changed from a rural, farm-oriented county on the far fringes 


the Atlanta area to a primarily residential, suburban, bedroom commuter-oriented 
nty.  Fayette County’s population grew by 115 percent between 1980 to 1990.  From 


90 to 2000, the county grew by another 46 percent.  This twenty-year period saw the 
unty’s population grow from 29,043 residents in 1980 to 91,263 residents in 2000.  
ch of this growth occurred within municipal limits, often accommodated through 


nexation.  Map L-2  shows the annexation activity by municipality since 1985. 
(Update) 
 
Tr
wi
31 tteville to SR 279 from two lane roads to four lane divided highways.  SR 
74 North is Fayette’s most direct access to Interstate 85 and the quickest access to 
Ha
SR
Su
an
At
res
par
the
 
Inf
ha
co
por
Ty the cities of 
Fa structure 
av
no
 
Se
Fa
sys


ansportation Improvements.  In the last 20 years, Fayette County has seen the 
dening of SR 85 North, SR 74, SR 54 between Peachtree City and Fayetteville, and SR 
4 from Faye


rtsfield-Jackson Atlanta International Airport, Atlanta and the northern Atlanta region. 
 314 (West Fayetteville Road) is the county’s most direct route to the Atlanta Airport.  
ch transportation improvements provide for more efficient movement of vehicles into 
d out of the county.  By 1993, Fayette County was within commuting distance of 
lanta and, particularly, the Atlanta Airport.  Besides the influx of new (commuting) 
idents, increasing numbers of existing Fayette County residents either converted to 
t-time farming while holding regular jobs to which they themselves commuted, or 
y sold their farm holdings for subdivision development.  


rastructure Development.  The availability of  infrastructure, and the lack thereof, 
s also contributed to Fayette County’s existing land use pattern.  While not available 
unty-wide, public water service is provided by the Fayette County Water System to 
tions of the unincorporated county as well as the municipalities of Peachtree City, 
rone and Woolsey.  Sanitary sewerage service is available only within 


tteville and Peachtree City and within limited areas of Tyrone. Such infraye
ailability allows these cities to offer the highest residential densities and to provide for 
nresidential uses in the form of office parks, commercial centers, and industrial parks.  


werage and Wastewater Treatment. No public sewer is available in unincorporated 
yette County.  Development in the unincorporated area relies on individual septic 
tems for on-site sewage disposal.  The soil and space requirements of septic systems 


Comment [t1]: Need 2010 Census 







 


10 


necessitate a larger development area.  Therefore, the unincorporated county is 
ch
ho
lot
fam
 
En tally 
sensitive land, are generally characterized by poor soils, wetlands, and flood plains 
typ
sup
W
str
end
by
 
M
Fa s 
land values rise, it becomes difficult to hold land vacant for agricultural purposes.  
 
Wi
pre
ma
tra ation routes, dispensing gasoline and/or the corner grocery) will continue to 
req
Im
det
typ
tha
be
 
 
 


aracterized by low density single-family residential lots.  Fayette County as a whole, 
wever, is able to offer residents a wide choice of housing opportunities, from smaller 
, high end single family homes, duplexes, and apartments in the cities to larger single-
ily lots and sprawling farmsteads in the unincorporated county.    


vironmental Constraints.  Development constraints, associated with environmen


ical of streams and other water bodies.  The county is home to seven major water 
ply streams (Antioch Creek, Flat Creek, Flint River, Horton Creek, Line Creek, 


hitewater Creek, and Woolsey Creek), 16 named tributaries to these water supply 
eams, and a large number of minor unnamed streams.  Development in the southern 
 of the county, which serves as the confluence of many of these streams, is impacted 


 the relatively low topography, poor soils, and a high water table.   


arket Forces. Development exerts pressure on the rural areas in unincorporated 
yette County.  Land values rise as residential development occurs in rural areas.  A


th the increase in population and income, market forces are working to provide for the 
requisite commercial development, usually in the form of small shopping areas along 
jor highway corridors. Convenience facilities (e.g. the quick stop store located on 
nsport
uest rezonings around the county in response to perceived market demand.  
properly planned and located, such commercial uses can lead to traffic problems, 
erioration of neighborhoods, and unsightly developments.  The proliferation of these 
es of stores causes keen competition among them.  The nature of such competition is 
t some stores do not survive.  The county is then left with empty storefronts which 


come eyesores scattered around the county. 







 


11 


 
 
3.3 Areas Requiring Special Attention 


The  evaluation of the existing 
lan
pla
 
3.3 esidential Corridor 
Fa nty and the City of Fayetteville have been working together on a plan for the 
dev pital as a job growth center.  A 
Ta
Co
env
and
the
arc
bu
fin
Fa
of 
 
 
3.3
Th to four lanes is currently underway and Padgett Road is being 
realigne rsection with SR 74 and SR 85.  State Route 85 will be 
widened to four-lanes in the future.  When the widening of SR 74 is complete the 
inter n s.  Any changes in the 
fut rdinance to address special 
dev
 
3.3
Th
are
tak
 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 following are areas that have been identified during the
d use plan and current development trends as requiring special attention during the 
nning process.  


.1.  The SR 54 Nonr
yette Cou
elopment of the area around the Piedmont Fayette Hos


sk Force Study completed in 2006 was approved in concept by both the Fayette 
unty Board of Commissioners and the Fayetteville City Council. This area is 
isioned to be developed in a mixed use manner containing offices, limited commercial 
 residential uses. The area is planned to be annexed into the City of Fayetteville for 
 provision of public sewer.  The City of Fayetteville has engaged the service of a local 
hitectural firm to develop a master plan of the area depicting the street grid pattern, 
ilding envelops, public spaces, multi-use path system, etc.  When this master plan is 
alized and accepted by both Fayette County Board of Commissioners and the 
yetteville City Council the Comprehensive needs to be amended to recognize support 
this joint plan. 


.2. The SR 74 and SR 85 Intersection 
e widening of SR 74 


d to form a new inte


sectio  needs to be studied in terms of the future land use
ure land uses could result in changes to the Zoning O
elopment regulations for this area  


.3. Conservation Areas 
ese are environmentally sensitive areas containing waterways, watershed protection 
as, flood plains, wildlife habitat, poor soils, and steep slopes.  Special care must be 
en with development within close proximity of these areas. 







 


12 


Figure 3.3 AREAS REQUIRING SPECIAL ATTENTION 
 


 


Source: Fayette County Planning and Zoning







 


13 


 


3.4         Character Areas 


 development strategies have been identified from 
rev
 


Charact Characteristics 


The following Character Areas and
iew of the Existing Land Use map and Areas Requiring Special Attention. 


er Area Description/Predominant Suggested Development Strategy 
Con
and


onm
sting o


watershed protect
dpl


opes.


water
e thr


llow only passive recreational uses. 
ote best


gric


servation Area 
 Greenspace 


Envir
consi


entally sensitive areas 
f strea


- Protect 
sturbancms, water supply 


ion areas, 
di
- A


floo
sl


ain, wetlands, and steep 
  


- Prom
existing a
 
  


 supply watersheds from 
ough buffers and setbacks. 


 management practices for 
ultural uses. 


Agricultural 
Residential Area 


The so
County redominance of 
large tracts of land exists with 
scattered agricultural uses (crops, 
timber,
state l
ublic 


ty limi
- Use the Esta
adequate buff s to promote the 
conservation s division (60 percent 


oped – 4
h to th
menti


ural re
aintai


ern port


uthern portion of Fayette 
 where a p


- Densi


 and livestock) and large 
ots.  Little availability of 
water.   


devel
approac
the afore
agricult
aid in m
south


e
p


ted to one unit per five acres. 
 Zoning District with te


er
ub
0 percent greenspace) 
e Agricultural Area based on 
oned density to maintain 
sidential character.  This will 
ning a sense of place in the 
ion of the county.  


Rural Residential 
Area 


Semi ru
agricul tracts of 
land and subdivisions (one unit per 
two to three acres).  Limited 
availability of public water. 


sity limi
three acres. 
- Use the Con
District with a
the conservat


 – 4
o th


 the a  density to 
rura


aintaining a
sidential po


se of place
maintaining a
the municipal


ral area with some scattered 
tural uses on large 


- Den ted to one unit per two to 


servation Subdivision Zoning 
dequate buffers to promote 


ion subdivision (60 percent 
developed
approach t
based on
maintain 
m
re
sen


0 percent greenspace) 
e Rural Residential Area 
forementioned


l character. This will aid in 
 sense of place in the rural 
rtion of the county.  This 
 will also fulfill the goal of 
 nonurban separation between 
ities in the county. 







 


14 


 
Ex ban Area - 
De


This area is 50 percent or more 
develo
unit pe
greates
Existin
greensp
Connec
subdivi


- Density limited to one unit per one to two 
. 


rage t
ap
e 


 su
- Investigate t


pat
eserve a n


the municipal
sense of place.
 
 


ur
veloping ped with subdivisions (one 


r one to two acres). Area with 
t availability of public water.  
g subdivisions lack 
ace and pedestrian facilities.  
tivity between existing 
sions is limited. 


acres
- Encou
for greensc
- Support th
within new


existing reside
sidewalks/
- Pr


he utilization of floodplain 
e in new subdivisions. 
installation of sidewalks 
bdivisions. 
he feasibility of connecting 
ntial subdivisions through 


hs. 
onurban separation between 
ities in the county to create a 
   


Commerce Area These areas contain a moderate 
amount of existing and future office, 
commercial and industrial uses.  As 


ces 
rvice


Access
predom
pedestr
over in
and int
county


- Investigate m
pedestrian saf y and use within 
commercial c ters. 


iew exist
ens
arc


ess.


pla
se


of commerce they provide 
s, goods and employment. 
 within these areas is 
inantly vehicular with few 
ian amenities.  Some control 
tensity, architectural character 
er-parcel access exist in 
 regulations.  


-Rev
control int
and inter-p
effectiven


ethods to improve 
et
en
ing county regulations that 
ity, architectural character 
el access is ascertain their 
   


Nonresidential 
Corridor 


Existin
county
nonres
comme
anticip
roadwa
is pred
pedestr
over in
and int
county


ate m  
fety and use within 


 centers. 
iew existing county regulations that 


control intensity, architectural character 
nter-parc
tiveness.


g and future areas in the 
 where a large amount 
idential development (office, 
rcial and industrial) is 
ated on both sides of a 


- Investig
pedestrian sa
commercial
-Rev


y.  Access within these areas 
ominantly vehicular with few 
ian amenities.  Some control 
tensity, architectural character 
er-parcel access exist in 
 regulations.    


and i
effec


ethods to improve


el access to ascertain their 
 


Government 
Services 


Publicl
govern
works,
emerge
solid w


ma


 w nd uses 
per site design. 


y owned areas which contain 
mental services such public 
 water system facilities, 
ncy services communications, 
aste facilities, etc. 


- Strive to 
government s
compatible
through pro


intain and develop 
ervices areas which are 
ith surrounding la


Education Areas w
private


ntinue to work with the Fayette 
County School System to provide 


n o


hich contain public and 
 schools. 


- Co


informatio
 


n development in the county. 


Pub ion 
Area 


Areas w a
e
 l


lic Recreat hich contain public parks. - Strive to m
recreation ar
surrounding


intain and develop public 
as which are compatible with 
and uses.   


Stat
Corridor 


All Stat
under t orgia 
Department of Transportation 
(GDOT).  Maintenance, design, and 


prov


tinue to 
improvement
- Continue to 
and seek inpu roposed developments 


ate R


e Route e Routes in Fayette County 
he full control of Ge


- Con


im ements are the responsibility along St


work with GDOT for the 
 of State Routes. 
communicate with GDOT 
t on p
outes. 







 


15 


of GDOT.  Parcel access controlled 
by GD
two an
anticip
be a m
point.  
regulat
on all S


- Regulate development based on GDOT 
utu
and
erla
nt a
ris


OT.  State Routes consist of 
d four lane roadways.  It is 
ated that all State Routes will 
inimum of four lanes at some 
County has overlay 
ions to control development 
tate Routes.   


plans for f
- Review 
county ov
developme
problems a
  


re widenings of State Routes. 
 amend as necessary existing 
y regulations that control 
long State Routes when 


e. 


Municipality – High 
Concentration 


Peacht
the larg


a
u


greates
service


their isting limits these 
municipalities can accommodate the 


t
tia
ixe
e in


nge of
 due 


frastr


ree City and Fayetteville have 
est concentration of 


- Within 


popul
the co


tion and land use intensity in 
nty.  These cities have the 
t access to sewer and water 
 to serve development. 


highest densi
nonresiden
county.  M
appropriat
wide ra
provided
water in


 ex


y residential and 
l land use intensity in the 
d use development is 
 these municipalities.  A 
 housing densities can be 
to the provision of sewer and 
ucture   


Municipality – 
Medium 
Concentration 


Tyrone
water and limited access to sewer 
service. 


ithin the e
municipality 
and nonreside


modate


 has good access to public - W xisting limits of this 
medium residential densities 
ntial intensities can be 
d . accom


Mu
Co  


Brooks
access 
small p r system to serve 
the exis ing in the 


to
nsi


access 


 the ex
alities


densities and 
be accommod


nicipality – Low 
ncentration


 and Woolsey have limited 
to public water.  Brooks has a 
ublic sewe
ting build


Within
municip


down
expa


wn area with no capacity for 
on and Woolsey has no 


to public sewer. 


isting limits of these 
 medium to low residential 
nonresidential intensities can 
ated.    


 
 
 







 


16 


Figure 3.4 CHARACTER AREA MAP 
 


 


Source: Fayette County Planning and Zoning 


 







 


17 


3.0 Assessment of Consistency with Quality Community Objectives 


The following is a listing of Georgia Department of Community Affairs’  Quality 
Co
sel
 


ment Patterns 


s 


Traditiona ouraged, including use of 
more human  
wa
 
Fa
are  
containing single-family residential subdivisions, large estate/agricultural lots, and some 
co
a p
de
for 
Co
 
Ho
un
Re
par ational facilities within a development with a mix of housing types.  Some 
de
fac
co
Co
co
 


Co
con
red
com unity. 
 
Fayette Cou  are the existing urban cores as some 
are
exi
de
 
 


 


mmunity Objectives (in italics) and the Fayette County response which summarizes its 
f-evaluation. 


3.1 Develop


3.1.1 Traditional Neighborhood


l neighborhood development patterns should be enc
 scale development, compact development, mixing of uses within easy


lking distance of one another, and facilitating pedestrian activity. 


yette County consists of two distinct areas, an unincorporated area and incorporated 
as (municipalities).  The unincorporated area is characterized as an exurban/rural area


mmercial/industrial areas.  The existing incorporated areas, especially those served by 
ublic water system and a centralized sewerage system, are the centers of intensity and 
nsity in terms of development in Fayette County.  These areas are the appropriate place 
compact mixed use development as they are the existing urban cores of Fayette 
unty.   


wever, some aspects of traditional neighborhood development are possible in the 
incorporated county through use of The Planned Unit Development – Planned 
sidential Development zoning district.  This district encourages creativity in providing 


s and recrek
velopments within this category utilize sidewalks and a provision for golf cart use to 
ilitate access to these parks and recreational facilities as well as facilitating a 


nnection throughout the entire development.  In addition, Fayette County has in place 
nservation Subdivision regulations which allow the clustering of lots in a compact 
nfiguration to preserve green space within a residential development. 


3.1.2 Infill Development 


mmunities should maximize the use of existing infrastructure and minimize the 
version of undeveloped land at the urban periphery by encouraging development or 
evelopment of sites closer to the downtown or traditional urban core of the 
m


nty’s incorporated areas (municipalities)
 served by a centralized sewerage system.  It is Faytette County’s policy that the 
sting incorporated areas be the centers of intensity and density in terms of 


velopment in Fayette County.   







 


18 


3.1.3 Sense of Place 


Traditional downtow areas should be maintained as the focal point of the community or, 
for
as 
be 
sho
 
Fa he existing traditional 
do ntown areas.   
 


Alt ves to transpo cle routes, and 
pedestrian f ity. Greater use of 
alternate transportation should be encouraged. 
 
Fa
thr
go chools to the greatest degree 
possible
the


Ea ve a regional "identity," or regional sense of 
place, defined in terms of traditional architecture, common economic linkages that bind 
the region together, or other shared characteristics. 
 
Fayette County has in place various State Route Overlay Zones which contain 
arc
go


New de
open space should b  from development for use as public parks or as 
gre s are one way of 
en
 


 
n 


 newer areas where this is not possible, the development of activity centers that serve 
community focal points should be encouraged. These community focal points should 
attractive, mixed-use, pedestrian-friendly places where people choose to gather for 
pping, dining, socializing, and entertainment. 


yette County’s incorporated areas (municipalities) contain t
w


3.1.4 Transportation Alternatives 


ernati rtation by automobile, including mass transit, bicy
acilities, should be made available in each commun


yette County is in the process of developing multi-use paths along Redwine Road 
ough a Safe Routes to Schools grant.  Fayette County has a multi-use path plan.  The 


plan is to connect the municipalities, parks and sal of the 
.  Fayette County allows the use of golf carts within subdivisions by approval of 


 Board of Commissioners. 
 


3.1.5 Regional Identity 


ch region should promote and preser


hitectural regulations.  State Routes are the gateways into Fayette County and it is the 
al of the County to control the aesthetic character of these roadways. 


 


3.2 Social and Economic Development 


3.2.1 Growth Preparedness Growth Preparedness 


velopment should be designed to minimize the amount of land consumed, and 
e set aside


enbelts/wildlife corridors. Compact development ordinance
couraging this type of open space preservation. 







 


19 


Existing Conservation Subdivision regulations will help to preserve and provide green 
spa
co
 


opriate Businesses 


The businesses an pand in a community should 
be suitable for the community in terms of job skills required, long-term sustainability, 
lin
an
 
Th
attr
de
 
 


tions 


Th businesses and industries encouraged to develop or expand in a community should 
be ired, long-term sustainability, 
linkages to othe ct on the resources of the area, 
and 
 
Wo
Co
ma
 


A r
it p ive in the community (thereby 
reducing commuting distances), to promote a mixture of income and age groups in each 
community ice to meet market needs. 
 
Fa
an
sew
 


Ed
to 
ad
 
Th ette County Development Authority indicates that work-force training options are 
available for citize  a satellite campus of an 
institution higher e u yette County. 


ce.  The regulations require 40 percent of development be in an undeveloped 
nservation area.   


3.2.2 Appr


d industries encouraged to develop or ex


kages to other economic activities in the region, impact on the resources of the area, 
d future prospects for expansion and creation of higher-skill job opportunities.   


rough the Fayette County Development Authority, it is the goal of Fayette County to 
ct businesses that provide employment of a highly educated workforce matching the a


mographics of the County. 


3.2.3 Employment Op


e 
 suitable for the community in terms of job skills requ


r economic activities in the region, impa
future prospects for expansion and creation of higher-skill job opportunities. 


rking with the Fayette County Development Authority, it is the goal of Fayette 
unty to attract businesses that provide employment of a highly educated workforce 
tching the demographics of the County. 


3.2.4 Housing Choices 


ange of housing size, cost, and density should be provided in each community to make 
ossible for all who work in the community to also l


, and to provide a range of housing cho


yette County can provide a mix of housing types between the unincorporated county, 
d the incorporated municipalities where a public water system and a centralized 


erage system is available to serve higher densities.   


3.2.5 Educational Opportunities 


ucational and training opportunities should be readily available in each community – 
permit community residents to improve their job skills, adapt to technological 
vances, or to pursue entrepreneurial ambitions. 


e Fay
ns.  The Authority is also working to locate
d cation in Fa







 


20 


 
3.3 Resource Conservation 


3.3.1 Heritage Preservation 


The traditio aintained through preserving and 
revitalizi
co
na
 
Fa
ide
no
fac
 


New development should be designed to minimize the amount of land consumed, and 
ope  public parks or as 
greenbelts/ ces are one way of 
encourag
 
Ex
spa
co
 


Ne
op ide from development for use as public parks or as 
gre nbelts/wildlife corridors. Compact development ordinances are one way of 
encouragi
 
Ex
spa
con
wa
 
 


Re
separate local approaches, particularly where this will result in greater efficiency and 
les cost to the taxpayer. 


nal character of the community should be m
ng historic areas of the community, encouraging new development that is 


mpatible with the traditional features of the community, and protecting other scenic or 
tural features that are important to defining the community's character. 


yette County encourages and allows the use and preservation of historic structures 
tified in the Architectural Survey of Fayette County.  This includes reestablishing n


nresidential uses in historic structures and using historic structures as recreational 
ilities within residential subdivisions. 


3.3.2 Open Space Preservation 


n space should be set aside from development for use as
wildlife corridors. Compact development ordinan


ing this type of open space preservation. 


isting conservation subdivision regulations will help to preserve and provide green 
ce.  The regulations require 40 percent of development be in an undeveloped 


nservation area.   


3.3.3 Environmental Protection 


w development should be designed to minimize the amount of land consumed, and 
en space should be set as
e


ng this type of open space preservation. 


isting conservation subdivision regulations will help to preserve and provide green 
ce as well as protect environmentally sensitive areas.  The regulations state that the 
servation area within these developments shall consist of waterways, water bodies, 


tershed protection areas, floodplains, wetlands, riparian buffers, and woodlands. 


3.4 Governmental Relations 


3.4.1 Regional Solutions 


gional solutions to needs shared by more than one local jurisdiction are preferable to 


s 







 


21 


 
Fa nty provides some services to the municipalities and has a Service of 
De
 
 


3.4.2 Regional Cooperation 


Regional c riorities, identifying shared 
needs, and finding collaborative solutions, particularly where it is critical to success of a 
ven
tra
 
Fa
Bo ommittees.  Fayette County notifies and seeks comments 
fro  its municipalities and surrounding counties when land use plan changes and 
rez


4.0


5.1 Population 


5 years.  
Between 1980 and 1990, the county grew from 29,043 to 62,415 persons. This is an 
av r, adding 33,372 new residents.   


 , the county averaged just under five percent per year, 


 2005. 


 


popu
 
Ho
of 
an
AR
 
Av mpanied by a decline in 
the verage household size.   


yette Cou
livery Strategy Agreement in place.  


ooperation should be encouraged in setting p


ture, such as protection of shared natural resources or development of a 
nsportation network. 


yette County is a member of the Atlanta Regional Commission and participates on the 
ard as well as several of the C
m
onings take place in close proximity to their boundaries.   


 


 SUPPORTING ANALYSIS OF DATA AND INFORMATION 


Fayette County has experienced significant population growth over the last 2


erage of 11.5 percent per yea
• Between 1990 and 2000


adding 28,848 new residents, for a 20-year total of 62,220 new residents.    
• Fayette County grew at a rate twice that of the Atlanta area (214 percent vs. 103 


percent), and four times that of the state (214 percent vs. 50 percent).  
• The trend continues with the addition of over 10,000 persons from 2000 to


Based on ARC estimates, the population of Fayette in 2005 was 101,500.   


Population Projections.  Based on population and economic growth trends, the 
projections adopted in the 2004 Fayette County Comprehensive Plan continue to be valid. 
These projections are extended to the year 2025 for this plan update with a forecast 
growth to 155,228 persons. It is estimated that approximately 58 percent of this  


lation will reside in the incorporated areas. 


useholds.  Between 1980 and 1990, the population grew by 115 percent; the number 
households grew by 128 percent.  Between 1990 and 2000, the growth was 46 percent 
d 48 percent, respectively. As of April 2000, there was an estimated 31,524households. 
C estimated there were 35,876 households in 2005.  


erage Household Size.  The growth in households was acco
 a







 


22 


• Average household size in Fayette County was 3.15 persons in 1980, by 2000 it 


ette County and its municipalities still exceeds that 


Househo useholds are 
ex cted, an increase of 30 percent.  The following ten years, from 2010 through 2020, 
wi
61
 
Ag
me arily attributed to three factors: (1) 
ag  baby boom generation; (2) drop in birth rate during the 1970s and 1980s; and 
(3)
 
Ot


 
 


Racial Composi
po
gro
 
Ed cational Attainment.  In 2000, 92.4 percent of Fayette County residents over the age 
of 
de
co
At
 
In
$7
inc
 
Po


had declined to 2.88.   
• Average household size in  Fay


of the Atlanta metropolitan region, and the state as a whole.   
• The decrease in household size is a result of couples with fewer children, more 


adults living alone, and more single parent families. 
 


ld Projections. Between 2000 and 2010, an additional 9,428 ho
pe
ll see 13,772 more households, or a 34 percent increase. The projection for 2025 is 
,114 households, up 6,390 from 2020. 


e Distribution.  Fayette County’s population is aging; between 1980 and 2000, the 
dian age rose from 30.9 to 38.2. This can be prim


ing of the
 growth in the elderly population due to increased life expectancies. 


her characteristics of the Fayette County age distribution in 2000 include: 
• 25.7 percent was of school age (between the ages of 5 and 19).   
 The largest percentage (37 percent) falls into the 35-54 age group. •
• People of retirement age (65+) comprised 8.9 percent of the population. 


The 65 and over group is projected to increase 67 percent over the next 20 years from 9
percent (2000) to 16 percent (2020).  
 


tion.  The non-white population as a percent of Fayette County’s total 
pulation increased from 4.9 percent in 1980 to 14.9 percent in 2000.  The largest 
ups were White (84%), African American (12%), Hispanic (3%) and Asian (2%). 


u
25 had graduated from high school and 36.2 percent had received a bachelors or higher 
gree.  This is significantly higher than the Atlanta region or the state.   Table P-14 
mpares Fayette County’s educational attainment with that of its municipalities, the 


nta region and the state for both 1990 and 2000. la


come.  Fayette County’s median household income increased from $50,167 in 1990 to 
1,227 in 2000, a 42 percent increase. The median household income and per capita 
ome for Fayette County far exceeds that of the Atlanta area or the state.   


verty Level.  Only 18 percent of Fayette County households earned less than $35,000 
000 as compared to almost 41 percent for the state for the samin e period. 


 
Th
fac
ho


2


e rise in Fayette County’s median household income can be attributed to several 
tors, notably the growth in “white collar” labor force and an increase in dual income 
useholds.   







 


23 


 


5.2 Economic Development 


The nts findings on the characteristics of Fayette 
Co
lab
 
Ec
Th rpose of conducting an economic base analysis is to determine the strengths and 
we y, to determine its development potential, and to serve as a 
gu
 
Em
an  civilian population 16 years and over:  


 Professional, Scientific, Management, Administrative, and Waste Management 


eal estate, and rental 
and leasing. 
 
In 
of 


tion and Warehousing, and Utilities 
 Education, Health, and Social Services 


 
In co only 


5 percent in Fayette 
 attributed to the large 


Total employment is projected to increase 34.7 percent, from 40,467 in 2005 to 50,642 in 
20
cat
pe
20
pre yment for 2025 to be 
60 87, an increase of 9,445 from 2020. 
 


 economic development element prese
unty’s economy and provides an inventory and assessment of the economic base and 
or force of Fayette County, surrounding areas, and the state 


onomic Base 
e pu
aknesses of a local econom
ide to public decision-making.   


ployment by Economic Sector.  From 1980 to 2000, four economic sectors showed 
 increase in the percentage of the employed
•


Services 
• Education, Health, and Social Services 
• Arts, Entertainment, Recreation, Accommodation, and Food Services 
• Other Services (except Public Administration) 


 
All other economic sectors experienced a decrease in the percentage of the employed 
civilian population 16 years and over. Economic sectors also showing an increase in the 
state for this same period are construction and finance, insurance, r


2000, in comparison to the state, four economic sectors displayed a greater percentage 
employment in Fayette County.  These economic sectors were: 
• Wholesale Trade 
• Transporta
•
• Public Administration 


m is rs between Fayette County and the state in 2000 par on of economic secto
Transportation and Warehousing, and Utilities differed greatly, 18.
County as opposed to 6.0 percent in the state.  This can probably be
number of airline employees living in Fayette County. 
 


20 (based on forecasts in the 2004 Fayette County Comprehensive Plan). In 2020, the 
egory of Miscellaneous and Services is projected to employ the greatest number of 
rsons, 11,773 (23.2 percent).  The category of Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate in 
20 is projected to employ the least number of persons, at 2,840 (5.6 percent). Forecasts 
pared for this Comprehensive Plan update project the total emplo


,0







 


24 


Earnings by Economic Sector.   Historically, Manufacturing and Services have had the 
gre
 
Av age Weekly Wages  Paid.  From 1980 to 2000, finance, insurance, and real estate 
sho
per
wa
19
wa
 
In 
$884
ha
we
 
So
Co 00.  The state also 
showed a decrease, while not as great, from 75.2 percent in 1980 to 72.3 percent in 2000. 
 
Sp
act
go
 
La
Th
loo
Fa upation, 
unem and commuting patterns.     
 
Em
res
liv
em
per ver worked in the category 
of 
pe
un
Co
em
oc
Pro
 
  In
the
pe
Oc


atest earnings in Fayette County.  This holds true for the state as well. 


er
wed the greatest increase in average weekly wages from $238.00 to $770.00, (223.5 
cent).  This category in the state also displayed the greatest increase in average weekly 
ges from $274.00 to $967.00, (252.9 percent).  Retail showed the least increase from 
80 to 2000 in Fayette County, $154.00 to $304.00 (97.4 percent).  Similarly, the same 
s the case in the state with an increase of $164.00 to $350.00 (113.4 percent).    


Fayette County, Wholesale Trade had the highest average weekly wage in 2000, 
.00.  This is lower than the state which was $988.00 in 2000.  In 2000, Retail trade 


d lowest average weekly wage in Fayette County, $304.00.  Retail trade had the lowest 
ekly wage($350.00) in the state in the same year. 


urces of Personal Income.  The percent of personal income from earnings in Fayette 
unty decreased from 85.0 percent in 1980 to 76.8 percent in 20


ecial or Unique Economic Activities.  There are no special or unique economic 
ivities (e.g. tourism, agribusiness, healthcare or educational institutions, major 
vernmental or military institutions) located in Fayette County.  


bor Force 
e labor force consists of all persons 16 years of age and over who are either employed, 
king for a job, or are in the armed forces. The following sections provide data on 


tte County’s Labor Force including employment status, employment by occye
ployment rates, 


ployment by Occupation. Employment by Occupation data is collected from 
idents of the county during the decennial census and shows the occupation of persons 
ing in the county, regardless of where they work.  Table E-7 shows the occupation of 
ployed persons in 2000.  Within all jurisdictions except Woolsey, the greatest 
entages of the employed civilian population 16 years or oc


Management, Professional, and Related Occupations.  Within Woolsey, the greatest 
rcentage of workers was in the Sales and Office Occupation category.  Within 
incorporated Fayette County, Fayetteville, Peachtree City, and Tyrone, the category of 
nstruction, Extraction, and Maintenance occupations had the lowest percentages of 
ployees.  In Brooks the lowest percentage of employees were in the Service 


cupations category and in Woolsey the lowest percentage of employees were in the 
duction, transportation, and materials moving occupations category. 


 
 1990, the category of Management, Professional, and Related Occupations contained 
 greatest percentage (36.2 percent) of employees in Fayette County.  The greatest 


rcentage (31.9 percent) of employees in the state were in the Sales and Office 
cupations in 1990.  In Fayette County, the same category contained the greatest 







 


25 


percentage (40.9 percent) of employees again in 2000.  This category also contained the 
hig
 
In yette County, the Farming, Fishing, and Forestry occupation category had the lowest 
pe
res
the
 
Em 00, Fayette County’s labor force grew at about 
the ame rate as the population (44.5% versus 46.2%, respectively).  In 2000, 69 percent 
of 
wo
we
 
Un
un n.  From 1990 to 
2000, the unemployment rate in Fayette County ranged from a low of 1.8 percent in 1999 
to 
 
Co
co
oth  percentage of Fayette County residents worked 
outside the county (67.0 percent and 62.5 percent, respectively).  Conversely, of all the 
peo
is a
19
 
Ap
Ap
ad
per other counties (11.8 percent) or 
co ute outside of the state (1.5 percent).   
 
Lo
 
Ec
in 
 
Fa tte County Economic Development Authority (FCDA)


hest percentage in both the state and the nation for 2000. 


Fa
rcentage of employees in both 1990 and 2000, 0.7 percent and 0.0 percent, 
pectively.  This category also held the lowest percentage of employees in the state and 
 nation in 1990 and 2000.    


ployment Status.    From 1990 to 20
 s
eligible Fayette County residents were in the labor force.  Close to 45 percent of the 
rk force was female.  As a percent of the population, more females in Fayette County 
re in the labor force than in the state or nation in 2000  


employment Rates.  Between 1990 and 2000, Fayette County had a lower 
employment rate than its surrounding counties, the state and the natio


a high of 4.1 percent in 1992. 


mmuting Patterns.  Employment by place of work data provides information on 
mmuting patterns and insight into the numbers of residents who find employment in 
er areas.  In both 1990 and 2000 a high


ple who live in Fayette County, only 37.5 percent worked in the county in 2000.  This 
n increase in the number of Fayette County residents working in the county over 


90, when the figure was 33.0 percent. 


proximately 37.5 percent of Fayette County residents work inside Fayette County.  
proximately half of Fayette County residents (49.2 percent) commute to work in the 


jacent counties of Clayton (13.4 percent), Coweta (3.2 percent), and Fulton (32.6 
cent).   The remaining 13.3 percent commute to 


mm


cal Economic Development Resources 


onomic Development Agencies.  Several economic development agencies are active 
Fayette County.  These agencies include: 


ye  - The lead agency for 
eco ayette County, the FCDA is the 
on n Georgia .  FCDA markets and 
ser
cou
 
Fa nty Chamber of Commerce


nomic development recruitment and attraction for F
 internationally accredited development authority ily


vices business relocation, retention, expansion, and creation in the unincorporated 
nty, Fayetteville, Peachtree City, Tyrone, and Falcon Field Airport.  


yette Cou  -   The Fayette County Chamber of Commerce is 
a “ . . . voluntary business association of comprised of area firms and concerned 







 


26 


individuals who work together to achieve a favorable business climate, while enhancing 
the
 
De lopment Authority of Peachtree City


 quality of life.” 


ve  - The Development Authority of Peachtree 
Cit
Am
ret
 
Fa lopment Authority (DDA)


y serves as facilities operator for the Peachtree City Tennis Center and the 
phitheater and offers economic development support activities for business attraction, 


ention, expansion. 


yetteville Downtown Deve   - Including the Fayetteville Main 
Str m (Georgia’s 37th Main Street City) , the Fayetteville DDA    “ . . . 
suc
rev
to 
 
Joi


eet Progra
cessfully combines historic preservation and economic development in local 
italization initiatives.”  A seven member Board of Directors uses a four point approach 
identify key problems and goals: organization, promotion, economic, and restructuring. 


nt Development Authority of Meriwether County, Coweta County and Fayette County 
he three development authorities join together to sponsor and cooperate on special - T


projects.  
 
Metro South, Inc. - A coalition of six southern metro counties, Metro South, Inc. offers a 


hesive, united front in pursuing major economic development projects and in 
moting econ


co
pro omic activities on the southside of the Atlanta region.  The participating 
counties are Clayton, Coweta, Fayette, Henry, South Fulton, and Spalding.  
 
Regional Business Coalition (RBC) - The RBC is the recognized leader in identifying 


d advocating sustainable solutions that foster greater economic vitality by building 
sensus, shared commitment, and the cooperation of chambers of commerce in the 
nta region.  Chambers in Partnership include Central Atlanta Progress, Cherokee, 


an
con
At
Cla
Gr
Fu
 
Ec
eco
Co
op
  
Industrial and Business Parks


la
yton, Cobb, Conyers-Rockdale, Cumming-Forsyth, DeKalb, Douglas, Fayette, 


eater North Fulton, Gwinnett, Henry, Metro Atlanta, Newnan-Coweta, and South 
lton. 


onomic Development Programs and Tools.  Fayette County offers numerous 
nomic development programs and tools to existing and prospective businesses.  The 
unty is home to several industrial and business parks and business incubators that offer 
portunities for business location, relocation, expansion and start-up. 


.   There are five industrial parks in Fayette County.  These 
ind
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
 
Bu


ustrial parks are: 
Shamrock Industrial Park - Tyrone - 40 acres remaining 
Peachtree City Industrial Park - 2,200 acres total w/500 remaining  
Southpark International Park - within Peachtree City Industrial Park 
Westpark Business Park - Peachtree City  
Kenwood Business Park - Unincorporated Fayette County  


siness Incubators.  A business incubator is a facility dedicated to the start-up and 
pport growth of small businesses, accomplished through management and facility su







 


27 


systems.  Management support systems can include access to professional advice, 
inf
em
cle
fac
 
Pe
co eception/telephone answering service and access to business machines.  A 
cy
 
Ed


ormation of small business regulations, management, advertising, marketing, 
ployees, financial counseling and the like.  Facility support systems can include 
rical and reception staff, cleaning and building security, and access to copy and 
simile machines, computers, faxes, and other electronic equipment. 


achtree Executive Suites is located in Fayetteville and offers office space with a 
mmon r
ber business incubator serves Fayette County at www.FayetteGA.org. 


ucation/Training Centers:  Four education/training centers are located in Fayette 
.  These centers are: County


• 


• School 


• ollege programs at the Lafayette Center 


inated 
 of 


em loyment opportunities within Fayette County.  The skill levels of Fayette County 
res
ge
ski
67
 
Th
Fa
ass
bre
nonresidential properties were 15.6 percent, and tax-exempt properties were 7.3 percent. 
 
Tw
Fa
pro
co
de
Th e residents are willing to pay a premium price to protect their quality of life.  To 
the
 
Go
dev
en
inc
em


Fayette County University Center (operated by Clayton College and State 
University) 
Fayette County Community 


• Gordon College outreach programs at the Lafayette Center 
Griffin Technical C


 
Economic Trends.  Current employment opportunities in Fayette County are dom
by services, retail trade, manufacturing, government and construction.  Projections
employment indicate that these sectors will continue to provide the majority of 


p
idents do not lend themselves to these opportunities within Fayette County, which 
nerally do not require a highly educated or skilled work force.  The lack of highly 
lled job opportunities for the resident work force within Fayette County is what forces 
 percent of the work force to commute elsewhere for employment opportunities. 


e Fayette County Tax Assessor’s Office reports that 95.9 percent of the parcels in 
yette County and its municipalities were categorized as residential in the 2002 
essment.  Nonresidential properties made of 4.1 percent of the parcels.  In terms of a 
akdown of total real property values, residential properties were 77.1 percent, 


o factors existing in Fayette County - the large work force commuting outside of 
yette County for employment and a tax base that is comprised largely of residential 
perties - form the classic characteristics of a “bedroom community.”  Bedroom 


mmunities generally are located outside of large metropolitan areas and 
mographically are homogeneous, highly educated, and in the upper income brackets.  
es
se residents quality of life means good schools, low crime and stable property values. 


al for Economic Development:  Fayette County should provide for the continued 
elopment and expansion of a diversified economic base.  The maintenance and 


hancement of a prosperous economic climate provide Fayette County citizens with an 
reased tax base and expanded opportunities for employment.  By providing expanded 
ployment opportunities consistent with the demographic profile of Fayette County, the 







 


28 


quality of life for Fayette County citizens is enhanced by reduced commute times and air 
qu
 


Housing 


Fa ’s sustained prosperity and its ability to attract new residents are due in 
part to the high quality of life it offers.  Residential development in Fayette County and 
its
ho
acc
bal
 
Go
for he availability 
of housing choices should be greatest in locations that are in close proximity to existing 
inf
 
Ty
In 
of  increase).  The housing stock in 
Fa tte County is predominantly made up of single-family detached homes. Housing in 
the d Woolsey is almost exclusively single-family.  Single-
fam
to 
loc
W
or 
ho
So
 
Fro
Du
sin
res
Pe e is 
av .  The remaining units were permitted in the Town of Tyrone. 
 
Ag
Th
res
wa
les
20  
 


ality is improved by reduced commute distance.   


yette County


 municipalities should provide housing opportunities for all its citizens and a variety of 
using choices in suburban, exurban and rural settings.  Such development must be 
omplished while protecting the quality of the natural environment and providing for a 
anced land use pattern that minimizes land use conflict. 


al for Housing: A variety of housing choices that are adequate, safe, and convenient 
existing and future residents should be available in Fayette County.  T


rastructure and/or employment areas. 


pes of Housing Units 
2000, there were a total of 32,726 housing units in Fayette County.  This is an increase 
10,298 units since the 1990 census (a 46 percent
ye
 more rural areas of Brooks an
ily detached homes made up 85 percent of the housing stock in 2000.  This compares 


65 percent for the Atlanta region and 64 percent for the state. Multi-family units are 
ated in the cities of Fayetteville and Peachtree City where public sewer is available. 


hile the greatest increase has been an increase in the number of large unit buildings (ten 
more units), such buildings still represent a small percent (3.2 percent) of the total 
using stock.  The number of mobile homes actually declined over the last ten years.  
me duplexes have been constructed in the Town of Tyrone. 


m 1990 to 2004, Fayette County issued some 17,925 residential building permits.  
ring this period, approximately 90 percent of the building permits issued was for 
gle-family housing.  Multifamily units constituted approximately ten percent of the 
idential units.  The majority of these multifamily units were built in the cities of 
achtree City (73 percent) and Fayetteville (26 percent) where public sewerag
ailable


e and Condition of Housing 
e housing stock in Fayette County remains fairly new, with 40 percent of the 
idential units being less than ten years old.  Another 35 percent of the housing stock 
s built between 1980 and 1989, making 75 percent of Fayette County’s housing stock 
s than 20 years old.  Some 55 percent of the Atlanta region’s housing stock is less than 
years old; for the state as a whole, the number drops to just fewer than 50 percent.  







 


29 


The condition of housing is described to the extent that complete kitchen and plumbing 
fac
en
ho
kit
19
pe
ho
inc
 
 
Owne its 
 
Of wner-occupied units accounted for just 
ov  renter-occupied. Even with the addition 
of 9,781 single-family units, the percent of owner-occupied units has remained fairly 
sta
ren
 
Th
the
in 
housing stock for the Atlanta region, and the state, at 33.6 and 32.5 percent, respectively.   
 
Co
Th
an
the
(1990-2000), the median cost of owner-occupied housing in the Atlanta MSA increased 
by y 56 percent.   
 
Co
mo
wa
ros
 
Th se in housing costs can be attributed in large part to the growth of the Atlanta 
me
the
ho
 
Ba e to low to 
modera
are
inc


ilities are available. The relative newness of the housing stock, along with strict code 
forcement and active homeowners associations, limits the amount of substandard 
using in Fayette County.    The percent of structures lacking complete plumbing and 
chen facilities continue to decrease. In Fayette County the level fell from 3 percent in 
80 to 0.5 percent in 2000. The Atlanta MSA fell from 1.5 percent in 1980 to 0.4 
rcent for plumbing and from 4.1 percent to 0.4 percent for kitchens. For the state, the 
using lacking complete plumbing fell from 1.7% to 0.6% and from 3.6% to 0.5% for 
omplete kitchens. 


r and Renter Occupied Un


 the total number of occupied units in 2000, o
er 86 percent, while over thirteen percent were


ble since 1990, increasing only 0.3 percent.  Between 1990 and 2000, the percent of 
ter-occupied units decreased by 0.3 percent, to 13.6 percent of occupied units.   


e number of owner-occupied housing units is much lower for the Atlanta region and 
 state, which had owner-occupied rates of 66.4 percent and 67.5 percent, respectively, 
2000.  Consequently, renter-occupied units made up a greater percentage of the 


st of Housing 
e median cost of owner-occupied housing in Fayette County increased between 1980 
d 1990, from $65,000 to$116,700 (an 80 percent increase).  Between 1990 and 2000, 
 cost rose from $116,700 to $171,500 (a 47 percent increase).  During this same period 


 51 percent and in the state b


ntract median rent in Fayette County increased from $178 per month to $487 per 
nth, an increase of 174 percent, between 1980 and 1990.  By 2000, the median rent 
s $890, an 83 percent increase.  Contract median rent in the Atlanta MSA and the state 
e by 69 and 78 percent, respectively, from 1990 to 2000. 


e increa
tropolitan region during the last 20 years, and to inflation.  It can also be attributed to 
 income level of Fayette County residents and the type of detached, single-family 
using so prevalent in Fayette County. 


d on 2000 Census data, 64.6 percent of the housing stock is affordablse
te-income households in Fayette County.   Low to moderate incomes households 


 defined as those households earning 50 to 80 percent of the median household 
ome.  Assumptions include a 10 percent down payment with a loan term of 30 years at 







 


30 


six percent interest and estimates for property taxes, homeowners insurance, and 
ho
 
Households by Type 
In yette County households were families (those with two or 
mo
the
fam
wi
nu
the
 
As
Th  is in good condition.  Houses and yards are 
we  maintained, suggesting a sense of community spirit and pride of ownership among 
ow aracter still exists within the communities of 
Fa
Pe
an
the
tha
av
 
It i
ho
hav
co  much space, and many may need or desire 
multi-fam
acc
clu
 
Th
gro
dro
wi
 
5.3  Natural and Cultural Resources 


Th
Co
Fa
ide ed in the state’s Rules for Environmental 
Planning his includes water supply 


 protected rivers. Fayette has no 
protected mountains. The second section, Other Environmentally Sensitive Areas, 
ide


usehold debt.  


1990, over 85 percent of Fa
re related individuals); by 2000 this percentage had dropped to 82.4 percent.  Half of 
se family households had children less than 18 years of age.  While the number of 
ily households declined, there was an increase in non-family households.  Households 


th single persons increased from 12.5 percent in 1990 to 15 percent in 2000.  The 
mber of households with individuals 65 years of age and over also increased, signaling 
 aging of the population.   


sessment of Housing Needs 
e existing housing stock in Fayette County
ll
ners and residents.  A “small town” ch
yetteville and Tyrone; a more cosmopolitan community atmosphere exists within 
achtree City.  Newer suburban-type development in the unincorporated county reflects 
 upscale, suburban atmosphere.   A rural community atmosphere exists in other areas of 
 unincorporated county and the communities of Brooks and Woolsey.  It is evident 
t among the various jurisdictions, a wide range of living styles and housing choices are 


ailable within Fayette County. 


s anticipated that changes in household size and type will be reflected in the available 
using stock.  The trends toward smaller households and fewer family households will 
e an impact on the type of housing demanded by Fayette County residents in years to 
e.  Smaller families will not require asm


ily and townhouses instead of traditional single-family units.  The 
ommodation of these trends is already seen in an increased number of single-family 
ster developments, town homes, and apartments. 


e Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) projects that Fayette County’s population will 
w to 142,829 by 2020.  The ARC also forecasts that the average household size will 
p over this period from 2.83 to 2.69.  Approximately 15,000 additional housing units 


ll be required from 2000 to 2020. 


        


is element provides guidance for achieving a balance between the need to protect the 
unty’s natural and historic resources while planning for the orderly development of 
yette County.   The first section of this element, Environmental Planning Criteria, 


tifies Fayette County’s local features definn
Criteria and indicates the status of compliance. T


watersheds, wetlands, groundwater recharge areas and


ntifies other sensitive areas including public water supply sources, steep slopes, flood 







 


31 


plains, soils, and plant and animal habitats. The third section addresses Significant 
Na
ma
Re
tra
arc
 
Th in opportunities and constraints on the way land is 
use .  Soil characteristics, the slope of the land, and the flooding frequency are a few 
fac
Ot
an
be
 
Go
lan
pre natural resources and which meet or exceed federal, state, and local standards 
for 
in 
thr
Co
pre
an
of 
 
 
En
 
W
There are five water supply watersheds (drainage basins) in Fayette County: Flint River 
Drainage Basin, Horton Creek Drainage Basin, Whitewater Creek Drainage Basin,  Flat 
Cr ge Basin. Fayette County utilizes each of 
the
 
W


tural Resources. These include scenic areas, prime agricultural and forest land, and 
jor parks, recreation and conservation areas. The final section, Significant Cultural 
sources, identifies rural, residential, commercial, industrial, institutional, 
nsportation, and community resources and landmarks of historic, cultural or 
heological significance.  


e natural environment places certa
d
tors among many which affect where development can safely and feasibly occur.  
her areas such as wetlands, prime agricultural and forest areas, and sensitive plant and 
imal habitats, which are particularly vulnerable to the impacts of development, should 
 given consideration in the planning process and provided appropriate protection.   


al for Natural Resources:  The amount and distribution of population density and 
d uses in the county should be consistent with environmental constraints which 
serve 
water quality, ambient air quality, and other environmental standards.  Development 


the county should provide for the conservation and protection of the environment 
ough the proper utilization and management of the county’s natural resources.  The 
unty should support the conservation of appropriate land areas in a natural state to 
serve, protect, and enhance stream valleys, woodlands, wetlands, farmland, and plant 


d animal life in conjunction with the Georgia Greenspace Program, creating a system 
public open spaces.  


vironmental Planning Criteria 


ater Supply Watersheds 


eek Drainage Basin, and Line Creek Draina
asins as a source of drinking water. se b


ater Quality: The Fayette County Water System monitors surface waters throughout the 
unty on a quarterly basis for pollutants and water quality indicators such as water 
perature, air temperature, conductivity, pH, turbidity and dissolved oxygen.  The 


unty established this monitoring process in 1997.  Surface waters in Fayette County 
nsistently meet the State Drinking Water Quality St


Co
tem
Co
co andard for raw water sources.  
 
Stormwater Management:  Fayette County’s stormwater quantity and quality concerns 


me primarily from non-point sources.  The county does not have a network of pipes 
 culverts to direct the runoff to a treatment area, rather it generally flows either to a 
ention pond or it flows directly to the nearest stream or other water body.   


co
and
det
 







 


32 


Fayette County currently requires a stormwater study be prepared for all development 
pro
of 
pro
ret
hy
 
As
1987.  This ordinance is in compliance with the standards established by DNR for 
wa
Or
thr
str
 
Th
pre essary erosion and sedimentation.  Land disturbing activities must be 
vigorously enforced to ensure protection of water bodies and to avoid other potential land 
use
 
Th
sm
for ational Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit 
for discharge from its storm sewer system.  Fayette County submitted its Notice of Intent 
for 
in 
Sto
wh
ed
illi
po
for
 
W
In
and
W
an ater Creek are extensive and have the least evidence 
of human disturbance.  
 
As
we
of 
the
Co
est water recharge area protection (Development Regulations, 
Ar le IV, Flood Plain Regulations, §8-90).   


jects.  The purpose of such a study is to provide for the effective and safe conveyance 
excess stormwater off of the property in such a way and by such means that adjacent 
perty owners are not adversely affected.  Runoff, flow routing and detention or 


ention basin sizing and outlet control device design calculation must be presented in a 
drological study and report prior to the issuance of development permits. 


sessment.   Fayette County adopted a water supply watershed protection ordinance in 


tershed protection (Development Regulations, Article VII, Watershed Protection 
dinance, §8-201 - 8-205).  The watershed protection ordinance regulates streams under 
ee categories: major water supply streams, named tributaries, and minor unnamed 
eams. 


e County will continue to enhance its Soil Erosion and Sediment Control Ordinance to 
vent unnec


 problems.    


e Federal Phase II Stormwater regulations (40 CFR Part 123.33) require operators of 
all municipal separate storm sewer systems (MS4s), such as Fayette County, to apply 
coverage under a N


coverage under the State of Georgia’s General Stormwater Permit (no. GAG610000) 
March 2003.  The Notice of Intent provides a framework for the County to develop a 
rm Water Management Plan (SWMP) and contains six minimum control measures, 
ich must be addressed by December of 2006.  These six areas include: public 


ucation and outreach, public involvement/participation in the development of the plan, 
cit discharge detection and elimination, construction site stormwater runoff control, 
st-construction stormwater management, and pollution prevention/good housekeeping 
 municipal operations. 


etlands 
ventory. According to the National Wetlands Inventory conducted by the U.S. Fish 
 Wildlife Service, significant wetland areas exist in Fayette County, especially along 


hitewater Creek and the Flint River.  Wetlands also occur around the County’s ponds 
d lakes.  Wetlands along Whitew


sessment. Careful control of development is required to ensure the preservation of 
tlands. The standards established by the DNR require the identification and mapping 
wetlands and require that the issuance of any local building permit is coordinated with 
 Corps of Engineers’ Section 404 permitting program in wetland areas.   Fayette 
unty has adopted a groundwater recharge ordinance in compliance with the standards 
ablished by DNR for ground
tic







 


33 


 
Gr undwater Recharge Areas 
A  the flow of surface water into an aquifer (an 
un
rep
all
var
 
In ed all of the 
recharge areas in the state which are likely to have the greatest vulnerability to pollution 
of 
soi
sou
 
As
wa sidential, 
co ial, and industrial development.  In response, DNR has established standards to 
be 
mi
tan
con
66
co
pro
Or
 
Pr
Cu
Fli
det uth of Fayette County. 
 
Ot  Sensitive Areas 
 
Pu
Th
Dr   Flat 
Creek Drainage Basin, and Line Creek Drainage Basin.  Fayette County utilizes each of 
the
 
Soi
So
cli
on
the
are , erosion patterns, the presence and 
depth of rock, and the presence of water, as in wetland or flood plain areas.  Soil types 


o
recharge area is any area that facilitates
derground reservoir) to recharge it with more water.  Significant recharge action 
lenishes the supply of well water.  While recharge takes place throughout practically 


 of Georgia’s land area, the rate, or amount, of recharge reaching underground aquifers 
ies from place to place depending on geologic conditions.   


ventory.  The Georgia Department of Natural Resources (DNR) has mapp


groundwater from surface and near surface activities of man.  The map indicates thick 
ls exist in the northern portion of Fayette County in the Tyrone area and in the 
thern portion of the county in the Brooks area.  (Map N-2).  


sessment. Wells are now used throughout Fayette County for both public and private 
ter supply.  The relatively flat areas of thick soil are also choice sites for re
mmerc
used in the protection of recharge areas.  These standards include the establishment of 
nimum lot size limitations for new homes and new mobile home parks served by septic 
k/drain field systems; the use of agricultural waste impoundment sites; and secondary 
tainment for above-ground chemical or petroleum storage tanks with a minimum of 


0 gallons.  Fayette County has adopted a groundwater recharge ordinance in 
mpliance with the standards established by DNR for groundwater recharge area 
tection (Development Regulations, Article XI, Groundwater Recharge Area Protection 


dinance, §8-320 - 8-332).   


otected Rivers 
rrently, there are no protected rivers within Fayette County’s jurisdiction.  While the 
nt River is a protected river, the Georgia Department of Community Affairs has 
ermined that its protected status begins so


her Environmentally


blic Water Supply Sources 
ere are five water supply watersheds (drainage basins) in Fayette County: Flint River 
ainage Basin, Horton Creek Drainage Basin, Whitewater Creek Drainage Basin,


se basins as a source of drinking water. 


ls 
il is the product of five factors: parent material (underlying geology), topography, 
mate, plant and animal life, and time.  The nature of the soil at any given place depends 
 the combination of these five factors.  Each factor acts on the soil and each modifies 
 effect of the other four.  Because of this interaction, a knowledge of soil types in an 
a provides a good indication of topography (slope)







 


34 


are also useful in estimating runoff from precipitation, which is essential in developing 
sto
 
A soil types has a direct relationship to development.  While some soils are 
mo
slo
no
ha
fol
 
1. city - the ability of a soil to support weight; 
2. stability - the susceptibility to erosion and failure in sloping terrain; and 


ter.  This 


Fa y Counties.  The Soil Survey creates combined groupings for the 
pur l land 
gen y 
pla
ma
Ap
de
 
Ca


rm water management programs. 


knowledge of 
re conducive to development, others present poor conditions for construction or very 
w water absorption characteristics.  Although soils poorly suited for construction may 
t preclude building, they do exact higher building costs and impose long term 
ndicaps.  The critical aspects in evaluating soils in a built environment include the 
lowing: 


Bearing capa
rosion and E


3. Permeability/drainage - the capacity of soils to receive and transmit wa
capacity directly relates to the soils’ shrink-swell capacity and its ability to support 
septic systems.  It also relates to the soils’ runoff coefficient and potential flooding 
impacts 


 
Inventory. All pertinent information on soils in Fayette County can be found in the 
U.S. Department of Agriculture Soil Conservation Service’s Soil Survey of Clayton, 


tte, and Henrye
pose of genera use planning.  These groupings convey information relevant to 
eral topograph (slope), erosion potential, depth to bedrock, depth to water, flood 
ins, and more importantly, development capability and limitations.  There are four 
jor soil categories present in Fayette County: (1) Cartecay-Wedakee, (2) Cecil-
pling, (3) Gwinnett-Davidson, and (4) Pacolet-Ashlar-Gwinnett.  These categories are 


scribed below.  


rtecay-Wehadkee.  This series consists of nearly level, poorly drained, and somewhat 
orly drained soils that are predominantly loamy throughout; formed in alluvial 
iment.  Brief, frequent flooding is common.  These soils lie along the narrow to wide 
od plains of the Flint Rive


po
sed
flo r and the county’s named streams (Antioch, Camp, Flat, 
Ga  Gingercake, Haddock, Horton, Line, Morning, Murphy, Nash, Perry, Shoal, Tar, 
Tr
pe
be
 
Ce


y,
ickum, Whitewater, and Woolsey).  Because of the flooding hazard (less than two 
rcent slope), these poorly drained soils have low potential for development and should 
 limited to a suitable wildlife habitat. 


cil-Appling   Found in gently sloping and strongly sloping areas, these well-drained 
ls have a red or predominantly yellowish brown clayey subsoil.  Covering 
proximately 78 percent of the county, this unit is used mainly for cultivated crops or 
sture.  Some areas have reverted to woodland.  While these soils have potential for 


elopment, the clayey subsoil needs to be considered before installing most sanitary 
ities and making shallow excavations.  With s


soi
ap
pa
dev
fac lopes ranging from two to ten percent, 
protection f
or 
 


il
rom erosion is necessary regardless of whether the land is used for cultivation 


development. 







 


35 


Gwinnett-Davidson  This unit consists of gently sloping and strongly sloping, well-
dra
fiv
are
cro
hav
un
fac
att
 
Pa


ined soils that have a dark red clayey subsoil.  These soils comprise approximately 
e percent of the county with slopes ranging from two to ten percent. Found in a few 
as primarily in the southern half of the county, this unit is used mainly for cultivated 
ps and pasture, although some areas have reverted to woodland.  The soils in this unit 
e a medium potential for most development purposes.   As with the Cecil-Appling 


it, consideration must be given to the clayey subsoil before installing most sanitary 
ilities and making shallow excavations.  Shrinking and swelling of these soils needs 
ention in those areas used for the construction of roads and buildings. 


colet-Ashlar-Gwinnett  These are moderately steep and steep, well-drained or 
ssively drained soils that have red or dark red clayey or a yellowish brown loamy ex


sub
un
Th
Ste
pro
lim
 
As
soi
eas .  A moderate limitation indicates that soil properties and site features are 
unf vorable for the specified use, but that limitations can be overcome or minimized by 
spe
pro
inc
som
 
So
du
co
sta
its own 
 
Ste
Slo
po
sus
an d proper 
drain rcent may be 
co ep.  Lawns cannot be mowed on slopes in excess of 25 percent 
(E
 
In
slo
cat


ce
soil.  Found primarily along the smaller, unnamed streams in the county, slopes in this 


it range from 10 to 25 percent.  The unit comprises about six percent of the county.  
is unit has low potential for farming, development, and most active recreational uses.  
ep slope is the primary management concern.  The potential for pasture and 
duction of woodland is medium, mainly because of the erosion hazard and equipment 
itation. 


sessment. Soil limitations vary by type and degree.  A slight limitation indicates that 
l properties are generally favorable for the specified use; any limitation is minor and 
ily overcome
a
cial planning and design.  A severe limitation indicates that one or more soil 
perties or site features are so unfavorable or difficult to overcome that a major 
rease in construction effort, special design, or intensive maintenance is required.  For 
e soil limitations rated severe, such costly measures may not be feasible. 


ils in Georgia are erosion prone by their very nature.  When the vegetation is removed, 
e to development, naturally this potential increases.  With proper design and erosion 
ntrol regulations soil erosion can be reduced.  The problem of soil erosion is addressed 
te-wide by the Georgia Erosion and Sedimentation Act.  Locally, Fayette County has 


soil erosion and sedimentation control regulations. 


ep Slopes 
pe analysis is important because it helps to determine suitable land uses and identifies 


tential environmental hazards, such as erosion, and safety hazards, such as slopes 
ceptible to sliding.  The steeper the slope, the more expensive construction becomes 


d the more difficult it may be to provide a safe access road, sewers, an
age and to stabilize the soil.  Generally speaking, slopes over 10 pe


nsidered to be ste
ncyclopedia of Community Planning and Environmental Management). 


ventory. Slopes in Fayette County range from nearly level to steeply sloping.  Steep 
pes of 15 percent or greater generally occur in the Pacolet-Ashlar-Gwinnett soil 
egory.  These areas are located primarily along portions of major streambanks, such as 







 


36 


Whitewater Creek, Flat Creek, and Camp Creek.  Most of these sloping areas remain 
co
ord
 
Asse e to the unstable nature of north Georgia soils, unregulated 
dev o
W
sig
ye
Pro
(D
sil
mi
 
Flo
In gency (FEMA) has identified and 
ma ped areas in Fayette County which are prone to flooding (Map N-4).  These areas 
inc nt to the county’s major streams and tributaries and a number of 
mi e
flo
 
As
the
FE including fill, new 
construction, substantial improvements and other developments within the floodway 
un b
en
frin
im
15
 
Pla
In
Fa
thr
Th de: 


 Purple Bankclimber


vered with protective vegetation due to their protection under various Fayette County 
inances.  


ssment. Du
elopment can pr duce a variety of environmental problems.   The Fayette County 


atershed Protection Ordinance (Development Regulations, §8-201 - 8-205)  requires 
nificant natural, undisturbed buffers and setbacks from the stream bank or the 100-
ar flood plain, whichever is greater. On slopes outside the protection of the Watershed 
tection Ordinance, the county’s Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Ordinance 


evelopment Regulations, §8-241 - 8-266)  requires erosion control measures, such as 
t fences during construction, and vegetative cover upon completion of construction, to 
nimize adverse impacts of development. 


od Plains 
ventory. The Federal Emergency Management A
p
lude lands adjace


wnor streams as ll.  Approximately fourteen percent of Fayette County is affected by 
od plain boundaries as delineated by FEMA.  


sessment. Fayette County’s flood plain protection regulations were adopted to meet 
 eligibility requirements of the National Flood Insurance Program administered by 
MA.  The flood plain regulations prohibit encroachment, 


less certification y a registered professional engineer is provided demonstrating that 
croachment shall not result in any increase in flood levels.  Development in flood 
ges is subject to permitting to ensure that the rise in water surface elevation will not 


pact others (Development Regulations, Article IV, Flood Plain Regulations, §8-81 - 8-
5). 


nt and Animal Habitats 
ventory. The Georgia DNR Heritage Inventory indicates there are five species in 
yette County  that are listed either endangered or threatened. The endangered and 
eatened species in Fayette County are generally aquatic shellfish found in streams.  
ey inclu
•  (Elliptoideus sloatianus).  Threatened.  Habitat: Large rivers 


n sand and limestone rock substrate. and creeks with some current i
• Shiny-Rayed Pocketbook (Lampsilis subangulata).  Endangered.  Habitat: 


Sandy/rocky medium-sized rivers and creeks. 
• Gulf Moccasinshell (Medionidus penicillatus).  Endangered.  Habitat: 


Sandy/rocky medium-sized rivers and creeks. 
• Highscale Shiner (Notropis hypsilepis).  Threatened.  Habitat: Blackwater and 


brownwater streams. 
• Oval Pigtoe (Pleurobema pyriforme).  Endangered.  Habitat: Sandy Medium sized 


rivers and creeks. 







 


37 


 
Th ecies identified are vulnerable to the impacts of rapid land use changes and 
po
 
Asse
ad
env
ha
 
Sc
Portions of Fayette County are still rural in nature.  A rural landscape is perceived as 
sce much of rural Fayette County could be considered 
sce
atm
 
To 
ad oads Procedure to assist citizens in the preservation 
of rural and scenic roads through the control of their own property.  The procedure 
req
Ro
 
 
 
 
Pr e Agricultural and Forest Land 
Agricultural Land.   Every five years, the U.S. Bureau of the Census conducts a Census 
of Agriculture.  For census purposes, a farm is any place from which $1,000 or more of 
ag al products were produced and sold, or normally would have been sold, during 
the ensus year.  The Census of Agriculture indicates that between 1987 and 2002, the 
nu amount of acreage in farms decreased 
by
dur
per
sup
an
 
M
Cu
Fa
Co
 
Su
Fa nment 
and nvironmental policy or a 
reg


e sp
pulation growth and should be protected by the community to the extent possible. 


ssment. Fayette County has no ordinances or development regulations specifically 
dressing sensitive plant and animal habitat.  However, the aforementioned 
ironmental ordinances and regulations aid in preserving water quality and wildlife 


bitat through flood plain and watershed buffer regulations. 


enic Views and Sites 


nic to many.  For this reason, 
nic.  However, as more and more of Fayette County is developed, this scenic rural 
osphere is disappearing. 


aid in the preservation of scenic areas in Fayette County, the Board of Commissioners 
opted the Fayette County Scenic R


uires 100 percent of the affected property owners be in agreement with the Scenic 
ads requirements before the road can be designated scenic. 


im


ricultur
 c
mber of farms increased by 13 percent and the 
 19 percent.  While  the value of land and buildings per farm increased 18 percent 
ing this same period, the average production expenses per farm increased by 36 
cent.  Those involved in agricultural endeavors usually rely on other occupations to 
plement their incomes.  In 2002, approximately 56 percent of farming operators had 


other occupation in addition to farming.   


ajor Park, Recreation and Conservation Areas 
rrently, there are no major federal, state, or regional park and recreation areas in 
yette County.  The county’s existing parks are local in nature and are discussed in the 
mmunity Facilities and Services Element of this comprehensive plan. 


mary m
yette County has many regulations and policies designed to protect the enviro
 conserve our ecological resources.  In the final analysis, an e
ulation that applies to development will only achieve the desired effect if it is 







 


38 


identified at the time of application review, enforced during development, maintained 
aft
 
Sig ificant Cultural Resources 
 
An  conducted by Historic Preservation Services, 
Inc. o
arc
co
bo
res
co
ma
 
Th
inv esources in the county 
divided into the following sections: Residential Resources, Commercial Resources,  
Ind
an
sec


er development is over, and monitored for continued performance.  


n


 Architectural Survey of Fayette County
f Macon, Georgia, identified some 410 historic structures, based on age and/or 


hitectural integrity.  Historic building types include houses, churches, schools, 
mmercial buildings, train depots, a courthouse, and a mill.  These structures are located 
th in the cities and the unincorporated county.  Preservation of these important 
ources makes it possible for them to continue to play an integral, vital role in the 
mmunity.  However, the majority of these structures remain in private ownership, 
king their protection and preservation difficult.  


e following section offers a brief history of Fayette County.  Subsequent sections 
entory the historic, archeological, and culturally significant r


ustrial Resources, Institutional Resources, Transportation Resources, Rural Resources, 
d Other Historic, Archaeological and Cultural Resources.  Portions of the following 
tions have been taken from “The History of Fayette County, 1821-1971"  which was 


blished by the Fayette County Historical Society. 


 
ral Resources 
nwood Community: The Kenwood Community is located in


yette County, between  SR 85 and SR 314 at Kenwood Road a


pu
 
 
Ru
Ke  the northeastern section 
of nd Old Road.  At one 
tim use, 
bla e earliest stores 
dat tarted in 1921.  Although vacant, the shells of the stores 
an
 
In
Fli
Ro
tha
co eral store and two churches as its 
centers of community life (The History of Fayette County, 1821-1971


Fa
e, Kenwood was a lively business center with numerous stores, a gin ho
cksmith shop, a grist mill, post office, railway station, and a dairy.   Th
e from 1885; the dairy was s


d railroad station remain to this day.  


man Community: Located five miles south of Fayetteville, bordered on the east by the 
nt River, on the south by the city limits of Woolsey, on the west by Woolsey-Brooks 
ad, and on the north by the settlement known as Harps, there are the twenty land lots 
t were formerly incorporated as Inman.  Once a bustling center of farming and 


mmercial activity, the community now has a gen
)  


 
Sta
the
on
dy
had
 
 
 


rr’s Mill Community: The boundaries of Staff’s Mill Community are Jones Hill on 
 north to Line Creek on the south and from Flat Creek on the west to Haddock Creek 
 the east.  In addition to the mill, the site also included a saw mill, a cotton gin, and a 
namo that produced electricity for nearby Senoia.  At its height, the community also 
 a post office, a blacksmith shop, a church, and stores.  







 


39 


Residential Resources 
Th uctures identified in the Architectural Survey of Fayette 
Co
Re
En
W
are
 
Co
Th nwood Community (see Rural Resources) has remnants of a once prosperous 
co that was Carnes Mercantile Store (1895-1904) although 
va
   
Th
co old Inman Store (1885-1894), now vacant, still remains in its 
ori al location on Hills Bridge Road. 
 
Ind
ge
(ne
 
In
Fa
Bu is mill provided grain to the surrounding 
co munity.  One of several mills located on Whitewater Creek, Starr’s Mill, including 
the , was purchased by Fayette County in 1991.   The pond is 
use
fis
mo
a c
Ro
 
In
On
Na
the
Ste courthouse is now the home of the Fayette County Chamber of Commerce 
and the Fayette County Development Authority.   
 
Fa
rep
som
Ch
18
Me (1848). 
 


e vast majority of the 410 str
unty are single family dwellings.  These include examples of Greek Revival, Gothic 
vival, Queen Anne, Folk Victorian, Colonial Revival, Neoclassical, Craftsman, and 
glish Vernacular Revival styles.  Structures range in age from circa 1830 to 1940.  
hile some structures lie vacant, many have been restored to their original splendor and 
 still used as single family homes today. 


mmercial Resources 
e Ke
mmercial center.  The structure 
cant, remains.   


e Inman Community (see Rural Resources) also has remnants of what was a thriving 
mmercial center.  The 
gin


ividual commercial enterprises were scattered around the county.  An example is the 
neral store (1914-1920) at SR 92 South and Goza Road.  It still functions as a general 


ghborhood) store today. i


dustrial Resources 
yette County is home to Starr’s Mill, one of the most photographed sites in Georgia.  
ilt around 1900 on SR 85 South, th
m
 pond and surrounding area
d as a water intake source by the Fayette County Water System.  Favored by 


hermen and picnickers, the mill and pond are also often the scene of weddings and 
vie sets (The War, Fried Green Tomatoes, Sweet Home Alabama).   Although vacant, 
otton warehouse (circa 1910-1914) still stands at the corner of Tyrone and Castlewood 
ads.   


stitutional Resources 
e of the best known and earliest structures, and the only one in Fayette County on the 
tional Historic Register, is the Fayette County Courthouse.  Located on the square in 
 county seat of  Fayetteville, the courthouse was constructed in 1825 by Finley G. 
wart.  The 


yette County’s growth has caused many of its historic church congregations to either 
lace their historic structures or alter their architectural integrity. However, there are 
e historic churches in the county which remain intact.  These include: Old Rock 


urch (1880-1889), Hopeful Baptist Church (1905-1914), Ebenezer Church (1880-
89), New Hope Church (1880-1889),  Starr’s Mill Baptist Church (1887), Hartford 
thodist Church (1935), and County Line Christian Church 







 


40 


The City of Fayetteville is home to the old Fayetteville Post Office (1920), now a retail 
sto
Hi
 
Tr s 
Th ayetteville Depot, the Kenwood Depot (1895-1905) 
and
Ro
Cit
Th
Inm
 
Ot
Th
Historical Society maintains cemetery records of engraved gravestones dating from 1821.  
W  the oldest 
cem
cem
 
Ar
pie
the
un  same type of artifacts.  Artifacts from this site are curated by the City of 
Pe


re, and the Margaret Mitchell Library (1945), now home to the Fayette County 
storical Society. 


sportation Resourcean
ree historic depots remain - The F
 the Ackert Depot (1890-1899).  The Kenwood Depot, located on the east side of Old 


ad south of Kenwood Road, is now vacant.  The Fayetteville Depot is owned by the 
y of Fayetteville.  The City refurbished the depot and it is used as a community center.  
e Ackert Depot, located on the north side of Hills Bridge Road and John Street in 
an has been privately purchased and restored, using the original plans.  


her Historic, Archaeological and Cultural Resources 
ere are approximately 150 known cemeteries in Fayette County.  The Fayette County 


hile some cemeteries are a part of churches and are well kept, many of
eteries in the county are in abandoned villages, abandoned churchyards or are family 
eteries on land that no longer belongs to those whose families are buried there.  


chaeological finds in the development of various county reservoirs include shards and 
ces of pottery.  Indian arrowheads were also recovered.  These artifacts are curated  by 
 Fayette County Water System.  The development of Falcon Field in Peachtree City 
covered the
achtree City.  







 


41 


 
 


HISTORY OF FAYETTE COUNTY 
 


Fayette County was formed from lands c .  It was  Chief 
William 
land
the 
 
Fay
sma rossroads and creeks with a mill 
and
loca
Whi
 
Tho
larg
pop .  Though the county escaped the Civil War 
burn
alon
men
com
 
Des
som
prin
hold
 
In 1
calle
som
Flor
Birm  Atlantic ran through the west side of the county. 
 
The
of 1
by t
mov
railr
 
The e
road
193
still 
maj
mar
side brought to six the number of incorporated 
tow
How
The
indu
Atla
pop
and
lost
follo


 


eded by Creek Indians in the Treaty of 1821
McIntosh of the Lower Creek Nation who signed the treaty at Indian Springs to cede the 


 which is now Fayette County.  The county was named for the General Marquis de la Fayette, 
French hero of the American Revolutionary War. 


etteville was the County seat and commerce center; the remainder of the county was principally 
 subsistence farms with villages formed at the juncture of cll


 a merchant usually found in each.  Before 1840, small villages existed at or near the present 
tions of Kenwood, Hopeful, Sandy Creek, Tyrone, Flat Creek, Cross Roads, Starr’s Mill, 
tewater, Brooks, Inman, and Woolsey. 


ugh 46 percent of the county’s wealth by 1860 was invested in slaves, there were only a few 
e landowners who owned numerous slaves, and none owned as many as 50.  The slave 


ation was about 25 percent of the total populationul
ing suffered in neighboring counties, looting took place and there was some military activity 
g the route of a supply train and in the southeast area around Inman.  The far greater loss was 
 as the county sent six companies of infantry, two companies of cavalry, and several 
panies of state guards and suffered large numbers of casualties. 


pite the economic hardships following the war, most towns and villages survived and there was 
e population growth.  Agriculture remained the mainstay of the economy with cotton as the 
cipal crop.  The crop lien system developed and there was considerable consolidation of land 
ings. 


871, the Savannah, Griffin, and North Alabama Railroad built a depot in Sharon Grove at a stop 
d Brooks.  The rail era had begun and new bustling towns sprang up along the routes and 
e of the earlier crossroads villages ceased to exist.  Between 1880 and 1900, the Atlanta and 
ida Railroad completed a line between Atlanta and Fort Valley.  In 1907, the Atlanta, 


ngham, andi


 economy continued to prosper with agriculture as the mainstay until the boll weevil infestation 
921.  This, along with other factors that brought on the farm depression of the 1920's, followed 
he Great Depression, brought severe economic times.  Farmers abandoned their farms and 
ed into nearby cities and towns seeking jobs.  Banks closed in some of the towns and the 
oads began cutting back on their routes. 


nd of the depression and the general prosperity in the country following WWII, combined with 
s and automobiles, brought the next significant changes.  The first road was paved in the 


0s between Fayetteville and Jonesboro.  When SR 85 was built in 1949, Fayette County was 
rural with most farm land being in pasture for cattle.  The automobile and the nearness to a 
or airport and the City of Atlanta began to bring suburban growth.  In the 1950's, a community 
ked by planned growth and reserved green space and natural areas, was chartered on the west 


f the county.  It was called Peachtree City.  This  o
ns in Fayette County - Fayetteville, Tyrone, Brooks, Woolsey, Inman, and Peachtree City.  
ever, in 1971, Inman dropped their corporation charter.   
 last 30 years have seen an influx of wealth into Fayette County, primarily from airport-related 
stries and employees.  This growth has made Fayette County a “bedroom community” for the 
nta metropolitan area, where over 60 percent of Fayette Countians commute to work.  A 
ulation increase of over 700 percent since 1970 has created the need for new homes, schools, 
 shopping centers.   While such growth caused many of the county’s historic building stock to be 
, many structures from Fayette County’s past still remain.  These resources are discussed in the 
wing sections.  


  







 


42 


5.4          Community Facilities and Services 


The vigorous growth of Fayette County has been paralleled by demands for community 
fac
de
Ho
wi
ex
inc
pro
de
 
Th
Pla s enjoyed by county residents is a 
significant local attribute and its continuation requires sound and supportable planning 
gu
lan
mi
pro
me
pri
ad
me
Ele
  
Th
im
co
bas  of priorities and include an estimated cost and anticipated method of 
funding each project. 
 
Th
wh
the
ob
ser e county’s ability to provide them, are essential to 
maintaining the quality of life in the county. 
 
Go
he
cou
ad
co
int sed needs for community 
facilities. 
 


 


ilities and services. The county's present system of community facilities and services 
monstrate a high commitment to service provision and the community's expectations. 
wever, as the infrastructure in currently developed portions of the county ages, there 
ll be increased competition between newer and older areas for facility dollars.  If the 
isting level of service is to be maintained in a fiscally sound manner, it will become 
reasingly important to cause future development to occur concurrently with the 
vision of adequate community facilities and services which support the increased 


velopment of an area. 


e Community Facilities and Services Element of the Fayette County Comprehensive 
n recognizes that the level of public service


idelines. These must not only ensure that there is a balance between the county's future 
d use intensity, but that new facilities are located to maximize accessibility while 
nimizing neighborhood impact.   Therefore, it is the purpose of this Plan element to 
vide specific guidance on the following: locational criteria, service levels, and 
thods for determining the specific need and appropriate timing of facilities.  The 
mary mechanism for applying this guidance and ensuring a well balanced and 
equate community facility system is through the Capital Improvement Program. This 
chanism is an important tool for implementing the county’s Community Facilities 
ment.   


e Capital Improvement Program provides the financial foundation necessary to 
plement plans.  The county’s Capital Improvement Program guides the development of 
mmunity facilities over a five-year period. Projects are listed in a sequential order 
ed on a schedule


e Board of Commissioners has adopted goals, objectives, policies, and guidelines 
ich relate directly to community facilities and services.  The following goal establishes 
 basis for community facilities planning in Fayette County as articulated by the 
jectives and policies in this element.  This goal also emphasizes that community 
vices and facilities, and th


al for Community Facilities and Services:  Development in the county should be 
ld to a level and rate which is consistent with the availability and adequacy of the 
nty’s community facilities.  The provision of community facilities must ensure an 


equate level of service for existing and future residents.  Plans to provide for new 
mmunity facilities and for the maintenance of existing community facilities should take 
o account financial limitations associated with increa







 


43 


Water Supply and Treatment 
 
Inventory.  The Fayette County Water System is the major supplier of public water in 
Fa
mu
of 
sup
res
 
Su


yette County, providing water to areas of the unincorporated county as well as the 
nicipalities of Peachtree City, Tyrone and Woolsey.  The Town of Brooks and the City 
Fayetteville have their own water systems and purchase water from the county to 
plement their supply.  Raw water is drawn from the Flint River, Starr’s Mill Pond, 
ervoirs, various wells, and the City of Atlanta.   


pply and Production:  The existing water treatment plants (Crosstown Plant and South 
Fa ater Plant) currently treat 19.5 millions gallons per day (MGD) of raw water.  
Th
ele
 
Th
ga urces which include Lake Horton, Lake 
Ke on, Lake Peachtree, Line Creek, Whitewater Creek, Flint River, various wells and 
the
the
 
Th
inc
MG  Treatment Plant and 0.8 MGD from various wells.  
Th ette Water Plant can be high rated to nine MGD. 
 
Th
Pe
int
 
Consumers


yette W
ere is a total storage capacity of approximately 16.25 MGD using a combination of 
vated storage tanks and clear wells. 


e Water System presently has the capacity of providing approximately 20.3 million 
llons of water per day (MGD) utilizing many so
dr
 City of Atlanta.  The Water System has a contract to purchase up to four MGD from 
 City of Atlanta.  


e Fayette County Water System has a total production capacity of 20.3 MGD.  This 
ludes thirteen and one half (13.5) MGD from the Crosstown Road Treatment Plant, six 
D from the South Fayette County


e South Fay


e Water System has three existing reservoirs: Lake Kedron (235 acres), Lake 
achtree (250 acres) and Lake Horton (790 acres).  Lake Horton utilizes two off-site 
akes, the Flint River and Whitewater Creek. 


:  According to recent estimated averages, 69 percent of Fayette County 
ho
the
sys
acc e 1990, when the Water 
Sy
 
Di


useholds are served by the Fayette County Water System.  The remaining 31 percent of 
 residents receive water from the municipalities of Fayetteville or Brooks, private well 
tems, or individual wells. The number of residential, commercial, and industrial water 


unts in 2002 totaled 23,479, an increase of 10,235 sinco
stem had 13,244 accounts.  


stribution: The Water System includes more than 526 miles of water lines in various 
meters and materials.  All water lines are either (1) constructed by the Water System’s 
n crews, (2) contracted for with the construction monitored and approved by the Water 
stem’s engineer, or (3) constructed by developers and contributed to the Water System 
on inspection and approval of the construction by the Water System.   


dia
ow
Sy
up
 
Th
con
To
 


e Water System wholesales water to the City of Fayetteville under a wholesale water 
tract which expires in 2034.  The Water System is also the backup supplier for the 


wn of Brooks under a wholesale water contract which expires in 2024. 







 


44 


Assessment.  Water demand is projected to increase to 23.2 MGD in 2020 and 31.2 
MG
res
cou
 
Tw
ga
de
 
 
Sewerage and Wastewater Treatment 
 
In htree City own and operate municipal 
sew nt of sewerage service in the SR74 
No h corridor through a contractual agreement with the City of Fairburn.  
Un
de
 
As
pre
ne
Ma agement Plan which will take a number of years to implement.  The report states that 
sin
tre
thr
 
To 
W
eq
mu cility.  The equipment will be installed in conjunction 
with upgrades being made by PTCWSA to existing sewerage treatments facilities. 
 
 
Sol
 
In
ado
(G MA).  The seven elements addressed in the plan are: Amount of Waste, Collection, 
Re ction, Disposal, Land Limitations, Education and Public Involvement, and 
Im  goal of the GSWMA is for every jurisdiction to 
red ing into landfills by 25 percent.  The plan includes 
Br lle
Fa
Af
 


D in 2030.  As a result, the county is pursuing a 404 permit for a new 650 acre 
ervoir on Line Creek.  During drought conditions, Lake McIntosh, located on the 
nty line with Coweta County, will provide an additional eight MGD.    


 future water tank sites have been identified with plans to construct a 2,000,000 o
llon water tank on each site over the next six years.  The South Fayette Water Plant is 
signed to be expanded to 18 MGD. 


ventory.  Only the cities of Fayetteville and Peac
erage systems.  Tyrone provides a limited amou


rt
incorporated Fayette County, Brooks and Woolsey have no sewerage and all 


velopment is served by septic systems, most being individual septic tank systems. 


sessment.  The Metropolitan North Georgia Water Planning District (MNGWPD) 
pared the Short-Term Wastewater Capacity Plan to address the immediate capacity 


eds of local wastewater treatment systems in preparation of a Long-Term Wastewater 
n
ce both Fayetteville and Peachtree City have plans in place to increase wastewater 
atment capacity that no short-term capacity issues are identified in Fayette County 
ough the year 2008.   


address septage disposal needs, Fayette County is working with the Peachtree City 
ater and Sewer Authority (PTCWSA).  Fayette County is funding the installation of 
uipment which separates the septage liquids and solids prior to it going into a 
nicipal sewerage treatment fa


id Waste Management 


ventory. The Fayette County Comprehensive Solid Waste Management Plan was 
pted in 1999 to fulfill the requirements of the Georgia Solid Waste Management Act 


SW
du
plementation and Financing.  The


ce the amount of solid waste gou
ooks, Fayettevi , Peachtree City, Tyrone and Woolsey, as well as unincorporated 
yette County.  The plan was approved by the Georgia Department of Community 
fairs (DCA) in April of 1999. 







 


45 


Refuse collection in the unincorporated county is provided by private contractors.  All 
cu
by
the
 
Fa vate contractor.  Solid waste from 
this fa
 
Re  
cit ens by the county at the transfer station on First Manassas Mile Road.  This facility 
has
car
Par
 
As
am lid waste being diverted from the landfills through waste reduction, reuse 
and recycling.  In addition, the plan identifies the need for a more accessible recycling 
cen
 
 
Ot
 
Public Safety 
Th rovision of public safety services is basic to an orderly society and to the protection 
and y of county residents. For the most part, these 
functions in the u e the responsibility of law enforcement agencies 
(th  the Marshal’s Office), the Department of Fire and Emergency 
Ser
the
the
 
Fir
In
ch
Ser
pro
municipalities of Brooks, Tyrone and Woolsey, Emergency Medical Services to the same 
jur ille and Emergency Management to all 
res te 
bet
wi
 
Fir


rb-side pick up of residential solid waste in unincorporated Fayette County is handled 
 private haulers.  County citizens contract directly with these companies.  Some of 
se companies offer recycling services. 


tte County’s transfer station is operated by a priye
cility is taken to Live Oak Landfill in DeKalb County, Georgia. 


cycling services and yard waste drop off disposal are provided to all Fayette County
iz
 receptacles for drop off of aluminum, scrap metals, glass, newspaper, white paper and 
dboard.  Newspaper recycling receptacles are also located in Kiwanis and McCurry 
ks.  


sessment. The plan identifies the need for a data collection system to determine the 
ount of so


ter.     


her Facilities and Services 


e p
 safeguarding of the health and safet


nincorporated county ar
e Sheriff’s Office and
vices (Fire/EMS), Emergency 911 Communications, and the Judicial System.  Each of 
se functions is discussed in this section with specific objectives and policies. However, 
re are certain general guidelines, objectives and policies that are common to all.  


e and Emergency Services  
ventory. The Fayette County Department of Fire and Emergency Services is 
arged with the responsibility of providing Fire Protection, Emergency Medical 
vices, and Emergency Management. These functions are provided through the 
vision of fire protection to the unincorporated areas of the county and the 


isdictions with the addition of Fayettev
idents of Fayet County. Mutual Aid and Automatic Aid agreements are maintained 
ween the City of Fayetteville and the county.  Mutual Aid agreements are in effect 
th Peachtree City. 


e Protection:  The delivery of fire protection services includes emergency response to 
 fire calls and alarms, the provision of fire prevention through the Bureau of Fire 
vention and fire safety education. The department maintains a comprehensive 
vention effort that includes new construction plan review and enforcement of the State 


all
Pre
pre







 


46 


Fire Prevention Code as well as the NFPA Life Safety Code and other NFPA Standards 
and
res
bur
pro
 
Em ical Services:


 codes. In addition the department conducts semi-annual fire inspections of all non-
idential facilities, issues permits for hazardous operations and administers the outdoor 
ning program. Fire safety education is accomplished through established educational 
grams. 


ergency Med   The department provides Advanced Life Support 
Ambulance Transport and First Responder Emergency Medical Services. The provision 
of 
Re
me
thr
 
Th
Per MT’s and 35 volunteer firefighters.  The 
dep rtment utilizes cross-trained personnel (to the level of Emergency Medical 
Te
thi
cer
 
Em


these services is authorized and licensed through the State Department of Human 
sources. The Department is the designated 911 Zone provider to all emergency 
dical calls within Fayette County with the exception of Peachtree City as stipulated 
ough the Region IV EMS Council. 


e Department operates nine existing fire stations located throughout the county.  
sonnel consists of 125 full-time firefighters/E
a


chnician) to provide fire protection and emergency medical services.  In addition to 
s basic level certification, the department has approximately 60 personnel who are also 
tified and trained to the Paramedic level. 


ergency Management: Responsibilities of the Department of Fire and Emergency 
vices in this area include coordinating the functions of preparedness, mitigation, 
ponse, and recovery in the event of a disaster, wheth


Ser
res er natural or man made.  Inclusive 
within this responsibility is the maintenance and administration of the county’s Disaster 
Pla
inc
 
Ad
ma
as 
Th rce 
Councils are functions of the department’s emergency management responsibilities. 
Ho
po
 
As
ess
pro
De
po
pe
 
Th
co
Fa
est


n.  The plan reflects emergency management functions on a countywide basis and 
ludes Fayetteville, Peachtree City, Tyrone, Brooks and Woolsey.   


ditionally, the coordination of response to Hazardous Material Incidents and 
intenance of a comprehensive hazardous materials plan is administered by this office 
required by the Community Right-To-Know Act, otherwise known as SARA Title III.  
e Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC) and the Local Emergency Resou


meland Security has recently been added as an additional function in light of the 
tential for Weapons of Mass Destruction events and domestic terrorism. 


sessment. The 2003 institution of a manpower squad should serve to provide the 
ential operational personnel for emergency response. However, there is a need to 
vide full-time shift supervisory personnel that would be responsible for assisting the 
puty Chief of Operations in the fulfillment of those duties. There have been no 
sitions added to these functions during the last twenty years as the primary focus on 


onnel has been on acquiring sufficient apparatus staffing.  rs


e current level of service of Advanced Life Support Ambulances has remained 
nstant during the last twenty years. However, municipal growth within the City of 
yetteville and adjacent areas has indicated a need for an additional ambulance to meet 
ablished service standards. At the present time, the ambulance serving the Fayetteville 







 


47 


and surrounding area is approaching 2000 calls annually or approximately 38% of EMS 
tot
the
ou
 
Sta he provision of fire services.  
Th
to 
 
Fir ty are located to provide maximum coverage based on a 
fiv minute average response time. This response goal is critical to providing effective 
fir
ser
Ser
nin
acc
dep
 
Th
sta
cen
de ining future demand for emergency services. While providing new facilities to 
me
ser
reh
an
de
 
Na
fir
fir
fir hich should be available for the eight engines.  National standards 
use nt require one EMS vehicle per 15,000 population and one EMS 
tec
 
An
pro
req
Ge
Di
are pons of Mass Destruction) planning. Record 
ke
Tit
co
 
 


al call volume. It is estimated that an additional transport unit will be required within 
 next 2 years to absorb the increase in call volume and reduce the dependency on 
tlying units to respond to this coverage zone. 


ting in 2000, the county began assessing impact fees for tr
e Capital Improvement Element contained in this plan identifies the fire service needs 
the year 2023.  


e/EMS stations in the coun
e 
e suppression as well as emergency medical services.  This existing level and quality of 
vice is considered adequate to meet current needs.  Fayette County has an Insurance 
vices Office (ISO) rating of five in areas served by public water and in ISO rating of 
e in areas not served by public water.  The department has recently been awarded 
reditation through the Commission on Fire Accreditation International.  The 
artment is the first fire agency in the State of Georgia to be awarded accredited status.  


e county's adopted Fire and Rescue Station Location Master Plan has determined that 
tions can be located to enable a five minute average response time to at least 80 per 
t of the county's population. The fundamental element in facility planning is 


term
et the increasing demand is expected to be a primary focus for the fire and emergency 
vices, it is becoming apparent that existing facilities will require additions and 
abilitation to accommodate necessary emergency response equipment.  Continued 


alysis of resource utilization may result in redeployment of equipment to heavier 
mand areas.  


tional Fire Prevention Association standards recommend a minimum of four 
efighters for each apparatus.  The eight engines are presently staffed with two 
efighters per apparatus.  In terms of this standard, there is a total deficit of 16 
efighters per shift w


 by the Departmed
hnician per 2,000 population. 


 additional full time staff position is indicated for responsibilities associated with the 
vision of emergency management functions.  Risk management and threat assessment 
uirements including an all hazards analysis for the community as stipulated by the 
orgia Emergency Management Agency has increased the need for staff assistance. 
saster funding eligibility requires that comprehensive threat and risk assessment plans 


eveloped in concert with WMD (Wea d
eping and retention including dissemination of information as required under SARA 
le III (Superfund Authorization and Reauthorization Act) will require additional 
mputer capabilities. 







 


48 


Law Enforcement 
 
Inventory. Law enforcement in unincorporated Fayette County is provided by two 
ag riff
Sh
Br
ow
inc
con
aw
an
De
 
Th
an
political jurisdiction.  Because the jail facility benefits the entire county as a whole, the 
ser
con
fac
ret
 
Th
en
cou accidents 
and property damage involving county personnel and property.    The Fayette County 
Ma
 
As
No
fac
po pace to 
acc mmodate personnel. 
 
 
Em
 
In
an  and its municipalities.  The county and each of its 
municipalities provide funding for this service based on a formula in the Consolidated 
Communications Agreement.  A total staff of 29 (25 full-time and 4 part-time) working 
thr
 
Asse  E
ad io
saf
ad


encies, the She ’s Department and the Marshal’s Office. The Fayette County 
eriff’s Department provides law enforcement in unincorporated Fayette County, 
ooks and Woolsey.  The cities of Fayetteville, Peachtree City and Tyrone provide their 
n law enforcement functions. Services provided by the Fayette County Sheriff’s Office 
lude law enforcement and patrol activities, operation of the jail for the incarceration of 
victed criminals and those individuals who have been accused of crimes and are 


aiting trial, provision of security services for the court system, criminal investigations, 
d the serving of warrants and civil processes.  The Fayette County Sheriff’s 
partment currently employs 215 persons which includes 119 sworn officers.  


e unincorporated county, the cities of Brooks, Fayetteville, Peachtree City, Tyrone, 
d Woolsey all utilize the services of the jail as the facility is available without regard to 


vice area for the jail facility is considered to be the entire county.  The new jail facility 
sists of two pods housing 192 inmates each for a total capacity of 384 inmates.  The 
ility is designed to be expandable to a total of four pods.  The existing jail will be 
ained giving Fayette County a total capacity of 472 inmates. 


e Fayette County Marshal’s Office provides security for county-owned property, 
forces county codes and regulations, develops safety policies and procedures for 
nty employees and investigates Workman’s Compensation claims, traffic 


rshal’s Office currently has a force of  nine sworn officers.    


sessment. The Sheriff has identified the need for a satellite precinct in the SR 92 
rth Corridor and a training facility with a firing range.  The sharing of a training 
ility with the Fayette County Department of Fire and Emergency Services is also a 
ssibility.  The Marshal’s Office has identified the need for additional office s
o


ergency 911 Communications Center 


ventory. The Emergency 911 Communications Center was consolidated in 1995 
d provides service to the county


ee shifts operate the center 24 hours a day. 


ssment. The mergency 911 Communications Center has identified the need of an 
dition to the rad  room to accommodate equipment and personnel.  As with any public 
ety agency, as the county grows, additional personnel will be needed to maintain an 
equate level of service.  







 


49 


 
 
Judicial System 
 
Invent stem (State Court, Superior Court, Magistrate Court, Juvenile 
Co ur
an
Sp
req
Ce
 
As
ne judicial system.  The 50,000 square foot third floor of this facility which is 
cu d
 
 
Ho
 
Inventory 
Fa


ory. The court sy
urt, Probate Co t District Attorney & Solicitor) primarily involves the administration 
d enforcement of justice based on civil and criminal laws of the State of Georgia. 
ace for retention of court records, as required by code, continues to be an important 
uirement of the Court system.  These offices are housed in the Fayette County Justice 
nter. 


sessment. The Fayette County Justice Center will meet the immediate and future 
s of the ed


rrently unoccupie  will be utilized as the need arises. 


spitals and Other Public Health Facilities 


yette County Community Hospital. Open since Se
mmunity Hospital is a 100-bed, general community hosp


ptember 1997, Fayette 
Co ital which is governed by a 
nin -member Board of Trustees, five of whom are physicians.  The hospital offers a wide 
ran , including medical, surgical, critical care, diagnostics, physical therapy, 
an han 30
spe
 
Fa
cri
co
app
has expanded the Diagnostic and Emergency Services to 105 Yorktown Drive in 
Fa
 
Fa
 
 
 
 
 Pediatric services 
 
 
 
 
 ervices 
 


e
ge of services


d emergency room.  A medical staff of more t 0 doctors represents more than 30 
cialties. Members of the medical staff are board certified or qualified. 


yette Community Hospital offers a full range of services including medical, surgical, 
tical care, diagnostics, laboratory, respiratory, outpatient surgery, rehabilitation and 
mprehensive out-patient services.  A 24-hour emergency department with a FAA-
roved helipad serves the emergency medical needs of the community.  The Hospital 


yetteville by opening the Minor Emergency Care and Outpatient Diagnostic Center. 


yette Community Hospital’s inpatient and outpatient services include: 
Twenty-four hour emergency care, including a FAA-approved helipad 
Medical/Surgical services 
Critical care 
Full diagnostics, including CT scan and nuclear medicine 


Operating rooms for inpatient and outpatient surgery 
Rehabilitation/Physical Therapy/Fitness Center 
Respiratory Therapy 
General lab services 
Comprehensive outpatient s







 


50 


Public Health Facilities. The Fayette County Public Health Department provides 
ser es pr
car
and
reg
the
mo
by
 
As nity Hospital will meet the future needs of 
Fa nty citizens.  The hospital was constructed with an unfinished third floor that 
wi e
be
 
Th
to ased patient load.  Patient contacts increased from 10,344 to 20,122, an 
inc se of 95 percent, between 1996 to 2002.  Patient load is expected to increase as the 
cou
new
wi
 
Re
In
acr
ramps/docks, football fields, picnic areas, soccer fields, softball fields, tennis courts and 
wa
 
Th
par
Fa
 
Assessment. To address recreation needs in Fayette County, the Fayette County Board 
of 
ass
Th
Co the 
sta  the Recreation Department will utilize the needs assessment to update the Fayette 
Co
 
Th
the
 


vices to local citizens.  Servic ovided by the department include preventive health 
e, educational services, immunizations, family planning, travel shots, cancer screening 
 physical assessments.  The department also includes Environmental Health which 
ulates septic placement, restaurant cleanliness, care homes, tourist accommodations, 
 testing of wells and public swimming pools, and the survey and identification of 
squito species for the presence of the West Nile Virus.  The department is supported 


 fees and state and local funds. 


sessment. The Fayette County Commu
yette Cou
ll be finished wh n the need arises.  When finished, it will include an additional 50 
ds. 


e Fayette County Health Department has identified a need for more facility space due 
an incre
rea
nty continues to grow.  A State Block Grant could be utilized to pay for a portion of a 
 public health facility.  The provision of Fayette County Health Department services 


ll be addressed under the Objectives and Policies of the General Government section. 


creation Facilities 
ventory. Fayette County has seven recreational areas totaling approximately 276 
es. These recreational areas have an array of facilities such as baseball fields, boat 


lking trails.  


e county recently purchased approximately 173 acres in the Kenwood area for a future 
k.  In addition, an eight acre tract in Peachtree City which had been used by the 


yette County Water System will be developed into a future park.  


Commissioners contracted with Robert and Company to conduct a recreation needs 
essment. The Fayette County Recreation Needs Assessment was completed in 2003.  
e needs assessment recommends recreation improvements to be undertaken by Fayette 
unty.  Timing for the improvements range from 2005 to 2020.  In the next year, 
ff of
unty Capital Improvement Plan 


e Recreation Department identifies the following as projects that were initiated before 
 completion of the Fayette County Recreation Needs Assessment:  


• Brooks Park:  Installation of softball field fencing, installation of field lighting, 
expansion of parking area.     


 







 


51 


• Kelly Drive Neighborhood Park:  Purchase of land from the Water System and 


 


converting the area into a park with picnic tables; park benches, a playground 
area, and a walking trail. 


 Kiwanis Park:•    Installation of additional parking and access, Kiwanis Activity 
House basement renovations, and the upgrade of field lighting.  


 
• McCurry Park:   Parking lot installation and improvements (resurfacing, patching 


and fencing), the installation of barrier netting and cross fencing (to subdivide 


 


soccer fields), and the addition of a picnic shelter, walking trails, a playground, 
four tennis courts and two multipurpose courts.  


• Kenwood Park:  Development of the park. 
 
.   


 
Ge al Government 
 
Inventory. Fayette County governmental facilities are instrumental in the provision of 
county  the county’s administrative services are located in the 
Fa  Complex.  This facility currently contains the following 
county offices: Administration, Board of Tax Assessors, Circuit Court Judge, Elections 
an En
an
Ins
Ad
fac
wa
 
Fa
str
of 
roo
Se
 
In 
nu
tra
Fa
 
As plex opened on time in the spring of 
2003.  A 150,000 foot building for administrative service departments is also planned on 
thi
fun
wi


 


ner


 services. The majority of
yette County Administrative


d Registration, gineering, Environmental Health, Extension Service, Finance, Fire 
d Emergency Services, Human Resources, Information Systems, Marshals, Permits & 
pections, Physical Health, Planning, Purchasing, Tax Commissioner, and Zoning.  
ditional county offices are housed at other locations throughout the county. Other 
ilities discussed elsewhere in this element includes water treatment plants, treated 
ter storage facilities, Fire/EMS stations, and recreational facilities. 


yette Senior Services operates the Friendship Center in a reconverted single-family 
ucture.  The Friendship Center is a gathering place for the socialization and recreation 
senior citizens. Facilities include a dining room, fellowship area, card and puzzle 
m, and warming kitchen for Meals on Wheels.  A separate trailer houses the Fayette 


nior Citizens administrative office.  


addition to operating the Friendship Center, Fayette Senior Services administers a 
tritional program, an information and referral service, an in-home services program, 
nsportation services, a wellness program, and the Just Older Youth Program.  Overall, 
yette Senior Services serves approximately 1,700 citizens per year. 


sessment. The Fayette County Judicial Com


s 65 acres site.  The Fayette Senior Services is involved in a capital campaign to raise 
ds for a new facility.  This new facility will be located on approximately three acres 


thin the aforementioned 65 acre site.  The new Fayette Senior Services facility will 







 


52 


have four functional centers: Active Recreation, Agency Offices, Meeting Space/Food 
Ser
wh
ser
 
 
Ed cational Facilities 
 
In nty Board of Education presently administers 26 public 
schools, 16 elementary schools, five middle schools, and five high schools. In addition, 
the
hig
Cr
loc
 
Ed


vice, and Structure Programs.  The proposed facility will contain a multipurpose room 
ich will seat 150, a small dining room which will seat 60, and the kitchen facilities to 
ve 200 meals a day through the volunteer Meals on Wheels Program. 


u


ventory. . The Fayette Cou


 Board of Education administers an alternative elementary school, middle school and 
h school at the Lafayette Educational Center and an evening high school at the Sandy 


eek High School.  Table C-6 provides information on each of the public schools 
ated in Fayette County.   


ucation/Training Centers: Two education/training centers are located in Fayette 
unty.  These centers are the Fayette CountyCo  University Center in Peachtree City and 


the ayette County Community School in the LaFayette Center in Fayetteville. 
 
Th
Co
Tr
Per onal Development and Small Business Development. 
 
Th
Go
a s
Mi ing Economics, 
En ish, History, Math, Communications, Psychology, and Sociology.  West Georgia 
Sta
 
As
Sc
ba
add
stu
 
Li e
 
In
me
(w
Ser earing impaired and to visually and physically disabled residents are 
provided by Access Services.    The Fayette County Public Library is located in the City 
of istered libraries in Fayette County: 
the eachtree City Library, the Tyrone Library, and the Brooks Library. 


 F


e Fayette County University Center offers continuing education classes from Clayton 
llege and State University.  These classes include Basic Academic Skills, Computer 
aining, Career and Professional Development, Healthcare Training, Leisure and 
s


e Fayette County Community School offers classes from Central Michigan University, 
rdon College, and West Georgia State University.  A Master of Art in Education with 
pecialization in Instruction or Adult Learning can be obtained through Central 
chigan University.  Gordon College offers a variety of classes includ
gl
te University offers classes necessary to maintain teacher’s certification. 


sessment. Fayette County’s rapid growth has put a burden on the Fayette County 
hool System.  The Fayette County Board of Education is implementing a SPLOST 
sed facilities improvements program approved by the voters in 2004. This includes the 
ition of  three elementary schools and one middle school to accommodate additional 


dents.   


braries and Oth r Cultural Facilities 


ventory. The mission of the Fayette County Public Library is to assist the public in 
eting their informational, educational and cultural needs by providing free access 
here economically feasible) to information affording personal and community benefits.  
vices to the h


Fayetteville. There are three additional city-admin
 P







 


53 


 
Th ette County Public Library is a member of the Flint River Regional Library 
Sy
Ge
the
tec
loa
me
of 
all
 
Th
lib umes.  A computer lab in the library contains 
10
Th
Inf
Fa
co
tel
acc
Ser
pa
LI
of 
 
Sa
Ce
and
sea . 
 
 
Co
 
Fa
pla  been reviewed for 
consistency with these strategies and agreements and have been found to be in 
conformance.  As part of this full plan update of the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan, 
a n eloped and adopted by each of 
the forementioned jurisdictions.   
 
Th
 
Ai
the
add
 


e Fay
stem (FRRL) and is a unit of the Board of Regents of the University System of 
orgia.  The FRRL oversees libraries in a seven-county area.  Authorized by the state, 
 FRRL distributes state funds to each of the seven counties, as well as providing 
hnical assistance in areas such as administration, construction planning, interlibrary 
ns, computer backup and bulk purchasing.  All four libraries in Fayette County are 
mbers of the FRRL system and as a result, all of the libraries are open to all residents 
the county.  Fayette County pays the FRRL membership fees on a per capita basis for 
 the county and city libraries.  


e Fayette County Public Library is approximately 25,000 square feet in size.  The 
ry contains approximately 80,641 volra


 computers which offer classes in academic enrichment and computer applications.  
e Internet can be accessed from 54 computers in the library.   The Georgia Career 
ormation System is available to students for career and education planning.  The 
yette County Public Library hosts cultural events such as readings by local authors and 
ncerts.  The library also offers computer-based instruction, a Distant Learning lab for 
econferencing, Spanish and French classes, children’s storytelling, sign language and 
ess to PINES and GALILEO.  PINES (Public Information Network for Electronic 
vices) allows a patron at any PINES library to see and borrow the holdings of every 


rticipating library, increasing access to materials exponentially.  GALILEO (GeorgiA 
brary LEarning Online) allows users to access over 150 databases indexing thousands 
periodicals and scholarly journals. 


ms Auditorium in the old Fayette County High School now known as the LaFayette 
nter, holds approximately 300 persons.  The facility is used for concerts, local theater, 
 special events.  The Fayette County Board of Commissioners helped fund new 
ting in the auditorium when it was renovated


nsistency with Service Delivery Strategy 


yette County and its Municipalities have a Service Delivery Strategy Agreement in 
ce.  The services covered in this Comprehensive Plan have


ew Service of Delivery Strategy Agreement will be dev
 a


e following is a summary of the Service Delivery Strategy:  


rport: The Peachtree City Airport Authority (PCAA) provides this service throughout 
 County.  Funding is provided primarily from user fees, with Peachtree City providing 
itional funding from the Hotel/Motel Tax.   







 


54 


Animal Control: Fayette County provides this service to all entities throughout the 
cou
vic
en
fun
 
Bu rmits and Inspections: Fayette County, Peachtree City, Fayetteville and 
Ty ne provide this service for their respective jurisdictions. Fayette County provides 
pe
fee
 
Ca
Fa ve entered into a collaboratively negotiated franchise 
ag
Cit
Fu


Co
thi
eff e community.  
Othe
loc
fro


Co
the
W
eff and Solicitor to provide court services to 
all e is provided from fines and forfeitures collected by each entity 
 
91
pro
Ag


Ec
De
Th
au
dev
Peachtr
fro


El
Fu


nty. This includes services for sick and injured animals, displaced wildlife, bite case 
tims, 24/7 emergency response via 911, animal ordinance and related state law 


forcement and cruelty investigation. Funding is provided from Fayette County general 
ds.  


ilding Pe
ro
rmit and inspection services for Brooks and Woolsey.   Funding is provided from user 
s from each entity. 


ble TV: MediaOne and Intermedia provide this service throughout Fayette County.  
tte County and Brooks haye


reement with MediaOne that Fayetteville and Tyrone are anticipated to join.  Peachtree 
y can consider entering into this agreement when its existing agreements terminate.  
nding is provided from user fees from each entity.   


 
de Enforcement: Fayette County, Peachtree City, Fayetteville and Tyrone provide 
s service for their respective jurisdictions.  Each jurisdiction’s code enforcement 
orts are focused on the individual characteristics of the respectiv


rwise, each entity feels a need to continue providing this service in order to maintain 
al control and provide the level of service their citizens expect.  Funding is provided 
m general funds from each entity 


 
urt: Fayette County, Peachtree City, Fayetteville and Tyrone provide this service for 
ir respective jurisdictions.  Fayette County provides this service for Brooks and 


oolsey.  The municipal entities will continue to periodically evaluate the cost 
ectiveness of hiring a municipal court Judge 


ntities.  Funding 


1 Communications Center: This service was consolidated in 1995.  Each entity 
vides funding for this service based on a formula in the Consolidated Communications 
reement.  Funding is provided from #911 fees and general funds from each entity.   


 
onomic Development: Fayette County, Peachtree City and Fayetteville have 
velopment Authorities that focus on specific needs of their respective communities.  
e Fayette County Development Authority (FCDA) has agreements with the municipal 
thorities to issue revenue bonds and for marketing services.  All municipal 


elopment authorities (Fayetteville and Peachtree City), The Town of Tyrone, and the 
ee City Airport Authority are represented on the FCDA.  Funding is provided 


m the Fayette County general funds.  
 


ections: Fayette County provides this service (on a contractual basis) to all entities.  
nding is provided from general funds from each entity 


 







 


55 


Engineering: Fayette County, Peachtree City, Fayetteville, Brooks and Tyrone provide 
thi
to 
pro
 
Ex ovides this service throughout 
the
Co
the
Fu


Fir
un ne and Woolsey. In addition 
to f
en
mu
the
wi
em
aid
mu
em
par
 
Fa
mu
dis
bet  
ind pendently by each jurisdiction.  
 
Li
Fli
Th
lib
est o provide and enhanced level of service 
more 
an
 
Pla
No
coo
co
of 
No


 


s service for their respective jurisdictions.  Each entity  provides this service in order 
maintain local control and provide the level of service their citizens expect.  Funding is 
vided from general funds from each entity 


nsion Service: Fayette County Extension Service prte
 County.  A cooperative agreement exists between the Extension Service and Fayette 
unty to provide educational and technical services to homeowners and businesses in 
 areas of Agriculture, Horticulture, Environment and Family and Consumer Sciences.  
nding is provided from county general funds 


 
e and Emergency Services: Fayette County has fire protection responsibilities for its 


incorporated areas and the municipalities of Brooks, Tyro
ire protection, Fayette County is the designated EM ovider for the zone that 


compasses all areas within Fayette County with the exception of the area within the 
nicipal boundary of Peachtree City. Fayetteville has fire protection responsibility for 
 area within its corporate limits. Similarly, Peachtree City provides fire protection 
thin its municipality. In addition, Peachtree City is the designated zone provider for 
ergency medical service within its municipal boundaries. All three cities have mutual 
 agreements in effect. Fayette County and the City of Fayetteville in addition to 
tual aide, participate in automatic aide where the closest available unit responds to the 
ergency call irrespective of political boundaries. Peachtree City has elected to not 
ticipate with Fayette County in this reciprocal assistance program.  


yette County is the designated emergency management agency for the county and its 
nicipalities. All agencies utilize the services of a single consolidated communication 
patch center. Additionally, joint training programs are periodically undertaken 
ween the various departments. Services provided and service levels are determined


S pr


e


brary : Fayette County, Peachtree City and Tyrone provide this service through the 
nt River Regional Library System.  Brooks provides this service for its residents.  
ere does appear to be a potential need for formal agreements addressing the inter-
rary book program, children’s story time/book researching the feasibility of 
blishing a Fayette County Library System ta


cost effectively.  Funding is currently provided from the General Funds for Brooks 
d from state and general funds from the remaining entities. 


nning and Zoning: All entities provide this service for their respective jurisdictions.  
 formal cooperative agreements are in effect at this time.  However, there is 
rdination between the respective agencies as needed.  Each entity feels a need to 


ntinue providing these services in order to maintain local control and provide the level 
service their citizens expect.  Funding is provided from general funds from each entity.  
 change in service delivery is anticipated. 







 


56 


Police: Fayette County, Peachtree City, Fayetteville and Tyrone provide this service for 
the
un
pro
en
in 
ag
pro
the
eac
de
De
dis
 
Pu
ser tions.  Services provided include Road Maintenance, 
Gr nd Maintenance, Building Maintenance, Fleet Maintenance, Transportation (New 
Co
var
inc
Sh
en
and
fun
wo
no
an
 
Pu
Co
Sc
en
economie
fun
 
 
Re
the
eac
bas
and e provided varies among the entities.  Current 
cooperative efforts and formal agreements include agreements with the Community 
Scho
Se
pro
the


ir respective jurisdictions.  Fayette County provides law enforcement for the 
incorporated county and the cities of Brooks and Woolsey.  Fayette County also 
vides jail services for all agencies.  The Fayette County Sheriff’s Department has 


tered into formal agreements to provide detention facility services to all municipalities 
Fayette County.  In addition, all agencies have entered into formal mutual aid 
reements as required by National Accreditation.  Each entity feels a need to continue 
viding this service in order to maintain local control and provide the level of service 
ir citizens expect.  Funding for the departments is provided from general funds from 
h entity, and funding for the jail is provided from general funds and court fees as 


signated by the State.  The entities have not reached consensus on how Sheriff’s 
partment resources and funding should be allocated throughout the County, and 
cussions will continue. 


blic Works: Fayette County, Peachtree City, Fayetteville and Tyrone provide this 
vice for their respective jurisdic
ou
nstruction) and Public Works Project Contracting.  The level of services provided 
ies among the communities.  Current cooperative efforts and formal agreements 
lude the Fleet Maintenance Agreement, Public Works Project Contracting Agreement, 
aring Expensive Specialized Equipment Agreement and LARP Agreement.  Each 
tity feels a need to continue providing these services in order to maintain local control 
 provide the level of service their citizens expect.  Funding is provided from general 
ds from each entity.  The entities are pursuing an agreement by which Fayette County 
uld assist the municipalities in road resurfacing and maintenance.  The entities have 
t reached consensus on how County road improvements and maintenance resources 
d funding should be allocated throughout the County, and discussions will continue. 


rchasing: All entities provide this service for their respective jurisdictions.  Fayette 
unty, Peachtree City, Fayetteville, Tyrone, Brooks, Woolsey and the Fayette County 
hool Board have entered into a Collaborative Purchasing Agreement through which the 
tities may choose to purchase goods and services in bulk to maximize on the associated 


s of scale.  Actual costs of goods and services purchased provided from general 
ds from each entity.   


creation: Fayette County, Peachtree City, Tyrone and Brooks provide this service for 
ir respective jurisdictions.  The types of programming and services provided vary in 
h community, but generally include Youth and Adult Recreation Programs (softball, 
eball, basketball, soccer, football, etc.), Instructional Classes, Special Events, Camps 
Aquatics.  The level of servic 


ols, Board of Education and Municipalities, Youth Sports Associations, Private 
ctor Providers and Semi-Private Organizations.  Each entity feels a need to continue 
viding these services in order to maintain local control and provide the level of service 
ir citizens expect.  Funding is provided from user fees and general funds from each 







 


57 


entity.  The entities have not reached consensus on how County recreation resources and 
fun
 
Se er: Peachtree City Water and Sewerage Authority (WASA) and Fayetteville provide 
thi
Co
sew
use
 
 
Sol  Waste: Brooks provides this service to its residents.  Fayette County and Peachtree 
Ci  do not provide curbside solid waste services.  Residents use private sanitation 
co
Ty
W
W
Af
fea
fee
 
W
jur
Pe , and areas of Fayetteville.  Fayette County has an 
ag ent with Fayetteville that establishes water service areas resulting in Fayetteville 
ser
Fa
to 
Ci
Co
Ad
an
Th
fun
 


5.5


Ad
Fa n with the five municipal 
jurisdic ooks and Woolsey. The Fayette 
County Service Delivery Strategy documents those areas of coordination. 


ounties in the form of 
mutual aid agreements for fire services, emergency response, and police backup. 
 
 


ding should be allocated throughout the County, and discussions will continue. 


w
s service to the residents of Peachtree City and Fayetteville, respectively.  Fayette 
unty provides meter reading and billing services for WASA.  There are no arbitrary 
er fees.  Each system is established as an Enterprise Fund with funding provided from 
r fees and general funds.   


id
ty
mpanies.  However, both agencies do provide recycling stations.  Fayetteville and 
rone provide curbside solid waste services (including recycling) through contracts with 
aste Management of Georgia.  All entities have adopted a Joint Comprehensive Solid 
aste Management Plan, which has been approved by the Department of Community 
fairs (DCA).  Keep Fayette Beautiful and Peachtree City are currently exploring the 
sibility of a joint recycling program.  Funding for these services is provided from user 
s and general funds.   


ater: Fayette County, Fayetteville and Brooks provide this service for their respective 
isdictions.  Fayette County provides water service to the unincorporated county, 
achtree City, Tyrone, Woolsey
reem
ving areas of Fayette County and Fayette County serving areas of Fayetteville.  
yette County has a long-term agreement with Brooks in which it leases a water tower 
Brooks.  Fayette County has a long-term water withdrawal agreement with Peachtree 
ty for use of the municipally owned Lake Peachtree as a water reservoir.  Fayette 
unty does provide emergency backup water service to Fayetteville and Brooks.  
ditionally, Fayette County’s reservoir is factored into Fayetteville’s water supply plan 


d permit, resulting in Fayetteville not having to construct and operate a reservoir.  
ere are no arbitrary water fees.  Each system is established as an Enterprise Fund with 
ding provided from user fees.              


           Intergovernmental Coordination 


jacent Local Governments 
yette County maintains a high level of coordinatio


tions of Fayetteville, Peachtree City, Tyrone, Br


 
Additionally, Fayette County has local agreements with adjacent c







 


58 


Independent Special Authorities and Districts 
Fa l Commission on the staff 
an
for
Re
Re
 
Sc
Th ette County government interfaces directly with the Fayette County Board of 
Ed ing basis. 
 
In
Th  is the primary economic development 
ag
 
Fe
Th
ma dated programs including the Solid Waste Management Program, Watershed 
Pro ace Preservation. 
 
Th
pu
 
5.6               Transportation 


Fa
ex  Fayette County’s population grew from 
29 rcent.  This growth has placed large volumes of 


 highways not designed for such capacity.  In 
addition to the growth in Fayette County, growth in surrounding counties is adding to the 
tra
mu
 
In 
Pla
pla
un
ran ately $266 
million.  The transportation improvement projects defined in the plan are discussed under 
the
 
In
Th
sys
tra
 


yette County actively participates with the Atlanta Regiona
d Board levels. Representatives attend meetings of standing committees, special task 
ces and ARC Board meetings. Review comments are provided for Developments of 
gional Impact and other reviews as needed. The coordination also involves the Georgia 
gional Transportation Authority and the North Georgia Water Planning District. 


hool Boards  
e Fay
ucation on a continu


dependent Development Authorities and Districts 
 Fayette County Development Authoritye


ency for Fayette County. There is regular coordination with the FCDA. 


deral, State or Regional Programs 
e county coordinates with federal, state and regional agencies on implementation of 
n
tection, Stormwater Management and Greensp


e county also coordinates with the state and regional agencies on environmental health, 
blic health and public safetygrams. 


  


yette County is showing the growing pains common to most counties of a rural nature 
riencing rapid growth.  From 1980 to 2000,pe


,043 to 91,263, an increase of 214 pe
traffic on rural roads and two-lane state


ffic volume in Fayette County.  As Fayette County grows, its transportation facilities 
st be improved to accommodate the increasing demand.      


an effort to address transportation needs an update the Fayette County Transportation 
n was completed in 2003.  The municipalities within the county participated in the 
nning process. The plan recommends transportation improvements in both the 
incorporated county and the municipalities.  Implementation of the improvements 
ge from 2003 to 2025.  The total cost for these improvements is approxim


 section entitled Assessment of Current and Future Needs. 


ventory 
e following section provides an inventory of Fayette County’s existing transportation 
tem, including highways and roads, bicycle and pedestrian ways, current 
nsportation options, railroads and airports. 







 


59 


Highways and Roads 
Six cess to, from, and within Fayette County.   
 


State Route 85 runs south from I-75, through Clayton County, into Fayette 
Cou
Fay
Cou
som
 


 Stat ighway in the county.  It extends from 
Coweta County on the west, through Peachtree City, eastward through 


of S
trav


 
 Stat


Peac  
major 


 
 Stat


85 i
four ay.  The major commuting route for airport workers, this 
highway carries 22,400 vehicles a day. 


 
 


Cou
of th
veh


 


Cou
pass
Stat  merge.  This highway carries commuter traffic from 
Griffin and Spalding County north to the airport and the Atlanta Metropolitan 
Are


 
The County
function. T
local streets
 


Art
con  A major 
thoroughfare, an arterial street generally moves high volumes of traffic through 


 major highways provide ac


nty north of Fayetteville.  This four-lane highway continues south through 
etteville where it narrows to two lanes and continues south into Coweta 
nty.   This is the most highly traveled state highway in the county and carries 
e 44,200 vehicles a day.  


e Route 54 is the main east-west h


Fayetteville, to Clayton County.  SR 54 is a four lane, divided highway from SR 
74 in Peachtree City to McDonough Road, east of Fayetteville.  The sections west 


R 74 and east of McDonough Road remain two lanes.  The most heavily 
eled portions of this highway carry 33,000 vehicles a day. 


e Route 74 is a four lane highway from Interstate 85 south to SR 54 in 
htree City.  South of SR 54, it becomes two lanes, ending at SR 85.   This


access to Interstate 85 and the Atlanta Metropolitan Area carries 31,600 
vehicles a day.  


e Route 314 extends southward from Hartsfield International Airport to SR 
n Fayetteville.  The southern portion of this highway (SR 279 to SR 85) is a 
lane divided highw


State Route 279 runs south from I-285 in South Fulton County, entering Fayette 
nty at SR 138.  It proceeds southwest across SR 314 and ends at SR 85 north 
e City of Fayetteville.  SR 279 is a two-lane highway and carries 16,700 


icles a day. 


State Route 92 extends southward from Fulton County, running northwest to 
southeast through Fayetteville and Woolsey, and continuing into Spalding 


nty.  It is two lanes throughout Fayette County, except for the section with 
ing lanes on SR 92 north and the section in the City of Fayetteville where 
e Routes 85 and 92


a.  Such traffic totals 13,800 vehicles a day. 


’s Thoroughfare Plan classifies streets by a hierarchy system based on street 
he classifications used by the Thoroughfare Plan include arterial, collector and 
.  The three categories of street classification are discussed below: 


erial Streets - An arterial street is intended to provide swift, safe, and 
venient traffic movement within and through the county. 







 


60 


the county and provides access to the interstate network.  Arterial streets generally 
acco
acco


 
Colle istribute traffic from arterials to local streets 
and 
to th
The
trip 


 
Loc t provides access to adjoining properties and 
circulation within a ocal streets are usually low volume roads 
asso
The


 
The Fayette
which 61 m
Brooks and Woolsey.  The Town of Tyrone, the City of Fayetteville, and the City of 
Pe
De
 
Th
thr
1.5 d 
Palmetto Road.  
 
Bi
Fa
Pla
cou  available state/federal funds, such as Intermodal Surface 
Transportation Efficiency Act (ISTEA) funds.  The bicycle plan generally provides 
bic  municipalities, recreational areas (Kiwanis and 
Mc
 
Fa
Re
de
 
Tr
Fa
tra
van
do
 
Th eorgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) completed a Commuter Rail Plan in 
Se d the phased implementation of six commuter rail lines 


mmodate two or four lanes of moving traffic, often with turning lanes to 
mmodate traffic flow. 


ctor Streets - Collector streets d
adjacent land uses.  They also collect traffic from local areas and distribute it 
e arterial network.  The collector network primarily serves localized areas.  


 main difference between collector and arterial streets is the length and type of 
accommodated. 


al Streets - A local stree
 limited area.  L


ciated with subdivisions or areas which are primarily residential in nature.  
y comprise the highest percentage of total street miles within the county. 


 County Road Department maintains approximately 468 miles of roads of 
iles are unpaved.   The county maintains all roads in the unincorporated area, 


achtree City perform maintenance on their roads, but the Fayette County Road 
partment provides repaving services to these cities by contract.  


e interstate system presently serving the Atlanta Metropolitan Area does not pass 
ough Fayette County.  The closest interstate highway, Interstate 85, is approximately 
 miles to the north.  Local access to Interstate 85 is provided through SR 74 an


cycle and Pedestrian Ways 
yette County has a county-wide bicycle plan, as part of the Regional Transportation 
n (RTP), on file with the Atlanta Regional Commission.   This submittal allows the 
nty to apply for any


ycle path connections between county
Curry Parks), historic areas (Starr’s Mill) and adjacent counties (Fulton and Clayton). 


yette County has received a Safe Routes to Schools grant for a multi-use path along 
dwine Road in the area of the Starr’s Mill School Complex.   The project is in the 
sign phase and construction could start in 2012. 


ansportation Options 
tte County’s residents are dependent on the automobile as the major mode of ye


nsportation.  Publicly funded transportation does not exist in Fayette County.  Car and 
 pool use is minimal.  A privately owned shuttle service transports commuters to 


wntown Atlanta from Peachtree City. 


e G
ptember 1995 that recommende







 


61 


using existing rail corridors.   One proposed line would use the existing Seaboard System 
rai
Th
At
 
Ai
Fa htree City, within the confines of the Peachtree City industrial area, 
is t only general aviation airport.  This airport is experiencing an increase in 
the
air
nu
 
Ra
Th  and Norfolk 
Southern.  The Seaboard System line runs from Fulton County through Peachtree City to 
Se ice to industrial areas in Peachtree City is provided by CSX Railroad on 
thi
Se
pla
 
 


l line through Fayette County with proposed stations in Tyrone and Peachtree City.  
e commuter rail service would terminate in Senoia.  To date, the development of the 
lanta to Senoia commuter rail service through Fayette County has not been scheduled. 


orts rp
lcon Field in Peac
he county’s 
 amount of corporate usage.  A 5,200 foot all-weather-lighted runway allows this 
port to accommodate corporate jets and smaller commercial airplanes.  There are also a 
mber of small private landing fields located in the county. 


ilroads 
ere are two rail lines running through Fayette County: Seaboard System


noia.  Rail serv
s line.  The Norfolk Southern line runs east/west from Griffin through Brooks to 
noia.  The Norfolk Southern line is no longer in use although the tracks are still in 
ce. 





		Planning and Zoning- Comprehensive Plan Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Comprehensive Plan Backup

		Figure 3.1 EXISTING LAND USE

		3.3 Areas Requiring Special Attention

		Figure 3.3 AREAS REQUIRING SPECIAL ATTENTION

		Character Area

		Suggested Development Strategy

		Commerce Area

		Education

		Figure 3.4 CHARACTER AREA MAP



		Sources of Personal Income.  The percent of personal income from earnings in Fayette County decreased from 85.0 percent in 1980 to 76.8 percent in 2000.  The state also showed a decrease, while not as great, from 75.2 percent in 1980 to 72.3 percent in 2000.

		Commuting Patterns.  Employment by place of work data provides information on commuting patterns and insight into the numbers of residents who find employment in other areas.  In both 1990 and 2000 a high percentage of Fayette County residents worked outside the county (67.0 percent and 62.5 percent, respectively).  Conversely, of all the people who live in Fayette County, only 37.5 percent worked in the county in 2000.  This is an increase in the number of Fayette County residents working in the county over 1990, when the figure was 33.0 percent.

		Households by Type



		Environmental Planning Criteria

		There are five water supply watersheds (drainage basins) in Fayette County: Flint River Drainage Basin, Horton Creek Drainage Basin, Whitewater Creek Drainage Basin,  Flat Creek Drainage Basin, and Line Creek Drainage Basin. Fayette County utilizes each of these basins as a source of drinking water.

		There are five water supply watersheds (drainage basins) in Fayette County: Flint River Drainage Basin, Horton Creek Drainage Basin, Whitewater Creek Drainage Basin,  Flat Creek Drainage Basin, and Line Creek Drainage Basin.  Fayette County utilizes each of these basins as a source of drinking water.

		Assessment. The Fayette County Judicial Complex opened on time in the spring of 2003.  A 150,000 foot building for administrative service departments is also planned on this 65 acres site.  The Fayette Senior Services is involved in a capital campaign to raise funds for a new facility.  This new facility will be located on approximately three acres within the aforementioned 65 acre site.  The new Fayette Senior Services facility will have four functional centers: Active Recreation, Agency Offices, Meeting Space/Food Service, and Structure Programs.  The proposed facility will contain a multipurpose room which will seat 150, a small dining room which will seat 60, and the kitchen facilities to serve 200 meals a day through the volunteer Meals on Wheels Program.










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Planning & Zoning / Public Works Pete Frisina / Phil Mallon


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina will ask for direction on how to redesignate remnants of old road right-of-way resulting from the 


reconfiguration of property that was formerly portions of Huiet and Lester Roads, as related to existing platted properties known as Waterlace and 


Postal Commons.


Portions of Huiet Road and Lester Road have been removed due to the construction of Phase One of the West Fayetteville Bypass.  


Fayette County is in the process of revising two Final Plats (Waterlace and Postal Commons) as a result of property exchanges in 


connection with the West Fayetteville Bypass and the designation of these areas as right-of-way or County open space has an effect on 


how the setbacks will be depicted on the revised Final Plats based on Section 5-15 of the Zoning Ordinance.  This section states "When 


a common area, open space, or conservation area is located between a lot and the street, the setback on the lot shall be measured from 


the right-of-way as a front yard setback or from the common area as a side or rear setback and whichever is greater shall apply as 


enacted October 1, 2008." 


Permission to bring this issue to the Board for a vote at a Thursday night meeting. 


Not applicable.


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessWednesday, March 2, 2011





















		Planning and Zoning- Huiet-Le...nment Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Huiet-Lester Abandonment Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Ms. Kiana Robinson, owner of Kidology Preschool in College Park, would like to request the Board's consideration of amending the 


Zoning Ordinance related to set-backs and buffers, which would allow her to establish a similar facility in north Fayette County.


Kiana Robinson is the owner and operator of Kidology preschool located in College Park, Georgia.  Since her three years in operation 


began, she would now like to open  a second preschool in Fayette County. The site she is interested is located at an abandoned 


storefront at 560 West Bridge Road in Fayetteville.  Although she would like to open her business, she believes that the space 


dimensions required in the County's current commercial zoning setback and buffer limitations will not allow her to open her preschool 


business. The use she proposes in a "conditional use". 


 


Ms. Robinson is asking the Board to consider amending the County's zoning requirements. Fayette County Code, Zoning Ordinance 


Article VII. Conditional Uses, Nonconformances, Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone, and Commercial Development Standards, is the 


code she would like to discuss.  


 


Ms. Robinson has met with Planning and Zoning Staff and now has requested a meeting with the Board to explain her case and to learn 


if the Board has interest in her request.


 Staff requests the Board's direction on how to proceed in this matter. If a code amendment is desired, the process would involve 


advertising proposed amendments and public hearings before the Planning Commission and the Board of Commissioners.


Not applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessWednesday, March 2, 2011















ARTICLE VII.  CONDITIONAL USES, NONCONFORMANCES,  
TRANSPORTATION CORRIDOR OVERLAY ZONE, AND 


COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
  
Sec. 7-1.  Conditional Use Approval.  Conditional Uses include certain uses which are allowed 
in a particular zoning district provided that all conditions specified under the Zoning Ordinance 
are met.  The Zoning Administrator shall issue a Conditional Use Permit for each use listed below 
upon compliance with all specified conditions and approvals by the appropriate County officials. 


 
A. Special Regulations.  Prior to the issuance of a Conditional Use permit and/or 


building permit, a site plan, as applicable to demonstrate compliance shall be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator and approved by the applicable 
departments.  This requirement shall apply to all Conditional Uses allowed 
within the various zoning districts except for: farm outbuildings, home 
occupations, single-family residences, and temporary meetings and/or events 
which are conducted no longer than 14 calendar days per year. 


 
B. Conditional Uses Allowed: 


 
17. Day Care Facility (Nursery School.)  (Allowed in C-C, C-H, O-I, A-R, 


and MHP Zoning Districts, and Church and/or other Place of Worship 
(see Article VII.) 
a. A day care facility may be approved as long as it maintains 


active certification from the Georgia Department of Human 
Resources.  Should the state certification lapse or be revoked, the 
Conditional Use permit shall be null and void. 


b. A preliminary license report from the Georgia Department of 
Human Resources shall accompany the application for a 
Conditional Use Permit. 


c. Outdoor play areas shall be located to the side or rear of the 
principal building. 


d. At least 100 square feet of outdoor play area shall be provided 
for each child during the period of maximum attendance. 


e. A fence measuring at least four (4) feet in height shall enclose 
the entire play area. 


f. If the side or rear yard abuts a residential or A-R Zoning District, 
a minimum 50 foot buffer shall be provided adjacent to the lot 
line.  The side yard setback shall be 50 feet.  The rear yard 
setback shall be 75 feet.   The setback shall be measured from 
the buffer.   


g. If adjoining a residential or A-R Zoning District, the hours of 
operation shall be limited to:  Monday through Saturday from 
6:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., except that all exterior activities shall 
only occur from 9:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. 


h. A convenient vehicle drop-off area shall be provided, permitting 
vehicles to re-enter the public street in a forward manner. 


 
 





		Planning and Zoning- Kidology Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Kidology Backup

		SKMBT_C25211022409500.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Kidology Backup





